
Welcome to the Auckland Regional Council Annual Report 2008/09
About this annual report

Welcome to the Auckland Regional Council’s (ARC) annual report for the year ending 30 June 2009. It is the
ARC’s key accountability document, representing our commitment to open and honest disclosure to all
stakeholders – from regional ratepayers to financial institutions and government agencies.

This is also an opportunity to show howwe are bringing alive our vision and mission, to share our achievements
and our involvement in delivering sustainable economic, social, cultural and environmental outcomes for the
Auckland region. In other words, our role in helping to make Auckland a great place to live.

This year’s report outlines how we performed against year three of our Long-Term Council Community Plan
2006 – 2016. It contains detailed information on council performance in its seven activity areas for the year, 1
July 2008 to 30 June 2009.

ARC’s seven areas of activity are:

Transport

Built environment

Natural environment and heritage

Economic development

Regional leadership and community development

Regional parks

Safety (including our roles in civil defence and the Harbourmaster’s office).

Major initiatives to be undertaken in 2009/10 are also highlighted within the report.

The way in which information is represented is governed by legislation (Local Government Act 2002), and
standard accounting practices. However, we have taken every step to make the information it contains as
accessible as possible.

Summary report also available

The ARC has also produced a summary of this report. It outlines the report’s most important information so
that you can see, at a glance, exactly what we have achieved in the past year. Contact us for a copy of the
summary or download a copy from our website, www.arc.govt.nz.

Your feedback is valuable

The annual report is an important part of the monitoring of our progress around the seven areas of activity for
the Council and the ARC’s work. We are constantly seeking ways to improve the format and readability of this
report. If you would like to provide your feedback or require any further information on matters mentioned
here, please email us at info@arc.govt.nz or call us on 09 366 2000.
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Chapter 1: Overview

The Auckland region plays an extremely important role in the development of New Zealand. It is a lively and
exciting place, made up of seven local authorities: Auckland City, Franklin District, Papakura District, Manukau
City, North Shore City, Rodney District and Waitakere City. The region, extending from Wellsford in the north
to Pukekohe in the south, covers 500,000 hectares including coastal marine waters, and 1600 kilometres of
coastline.

This chapter provides an overview of our performance and financial highlights for 2008/09.
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1.1 Chairman and Chief Executive’s Report

The Auckland Regional Council (ARC) has made
considerable progress in 2008/09, despite significant
challenges during this period.

The Government’s decision in April 2009 to create
the new Auckland Council, and to dissolve all of the
existing councils on 31 October 2010, means that
the ARC is now in a time of considerable change.
We areworkingwith the Auckland Transition Agency
to ensure there is a smooth transition to the new
Auckland Council, and to ensure the ARC can keep
delivering on key priorities between now and
October 2010. A number of significant
improvements have beenmade across the Council’s
business in 2008/09, and we hope to maintain
momentum during the change period.

Transport

In November 2008, the ARC amended its Long-Term
Council Community Plan (LTCCP) 2006-16 to reflect
the introduction of a regional fuel tax that would fund
a programme of public transport improvements,
including the purchase of new electric trains,
upgraded rail stations, integrated ticketing, and bus
and ferry infrastructure upgrades. The Government
approved the regional fuel tax scheme in October
2008. However, in mid March 2009, the new
Government announced the withdrawal of the fuel
tax and an in-principle decision that KiwiRail would
be the owner of new electric trains in Auckland,
which would be purchased by the Government. The
Government has not confirmed the funding nor the
timing of implementation or how and when the new
trains will be purchased. The decisions made by the
Government leave the region with considerable
uncertainty about the future of rail funding and
governance and the fate of the electrification project.

The withdrawal of the regional fuel tax effectively
left the ARC with a $202 million funding gap for
Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA)
projects, apart from the purchase of electric trains,
that were to be funded by the regional fuel tax.
During the preparation of the LTCCP 2009-19, the
ARC decided to enter into additional debt and levy
slightly higher rates increases in the future in order
to fund the core elements of ARTA’s capital
programme, including integrated ticketing. However,
some capital expenditure has been deferred and
service improvements are now likely to be made at
a slower rate than previously anticipated.

Despite the changes to future transport funding and
governance, ARTA has made significant progress
over the past twelve months in delivering on the
improvements that were signalled in our 2008/09
Annual Plan. The ARC’s funding enabled ARTA to:

Provide additional rail services on new trains,
including additional services to Pukekohe
Progress a number of rail station upgrades,
including at Newmarket and Morningside.
ARTA also undertook design and planningwork
for station upgrades at New Lynn, Grafton and
Avondale, and for new stations at Manukau,
Onehunga and Parnell.
Reinstate passenger rail services to Helensville
as a trial from July 2008 (including new stations
at Huapai and Waimauku).
Make significant improvements to bus services
in the Botany, Mission Heights and Flat Bush
areas, on Mt Eden Road, and on the North
Shore (including an integrated North Shore to
Airport ticket).
Introduce bus services to Highbrook and
Stonefields.
Make improvements to a number of ferry
facilities, with work undertaken at Downtown,
Half Moon Bay and Gulf Harbour ferry
terminals.
Progress the tender process for the integrated
ticketing project. A preferred tender has been
selected, and the ARC and ARTA now await
confirmation of New Zealand Transport Agency
(NZTA) funding, before implementing the
integrated ticketing project.
Provide assistance for selected groups of
passengers, including the implementation of
the SuperGold card, which offers free travel
for senior citizens after 9am.
Improve passenger information with the
installation of additional real time information
signs.
Reduce car trips to school, with 180 schools
now having TravelWise plans (or being in the
process of developing a plan).
Develop the 2009-19 Auckland Transport Plan
and a new Auckland Land Transport
Programme.

A total of 58.6m trips were made on Auckland’s
public transport network, an increase of 7.7 per cent
over the previous year. Bus patronage increased
8.1 per cent (excluding school buses), which is
dramatically higher than last year’s increase of 2.9
per cent, and the previous year’s decline in bus
patronage. Growth on the rail network was also
strong, with an estimated 7.65million rail passengers
carried during the year – the highest number of rail
trips in Auckland ever.

Chapter 1: . Overview
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Waterfront

In June 2009, the ARC and the Government agreed
to provide $20 million each for the joint purchase of
Queens Wharf, to ensure it is opened for public
access and developed into a premier cruise ship
terminal for New Zealand. The transfer of ownership
will take place in the second quarter of 2010, giving
time for the wharf to be developed as a public venue
for the Rugby World Cup in 2011. The ARC’s
contribution will come from a drawdown from
Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH).

Meanwhile, work is continuing on the redevelopment
of the Wynyard Quarter, led by Sea+City Projects
Ltd. In 2008/09, decisions were released on the
ARC’s Coastal Plan change for the redevelopment
of Wynyard Quarter, which is needed in order for
the development to go ahead.

Regional Parks

The ARC has continued to invest in the regional parks
network. The ARC purchased 50 hectares of land
at Te Arai in August 2008 for a regional park. The
parkland contains outstanding scenic and ecological
features, and this purchase will enable the ARC to
ensure this sensitive headland is protected from
development for future generations. The ARC also
purchased 27 hectares of land to add to Tapapakanga
Regional Park in June 2009. The land purchased
links two ‘wings’ of the park that were previously
disconnected, and better protects the park from the
effects of development and subdivision.

We’ve improved overnight accommodation on
regional parks, with the refurbishment of three
additional baches, at Atiu Creek and Scandrett
regional parks, and at Whatipu in the Waitakere
Ranges. Our baches are proving to be extremely
popular with the public and are in high demand.

We have completed a process to ensure that much
of our parkland is protected in perpetuity, to ensure
future generations will have access to the open
space that Aucklanders have paid for over many
decades.

The ARC has begun work on the review of the
Regional ParksManagement Plan, which guides the
day-to-day and long term management of 23 of our
parks. An initial phase of public consultation was
held in March and April 2009, and we expect to
release a new draft management plan for further
public comment in October 2009.

Natural environment and heritage

The ARC has continued to strive to protect the
region’s environment and heritage to ensure that
Auckland’s unique natural and cultural treasures are
preserved and enhanced for future generations.

During 2008/09, pateke, kakariki and kiwi were
released at Tawharanui Regional Park, and North
Island robin were released in the Waitakere Ranges
Regional Park. Six kiwi chicks hatched at the
Tawharanui Open Sanctuary in 2008/09, the first kiwi
to hatch on the Auckland mainland in 60 years.

The Hunua kokako population increased to 18 pairs
in 2008/09 as a result of ongoing intensive pest
management inside the 1100ha management area.
At least 58 young have fledged since joint
management with the Department of Conservation
began in 1994.

Planning for the implementation of Shakespear Open
Sanctuary was progressed, and construction of the
predator proof fence will commence in 2009/10.

Pest control initiatives included the development of
an inter-agency response to kauri dieback disease.
This involved an extensive range of measures from
research to phytosanitary kits on park tracks.

New possum control areas were successfully
implemented at Awhitu and South Kaipara
peninsulas, and the ARC increased its biosecurity
initiatives in the Hauraki Gulf.

Reports of slower speeds and better driving
behaviour at Muriwai and Te Oneone Rangatira have
indicated that the ARC’s campaign to make the
beach safer is having an impact.

A Sustainable Catchments Programmewas adopted
to better co-ordinate ARC catchment management
projects, initially focused on the Mahurangi,
Whangateau and Kaipara catchments and harbours.
An implementation plan to protect and enhance the
Whangateau Harbour and its catchment was
developed, with input from iwi and the community.

Rugby World Cup

The ARC will support the Rugby World Cup 2011 in
a number of ways. In our 2008/09 annual plan, we
resolved to provide a $10 million contribution for the
upgrade of Eden Park, to be paid once the upgrade
is complete in 2011 and this is still our intention.
The ARC is also providing funding to ARTA for
enhancements to the Kingsland Station, and in
addition ARTA has planned to spend $2.5m directly
related to the Rugby World Cup, including transport
planning from 2009-12 and in support for additional

Chapter 1: . Overview

6

A
uc
kl
an
d
R
eg
io
na
lC

ou
nc
il
|A

nn
ua
lR

ep
or
t
09



services during the six week period. Furthermore,
the ARC is hopeful that integrated ticketing will be
delivered in time for the event, which will make it
easier for visitors to use public transport during the
event.

The ARC has committed funding to a regional
package to support the Rugby World Cup, together
with other Auckland councils. AucklandPlus (the
ARC’s economic development business unit) plans
to assist the region’s businesses to seize business
opportunities associated with the event. The ARC
has also offered Mt Smart Stadium as a venue for
team training, subject to the stadiummeeting Rugby
World Cup standards.

Tourism

In 2008/09, the ARC began contributing funding to
enable Tourism Auckland to provide more effective
destination management and tourism promotion for
the region. We have reached agreement over a new
funding agreement and governance structure for
Tourism Auckland, and provided a robust monitoring
framework to ensure performance against agreed
targets.

Planning and decision-making

In 2008/09, the Tamaki Regional Mana Whenua
Forum was established. While this has been an
independent initiative driven by iwi from across the
region, the ARC has had the opportunity to contribute
to its establishment and ongoing development. The
benefits of the Forum being a conduit to iwi of the
region for matters of regional significance are now
starting to be recognised.

Version 1 of the One Plan has been completed. One
Plan is a strategic framework and plan of action for
the Auckland region, designed to improve decision
making and implementation, and set a clear direction
for how the region plans to achieve its aspirations
for sustainable development.

We have undertaken a considerable amount of work
on the review of the Regional Policy Statement, and
development of a new Regional Land Transport
Strategy. An initial round of consultation has been
completed. We intend to notify a newRegional Land
Transport Strategy (RLTS) by November 2009. The
timing for the release of a reviewed Regional Policy
Statement will depend on changes that the
Government ismaking to the ResourceManagement
Act 1991, and the impact of changes to Auckland’s
governance.

We also extended rates postponements to owners
of farmland that are outside the metropolitan urban
limit, as well as owners of coastal farmland.

We would like to extend our thanks to ARTA, ARH,
our local and central government partners,
community groups and everyone who has worked
with us to progress our shared goals for the region
over the past year.

Michael Lee, Chairman

Peter Winder, Chief Executive

Chapter 1: . Overview
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1.2 The Auckland region

The Auckland region (Tamaki Makaurau) is home to
over 1.3 million people and constitutes a third of the
national population. Most of the resident population
live in the main urban area - about 90 per cent live
in 10 per cent of the land area. It is the fastest
growing region in New Zealand and ranks fifth in the
world in the 2008 Mercer Quality of Life survey.

Auckland is a naturally beautiful isthmus, surrounded
by harbours and a 1600 kilometre long coastline.
Over 10 per cent of the population lives within 300
metres of the coast. The region covers 500,000
hectares, with 56,000 hectares of urban area, and
includes 26 regional parks covering approximately
41,000 hectares. People enjoy excellent education,
health care, transport systems, housing and a warm,
temperate climate.

Auckland’s people

The region is a multicultural and diverse society. The
2006 Census found over a third of the population
was born overseas and its residents identified with
over 150 ethnicities. Ethnic diversity has bought with
it a mix of religions, traditions, languages, values and
lifestyles. The face of Auckland region will continue
to bemulticultural through both natural increase and
immigration.

In 2006, 56.5 per cent of people identified as
Pakeha/NZ European, 8 per cent as New Zealander,
11.1 per cent Mäori, 14.4 per cent Pacific Island and
18.9 per cent Asian. Two-thirds of New Zealand’s
Pacific Island and Asian residents live in the Auckland
region.

Chapter 1: . Overview
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An exciting place to live

Auckland is a city with a wide range of leisure
choices, with world-class theatres, art galleries and
a wide range of retail opportunities. Aucklanders
enjoy all sorts of activities, whether sports or cultural
events or dining at a top-class restaurant. Our parks
and gardens, combined with a safe, easy-going
atmosphere, allow Aucklanders to enjoy a high
quality lifestyle.

A rich heritage

Auckland is a region of harbours and volcanoes,
which support a remarkable diversity of habitats.
Working in partnership with the community, the ARC
has had considerable success in raising awareness
of the region’s heritage and conserving its precious
resources. Significant advances have been made
toward the long-term protection of the region’s
important landscapes and conserving significant
ecological and historic resources.

The environment

The ARC protects the natural environment by
seeking to minimise the effects of development on
the region’s air, land and water. We look after the
region’s coast and marine areas and work with local
councils to improve stormwater and wastewater
discharges. We also co-ordinate community
conservation programmes and respond to pollution
incidents.

Economy and business

Auckland is New Zealand’s economic powerhouse,
with a reputation for innovation and business
opportunities. One third of the nation’s workforce
and 38 per cent of all business enterprises are based
here. The region provides 35 per cent of the
country’s jobs, with one in five Aucklanders working
in the manufacturing industry, contributing an
estimated $5.5 billion a year to the economy. Over
70 per cent of New Zealand’s imports and 40 per
cent of exports come through Auckland’s ports.

Becoming world class

Auckland is New Zealand’s gateway to the world,
services 26 international airlines, and flies daily air
freight to the US, Europe and Asia. It has ports that
connect with 160 others in 73 countries.
Comprehensive logistics and distribution support an
export/import infrastructure for physical and
electronic trade, as does our world-standard
telecommunications industries. Three universities,
two polytechnics and numerous industry training
organisations, partnering with the business sector,
ensure skilled graduates, while public and private
research centres support and create new commercial
opportunities.

What's important to the Auckland regional community

The Auckland region has undergone significant change over the last few decades, creating new
opportunities as well as ongoing challenges.

Four years ago, the Auckland Regional Council led a comprehensive process of engagement with people
from across the region to ascertain what they desired with respect to social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being, now and into the future. This process led to the development of a suite of
community outcomes and the ARC's key groups of activities which are outlined in its Long-Term Council
Community Plan 2006-16.

In 2009, a report was produced to outline progress towards achieving these outcomes. This overview
was prepared in the midst of some significant changes for the Auckland region (refer section 1.1 Chairman
and Chief Executive's report for further detail). It describes the main issues and trends across each of
the 20 regional outcomes and indicates general progress within them. The report has drawn from a variety
of sources and should be read in conjunction with the monitoring reports prepared by other councils in
the region. A copy of the Report on progress towards Auckland Regional Outcomes is available from
the ARC (see section 5.4 at the back of this document for contact details).

Chapter 1: . Overview
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1.3 About your regional council

Our vision

The Auckland region – a great place to live

Ko Papatuanuka te matua o te tangata

Our mission

To work in partnership with the regional
community to achieve social, economic, cultural
and environmental well-being

Toitu te marae o Tane
Toitu te marae oTangaroa
Toitu te iwi

Our identity

The Auckland Regional Council is a public statutory
body constituted under the Local Government Act
2002. The act sets out the council’s objectives and
purposes and defines a number of its functions and
powers.

Our role

We are charged with leading the Auckland region –
its communities and businesses – in creating a
positive future for all Aucklanders and their
environment.

Our commitment

The council’s role is to protect the region’s air, soil
and water from pollution, to ensure these resources
are always available as Auckland develops and its
population grows, and to manage the increasing
demands on the region’s transport systems,
including public transport. We provide a varied range
of coastal and other parks so Aucklanders can escape
to great open spaces. In short, our role is to help
make Auckland a pleasurable place to live.

Our community

What the region will ultimately look like is up to the
wider regional community. It’s up to you to tell us
what you want, and for us to listen and protect what
you value. As residents, you are our main clients.
We welcome your feedback, good and bad, and
encourage you to take an active role in Auckland’s
future.

Our promise

Your Region, Your Future, the ARC’s Long -Term
Council Community Plan for 2006-16, marked the
beginning of a new approach by the ARC to create
a vision, in partnership with Aucklanders, for the
ongoing development of the region. The plan
identified the objectives you felt were important,
determined the main issues the council faced in
meeting these goals, set targets and established
indicators for measuring our performance. During
2008/09, the LTCCP was updated, and In June the
Council adopted the LTCCP 2009-19.

Our partnerships

The ARC does not manage the effects of growth
alone. Many private and public organisations are
responsible for providing the infrastructure necessary
to accommodate andmanage the impacts of growth,
such as energy networks, transport systems,
stormwater and wastewater services. There are also
many others that manage the provision of social
infrastructure like schools and hospitals while
business groups, such as land developers, also have
an important part to play.

For further detail on the Auckland Regional Council
please refer to Chapter 3.

Chapter 1: . Overview

10

A
uc
kl
an
d
R
eg
io
na
lC

ou
nc
il
|A

nn
ua
lR

ep
or
t
09



1.4 Performance highlights 2008/09

Engaged with the Royal Commission on
Auckland’s governance and worked with the
Government and Auckland Transition Agency
to assist with the establishment of the new
Auckland Council by November 2010.
Reached agreement with the Government for
a joint purchase of Queen’s Wharf to provide
public access to the wharf in time for Rugby
World Cup 2011 and for development of a
cruise ship terminal.
Provided $93.16 million in operating funding
and $69.51 million in capital funding to ARTA,
which enabled ARTA to make improvements
to Auckland’s public transport, including rail
station and ferry terminal upgrades, improved
bus services, additional rail services, provision
of a trial rail service to Helensville, and
undertake the tender process for the integrated
ticketing project.
Developed plans for a wildlife open sanctuary
at Shakespear Regional Park on the eastern
end of Whangaparaoa peninsula.

Commenced a review of the Regional Parks
Management Plan.
Expanded overnight accommodation facilities
on a number of regional parks.
Reduced the negative impact of motor vehicles
on beaches such as Muriwai.
Established integrated pest management
control areas at Awhitu and South Kaipara,
funded by a new targeted rate.
Extended rates postponements to owners of
farmland that is outside the metropolitan urban
limit, as well as owners of coastal farmland.
Implemented a number ofmeasures to prevent
the spread of kauri dieback disease, which is
killing kauri trees in the Waitakere Ranges and
other locations across the region.
Contributed to a regional funding pool that
improved the governance structure for Tourism
Auckland, whichworked to improve destination
management and tourism promotion for
Auckland.
Developed an action plan for Whangateau
harbour to provide greater environmental
protection for the area.

For further detail on our performance by groups of activities, please refer to Chapter 2.

Chapter 1: . Overview
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1.5 Financial overview

This overview describes the ARC’s financial performance for the year ending 30 June 2009, including what
we planned to spend, what we delivered including total income, cost of services and capital expenditure, the
financial trends for the last five years, and our income and expenditure over the last five years. For detailed
financial information please refer to Chapter 4.

What we planned to spend

The ARC's Annual Plan 2008/09 projected an income
of $292.0 million, of which 50 per cent was to come
from rates, 38 per cent from Auckland Regional
Holdings (ARH) distributions and the balance from
various service fees, grants and facilities income and
investment income. The income from ARH was to
cover Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA)
capital expenditure, a contribution towards ARTA’s
operating expenditure, funding of the Stormwater
Action Plan and the ARC’s Council-Controlled
Organisations unit. ARTAwas planned to receive 93
per cent of the ARH distributions to ARC, excluding
ARH’s funding of ex-Infrastructure Auckland
transport grant liabilities.

The overall rate requirement was projected to be
$146.3million, representing an average per ratepayer
increase (allowing for growth) of 4.95 per cent
including inflation.

Total operating expenditure was projected to be
$299.3 million, including $179.4 million funding to
ARTA for operating and capital expenditure and $84.1
million for professional services and human resource
costs.

A net operating deficit of $7.3 million was forecast.

Capital expenditure was planned at $18.8 million.

What we delivered

ARC income in 2008/09 was $275.9 million of which
54 per cent came from rates and 34 per cent from
ARH distributions and the balance from various
service fees, grants and facilities income and
investment income. The income from ARH
distributions was $15.3 million below plan, mainly
due to the reduced funding required to fund ARTA’s
capital expenditure. ARTA still received 94 per cent
of the ARH distributions to ARC, excluding ARH’s
funding of ex Infrastructure Auckland transport grant
liabilities.

Revenue from rates, at $148.4 million, was 1.4 per
cent ahead of plan.

Total operating expenditure was $291.0 million,
including $162.7 million funding to ARTA and $84.9
million for professional services and human resource
costs.

A net operating deficit of $15.1 million was
generated in the year. Included in this deficit is an
$8.0 million increase in the provision for landfill
aftercare costs as a result of a change in estimate
of future landfill aftercare costs and a change in the
estimated period of future liability from 30 years to
100 years. Without this increase in provisions, the
net operating deficit would have been $7.1 million.

Capital expenditure of $15.9 million was invested
into the region. Significant purchases included the
Te Arai Point Land at $4.8 million and the
Tapapakanga property for $1.1 million.

Total capital expenditureTotal cost of services*Total income*

*Includes internal interest income of $6.4 million

Chapter 1: . Overview
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Financial Trends

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Actual
2008/09
$millions

Actual
2007/08
$millions

Actual
2006/07
$millions

Actual
**2005/06
$millions

Actual
2004/05
$millions

168,626.0151,910.0145,376.087,400.077,800.0Regional land value

148.4137.3126.6119.2109.2Rates revenue

33.132.556.227.669.3Other income*

94.4106.646.330.725.5ARH distribution income

(291.0)(252.6)(195.1)(176.2)(213.2)Operating expenditure****

----815.5Net gain on acquisition of subsidiaries

(15.1)23.834.01.3806.3Net surplus/ (deficit) *

15.944.78.231.935.5Capital expenditure

252.2246.0210.2202.2176.2Property, plant and equipment ***

1,010.01,025.21.001.4967.3964.6Total equity*

0.490.670.810.580.79Current ratio

$299.38$281.66$264.89$248.90$236.23Average rate per property

* A significant surplus of $806.3 million was earned in 2004/05, primarily as a result of the net gain to the ARC on the creation of
ARH and ARTA ($815.5 million). Total assets grew substantially in 2004/05 as a result of the formation of ARH. A surplus of $34
million was earned in 2006/07, primarily as a result of an unplanned receipt of $21.3 million relating to the Crown reimbursement
of costs incurred by the ARC for double tracking of the western rail line . A surplus of $23.8 million was earned in 2007/08 primarily
as a result of an unplanned income from ARH of $23.50 million to fund the purchase of land at Wynyard Precinct.

** 2005/06 figures have been restated where applicable under IFRS.

*** From 2005/06 the figures represent Property, Plant and Equipment only; Intangible Assets are excluded.

**** Included in the 2008/09 operating expenditure is $8.0 million resulting from an increase in the landfill aftercare provision due
to a change in estimate of the future costs of landfill aftercare, and a change in the estimated period of future liability from 30
years to 100 years.
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Income by year

Rates revenue increases over the years is partially
attributable to the increasing number of rate payers
in the Auckland region.

The drop in other income from 2004/05 to 2005/06
reflects the change in payment of the New Zealand
Transport Agency (NZTA) funding. Since ARTA’s
establishment on 1 December 2004 this funding is
now paid directly to ARTAwhereas previously it was
paid to the ARC.

Other income increased significantly in 2006/07 due
to the unplanned funding of $21.3 million from the
Crown for past rail expenditure and $7.0million being
the value of the donated park at Atiu Creek.

Since 1 July 2004, the ARC has received income
from ARHwhich is primarily used to support ARTA’s
expenditure for passenger transport and associated
activities. ARH distribution income fluctuates in
relation to ARTA’s funding requirements for
operating costs and capital purchases. The large
increase in 2007/08 was due in part to $25.0 million
funding fromARH to enable ARC to acquireWynyard
precinct land for parks purposes and $8.5 funding
from ARH for the purchase of land at Onehunga.

Investment return

Income from ratepayers is invested when it is
received, until it is expended throughout the financial
year. In 2008/09 the ARC achieved a return on
external investment income of 7.6 per cent. This
compared favourably with the market 30 day rate of
5.48 per cent.

Activity cost of services by year

Expenditure in the chart above includes spending
from all funding sources, not just rates, but only
incorporates ARTA operating and capital expenditure
that has been funded by the ARC.

Since 1 December 2004, the ARC has provided
funding to ARTA. Since then ARTA funding has
increased year on year, reflecting the increase in
ARTA’s operating and capital costs.

The spending associated with the majority of NZTA
funding is now included within ARTA's accounts
whereas prior to ARTA’s establishment this was part
of the ARC’s expenditure. This accounts for the
reduction in 2005/06 compared with the previous
year.

Operating deficit

The net operating deficit of $15.1 million for the year
ended 30 June 2009 comprised the following items:

An additional $2.0m in rates collected mainly
attributed to higher valuations on properties
and a beneficial mix of discounts and penalties.
Rate funding of loan repayments of $2.10
million.

Partially offset by the following:

Utilisation of transport ring-fenced reserves of
$4.9 million for ARTA operating and capital
expenditure.
Utilisation of accumulated reserves within
retained earnings of $3.5 million.
Change in estimate of the landfill aftercare
provision of $8.0 million.
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Chapter 2: Our performance by
groups of activities

Our Long-Term Council Community Plan (LTCCP) 2006-16 is based on the priorities, or outcomes, identified
by Aucklanders as being most important to achieving a liveable and sustainable region. The ARC has identified
seven areas in which it will play a leading role in achieving those outcomes over the period of 2006-16, and
established corresponding activity groups to deliver them.

This chapter reports on our performance within each of our groups of activities (refer to the following table).
Each activity group section includes details on:

the contribution of our activities toward community outcomes;
the influence of those activities on the four well-beings;
the overall cost;
what we achieved in 2008/09 along with our performance against levels of service measures; and
a look forward at what's planned in LTCCP 2009-19.
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Page
Chapter contents:

17TransportGroups of Activities

1. Land Transport Strategy
2. Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) operating and capital funding

24Built environment

1. Auckland Regional Growth Strategy

29Natural environment & heritage

1. Stormwater management and Pollution response
2. Freshwater management
3. Coastal management
4. Land management
5. Improving air quality
6. Natural heritage conservation and Biosecurity
7. Cultural heritage conservation
8. Planning for the future

56Economic development

1. Economic development

62Regional leadership & community development

1. Regional coordination and external relations
2. Democracy services
3. Te Hononga Māori
4. Sustainable schools and communities

74Regional parks

1. Looking after our regional parks
2. Auckland Botanic Gardens
3. New regional parks
4. Farming on regional parks
5. Mt Smart stadium
6. Visitor services

83Safety

1. Hazards management
2. Civil defence emergency management
3. The Harbourmaster
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2.1 Transport

This group is comprised of two activities:

1. Land Transport Strategy

2. Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) operating and capital funding

Chapter 2: . Our performance by groups of activities
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2.1.1 The transport activities contribute to the
following community outcomes:

Aucklanders have access to a range of
affordable and safe ways to move people and
goods,
A thriving regional economy that supports a
good standard of living,
Central government, the ARC, the community,
local councils and businesses work together
to achieve results,
The needs of women are recognised and
addressed,
Safer neighbourhoods and public places.

2.1.2 Influence on the four well-beings

These activities had no negative impact on the
environmental, social, cultural or economic
well-being of the region.

2.1.3 What did it cost overall?

Total cost of services in $millions

170.3Actual

186.8Planned

16.5Variance*

* Actual costs were lower than plan for 'Transport'
activities due to slippage in timeframes for delivery
of some transport projects.

Please refer to section 4.8 for further breakdown of
the activity cost of services.
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2.1.4 What did we achieve?

2.1.4.1 Highlights

Activity 1: Land Transport Strategy

Progressed the development of a newRegional
Land Transport Strategy (RLTS). Changes to
the Land Transport Management Act in August
2008 resulted in a change to the timing of the
new RLTS. It is expected that consultation on
the draft RLTS 2010 will commence in
November 2009, with a new RLTS approved
in April 2010.
Consultation on the draft Regional Parking
Strategy took place in mid 2008 with hearings
in November. The Regional Parking Strategy
was published in March 2009.

Activity 2: ARTA operating and capital funding

A total of 58.6m trips weremade on Auckland’s
public transport network, an increase of 7.7
per cent over the previous year.
The ARC provided $93.16 million in operating
funding and $69.51 million in capital funding to
ARTA in 2008/09. This funding enabled ARTA
to:

Provide additional rail services on new
trains, including additional services to
Pukekohe.
Progress a number of rail station
upgrades, including at Newmarket and
Morningside. ARTA also undertook
design and planning work for station
upgrades at New Lynn, Grafton and
Avondale, and for new stations at
Manukau, Onehunga and Parnell.
Reinstate passenger rail services to
Helensville as a trial from July 2008
(including new stations at Huapai and
Waimauku).
Make significant improvements to bus
services in the Botany, Mission Heights
and Flat Bush areas, on Mt Eden Road,
and on the North Shore (including an
integrated North Shore to Auckland
airport ticket).
Introduce bus services to Highbrook and
Stonefields.
Make improvements to a number of ferry
facilities, with work undertaken at
Downtown, Half Moon Bay and Gulf
Harbour ferry terminals.
Progress the tender process for the
integrated ticketing project. A preferred
tender has been selected, and the ARC
and ARTA now await confirmation of
NZTA funding, before implementing the
integrated ticketing project.
Provide assistance for selected groups
of passengers, including the
implementation of the SuperGold card,
which offers free travel for senior citizens
after 9am.
Improve passenger information with the
installation of additional real time
information signs.
Reduce car trips to school, with 180
schools now having TravelWise plans (or
being in the process of developing a plan).
Develop the 2009-19 Auckland Transport
Plan and a new Auckland Regional Land
Transport Programme.
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2.1.4.2 Challenges

Activity 1: Land Transport Strategy

Uncertainty around changes in Auckland governance
due in November 2010.

Activity 2: ARTA operating and capital funding

The passing of the Land Transport Management
Amendment Act on 3 July 2008 gave the ARC the
ability to propose to the Government that a regional
fuel tax be levied, which was to provide long overdue
funding for electrification of Auckland’s rail network,
rail station upgrades, development of an integrated
ticketing system, and bus and ferry infrastructure
upgrades. The Government approved the regional
fuel tax scheme, and in November 2008 we
amended our LTCCP 2006-16 to include the Auckland
regional fuel tax and these public transport projects.

However, in mid-March 2009 the new Government
announced that it would withdraw the regional fuel
tax and purchase electric trains itself. The
Government also made an in-principle decision that
KiwiRail should own those new trains. At this time,
ARTAwas already part way through a tender process
for the new electric trains, and ARTA’s expression
of interest process has now been extended to
December 2009. While the Government has
announced its commitment to electrification, it has
not confirmed the timing of implementation or how
and when the new trains will be purchased. The
Government’s decisions leave the region with
considerable uncertainty about the future of rail
funding and governance and the fate of the
electrification project.

In addition, the removal of the fuel tax effectively
left the ARCwith a $202million funding gap for other
projects. Some of these projects had already
commenced. In order to finalise our LTCCP 2009-19,
the ARC decided to enter additional debt, and levy
slightly higher rates increases in the future to fund
the core elements of ARTA’s capital programme,
including integrated ticketing. However, some
capital expenditure has been deferred and
improvements are now likely to bemade at a slower
rate than previously anticipated.

In order to fund core elements of ARTA’s capital
programme, the ARC decided, during the
development of the LTCCP 2009-19, not to provide
funding to the local councils for investigation and
design work for the upgrade of level crossings.

2.1.4.3 Working with Maori

Cultural interests are represented on the
Regional Transport Committee by Pauline Kingi
from Te Puni Kokiri.
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2.1.5 Our performance against the levels of
service in the LTCCP2006-16/ Annual Plan
2008/09

Activity 1: Land transport strategy

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

N/ADevelopment of this measure was
not progressed as it was no longer
considered appropriate for the Annual
Report. It has been replaced in the
LTCCP 2009-19.

Achieve in 2008/09
and 2014/15

The policies of the Auckland RLTS will
be developed in accordance with the
ARC’s policy development processes
andwill meet or exceed the ARC policy
quality standards, as evaluated on a
three-yearly basis.

TS1
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Activity 2: ARTA operating and capital funding

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Achieved56.5 million trips
per annum in
2008/09 (This

Passenger transport patronage.TA1

target was
adjusted upward
from 52 million in
the annual plan)

100 million trips
per annum by
2015/16

Passenger transport patronage of
58.6 million trips was achieved, an
increase of 4.2 million trips over the
previous year.

On-going and
on-track for
2014 target

ARTA has translated the 11 per cent
mode share into a target of 100
million passenger transport trips by

11 per cent for
2016

Proportion of peak period trips made
by passenger transport.

TA2

2016. ARTA has not been fully
funded to achieve the Auckland RLTS
target, and advises that the
appropriate target for the funding
allocated in the LTCCP 2006-16 is 79
million trips by 2016 (a mode share
of approximately 9 per cent). Total
passenger transport patronage for
2008/09 was 58.6 million, an increase
of 7.7 per cent from 2007/08.

Not achievedThe annual funding agreement was
finalised in December 2008, later than
the target date, as a result of the

ARTA delivers on
public transport
activities and
capital projects

The ARC will, each year by 31 July,
enter into an annual funding agreement
with ARTA. The agreement will link
ARC’s funding to delivery of the

TA3

delay in finalising the regional fuel tax
passenger transport activities and
capital projects contained in ARTA’s
Land Transport Programme.

scheme. The funding agreementwas
finalised after the adoption of the
amended LTCCP 2006-16 which did
not occur until November 2008.

Not achievedPreparation by ARTA of the draft
RLTPwas later than normal this year,
due to late changes in the

The activities and
projects give effect
to Auckland RLTS

The ARC will, by 28 February each
year, review ARTA’s regional Land
Transport Programme (RLTP) to ensure

TA4

programmes submitted by the variousthat the activities and projects
organisations. The draft RLTP wascontained in the RLTP are consistent

with giving effect to the Auckland
RLTS.

reviewed at the April meeting of the
Transport and Urban Development
Committee. The ARC acknowledged
that the region-wide priorities listed
in the draft RLTPwere in line with the
strategic direction set by the 2005
RLTS. The ARC also acknowledged
that although it was not possible to
conclude that the Draft RLTP gives
effect to the RLTS at the project level
(because the RLTS is not permitted
to name projects), the draft RLTP
generally gave effect to the funding
allocation required by the RLTS.
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2.1.6 Looking forward

Activity 1: Land Transport Strategy

A review of the Regional Land Transport
Strategy is scheduled for completion in April
2010.

Activity 2: ARTA operating and capital funding

The ARC will continue to work with the
Government to ensure robust governance and
funding arrangements are put in place for
Auckland’s rail network, and will continue to
advocate to ensure the Government electrifies
the network.
ARTA will continue with its implementation of
the Passenger Transport Network Plan across
all modes, with the aim of putting in place a
simpler, more cost effective network, with
improved services.
ARTA capital programme will include:

Completion of remodelling at Newmarket
station
Reopening of the Onehunga line
Construction of New Lynn, Grafton and
Avondale stations
Upgrading the Kingsland station in time
for Rugby World Cup 2011
Providing smartcard integrated ticketing
for bus, rial and ferry services
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23

A
uckland

R
egionalC

ouncil|A
nnualR

eport
09



2.2 Built environment

This group is comprised of one activity:

1. Auckland Regional Growth Strategy
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2.2.1 The built environment activities contribute
to the following community outcomes:

Quality built environment,
Efficient energy use based on clean and reliable
resources,
A thriving regional economy that supports a
good standard of living,
Aucklanders have access to a range of
affordable and safe ways to move people and
goods,
Community health and well-being is supported
by a healthy environment where people have
access to appropriate health care,
Auckland’s population growth and migration
are well managed.

2.2.2 Influence on the four well-beings

These activities had no negative impact on the
environmental, social, cultural or economic
well-being of the region.

2.2.3 What did it cost overall?

Total cost of services in $millions

5.0Actual

7.2Planned

2.2Variance*

* Efficient use of resources across 'Built
environment' work programmes contributed to cost
of services being below plan by $2.2 million.

Please refer to section 4.8 for further breakdown of
the activity cost of services.
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2.2.4 What did we achieve?

2.2.4.1 Highlights

Activity 1: Auckland Regional Growth Strategy

Continued implementation of the
recommendations of the 2007 Regional Growth
Strategy Evaluation report.
Developed a classification for the region's town
centres and corridors.
Commenced work on developing future
landuse scenarios.
Worked closely with representatives from the
Government's Sustainable Urban Development
Unit and relevant territorial authorities to
progress the redevelopment of targeted areas,
for example Manukau Wiri, Northcote and
Avondale/New Lynn.
The ARC has purchased land at Onehunga to
facilitate urban development. A development
framework to investigate appropriate uses and
urban form is being prepared. The Onehunga
branch line forms the sites eastern boundary
and ARTA/Ontrack are reinstating the railway
and investigating the possibility of locating the
station on the ARC’s land.

2.2.4.2 Challenges

Activity 1: Auckland Regional Growth Strategy

Continued rapid population growth and the
sequencing of development and investment,
during a period of weak economic growth.
Integration of infrastructure planning and
investment.
Addressing housing affordability within a
sustainable urban form.
Achieving high quality intensification in town
centres.

2.2.4.3 Working with Maori

Activity 1: Auckland Regional Growth Strategy

Engagement on issues relating to the Regional
Growth Strategy has occurred with Mana
Whenua.
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2.2.5 Our performance against the levels of
service in the LTCCP 2006-16/ Annual Plan
2008/09

Activity 1: Auckland Regional Growth Strategy

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

AchievedIn July 2007 the Regional Sustainable
Development Forum (the successor of
the Regional Growth Forum) endorsed

Adopted by 4 July
2007

The Regional Sustainable
Development Forum (formerly the
Regional Growth Forum) adopts the
Regional Growth Strategy Evaluation
Report.

GS1

the Evaluation Report on the
implementation of the Regional Growth
Strategy.

N/ADevelopment of this measure was not
progressed as it was no longer
considered appropriate for the Annual
Report. It has been replaced in the LTCCP
2009-19.

Under
development -
not progressed

Achieve high standards of policy
development, as measured by a
policy quality assurance rating,
based on process compliance and
analytical quality.

GS2

N/ADevelopment of this measure was not
progressed as it was no longer
considered appropriate for the Annual
Report. It has been replaced in the LTCCP
2009-19.

Under
development -
not progressed

Achieve a high level of policy
acceptance, as measured by the
percentage of policies adopted by
the relevant local authorities and
government agencies.

GS3

Not achieved45 per centThe residents' consideration of
intensive housing as a suitable
housing choice for them is
increasing.

GS4

* This measure wasmodified for the
Annual plan 2008/09.

Note: 2005/06 result is not comparable
due to an error in the survey

Achieved75 per cent up to
2005/06

Public satisfaction with the look and
feel of their neighbourhood
increases.

GS5

80 per cent from
2006/07

Note: 2005/06 result is not comparable
due to an error in the survey

Next survey
due in 2011.

20 per centThe percentage of usually resident
population living in areas targeted
for intensification. (Five yearly
survey)

GS6
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StatusResultsTargetMeasures

AchievedThis data is sourced from the ARC’s
Capacity for Growth Studies (the most
recent Study is based upon 2006 data).

Ongoing
availability of
land, for at least
20 years

The ongoing availability of land, for
at least 20 years capacity, for
development and growth across the
region (Auckland Regional Growth
Strategy).

GS7

The 2006 Capacity Study applies to the
metropolitan area only, it does not include
rural towns.

These studies measure residential and
business development capacity based
upon the district plan policies of the
region’s seven local authorities.

The results of the 2006 study show the
following availability:

Residential development - 14 to 29
years
Business land development - 13 to
17 years

Residential availability is estimated by
comparing residential capacity (i.e.
supply) to household projections (i.e.
demand). High and low growth rates are
used to produce the range. Averaging
these two produce a single figure
equivalent to amedium projection of 21.5
years.

The range for business land is calculated
by extrapolating past rates of
consumption.

2.2.6 Looking forward

Activity 1: Auckland Regional Growth Strategy

Complete the evaluation of future land use and
transport scenarios.
The ARC has jointly purchased Queens Wharf
for the development of a primary cruise ship
terminal, waterfront public open space and a
‘live site’ for the Rugby World Cup in 2011.
Contribute to the preparation of an integrated
precinct plan for Onehunga in conjunction with
the planned transport improvements.
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2.3 Natural environment and heritage

This group is comprised of eight activities:

1. Stormwater management and pollution response

2. Freshwater management

3. Coastal management

4. Land management

5. Improving air quality

6. Natural heritage and Biosecurity

7. Cultural heritage conservation

8. Planning for the future
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2.3.1 The natural environment activities
contribute to the following community outcomes:

Efficient energy use based on clean and reliable
sources,
Community health and well-being is supported
by a healthy environment where people have
access to appropriate health care,
Aucklanders caring for and enjoying the natural
environment,
A thriving regional economy that supports a
good standard of living,
The ARC, the community, local and central
government, and business work together to
achieve results,
Recreational and leisure opportunities that offer
a range of experiences for all,
Aucklanders are educated and skilled, and have
access to appropriate learning and training
opportunities,
Neighbourhoods with a sense of community,
Open spaces and green places, now and in the
future,
Auckland’s special places are respected and
conserved,
The diversity of native species and habitats is
protected and restored,
The significant place of tangata whenua is
acknowledged and their role as kaitiaki is
recognised.

2.3.2 Influence on the four well-beings

These activities had no negative impact on the
environmental, social, cultural or economic
well-being of the region.

2.3.3 What did it cost overall?

Total cost of services in $millions

64.9Actual

52.4Planned

(12.5)Variance*

* The variance is due to a change in estimate of
future landfill aftercare costs, which meant an
increase of $8.0 million to the landfill aftercare
provisions.

Please refer to section 4.8 for further breakdown of
the activity cost of services.
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2.3.4 What did we achieve?

2.3.4.1 Highlights

Activity 1: Stormwatermanagement and pollution

response

Stormwater programme:

$1.5 million provided to assist local authorities
to prepare Integrated CatchmentManagement
Plans.
Continued promotion of Low Impact Design
(LID) and for the fourth year, ARC and Housing
New Zealand jointly sponsored the University
of Auckland student competition to reduce
stormwater runoff and water pollution in new
housing developments and re-developments.
Awarded six grants under the Low Impact
Design Innovative Grant (LIDIG) programme
for 2008 - 10 development.
Completed the Central Waitemata Harbour and
Southeastern Manukau Harbour studies that
assessed long term trends in contaminant and
sediment accumulation, and explored general
options to mitigate adverse impacts.
Completed regional flood hazard mapping.
Completed local flood hazard mapping of the
Papakura Stream Catchment.
Provided seminars, training, technical advice
and practical research to improve regional
capacity and stormwater management,
including integrated catchment planning,
stormwater contaminants, flooding and
wastewater overflows.
Continued to monitor the level of stormwater
contaminants of 58 coastal areas.

Consents and compliance

Watercare Services Limited (WSL) was granted
a consent to use the decommissioned Pond 2
at Mangere as a landfill (sewage solids) in
2007/08. Following appeals by Watercare and
other parties, a consent order was approved
before December 2008.
Watercare Services Ltd consent applications
for disposal of bio-solids at the Puketutu Island
were processed. Decision to decline has been
appealed.
Applications for stormwater network discharge
consents from the local authorities continue to
be processed.

The Rodney District Council network discharge
consents for Orewa and Stanmore Bay were
granted.
Consent applications were granted to construct
rail trenches at New Lynn town centre and
Hayman Park, Manukau.

Pollution response:

The Pollution Response Team dealt with 3642
incidents, Of these 1488 were water/land incidents
while the remaining 2154 were Air Quality
complaints.

Pollution control projects included:

educational programmes included
presentations to schools and community
groups, review and development of educational
material available to public/industry, including
production of our first multi-lingual pollution
factsheet,
work with industry included meetings,
presentations and work with the region’s main
roading contractors to improve their
environmental practices,
ongoing work with the Wastewater Network
Group to review the Dry Weather Sewer
Overflow, Best Management Practice
Guideline,
through the Hazardous Substance Technical
Liaison Committee, relations have been built
and further work will be undertaken with other
parties such as the New Zealand Fire Service,
Auckland Regional Public Health Service
(ARPHS) and Department of Labour (DOL)
regarding responsibilities and coordination of
response to major incidents.

Compliance monitoring resulted in:

116 infringement notices, which is 25 per cent
more than the previous year,
82 abatement notices issued, which is 32 per
cent more than the previous year.
4 court prosecutions achieved.
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Activity 2: Freshwater management

Planning, monitoring and investigations:

Completed an ecological assessment of the
Papakura Stream, including application of the
Stream Ecological Valuation (SEV) at the
catchment scale to provide critical information
to support stormwater management in the
catchment.
Progressed the completion of a management
plan for the use and protection of Waiheke
groundwater.
Continued with an ongoing contribution and
response to the Government’s Sustainable
Water Programme of Action.
Policy was developed to support initiatives
being undertaken in the stormwater
management programme.
Current stormwater policy objectives were
reviewed and possible options investigated for
inclusion in the Regional Policy Statement
review and future variations to the Proposed
Auckland Regional Plan: Air, Land and Water.
An investigation commenced on how
catchmentmanagement planning is applied by
the ARC, to support policy development for
the Auckland Regional Policy Statement review.
An investigation of the management of
headwater streams and stock access to water
bodies as part of the sediment review has been
undertaken.
The freshwater quality monitoring programme
was reviewed to identify redundancy and
duplication in the monitoring network and
sample processing. These refinements allowed
an increase in the regional coverage and
representativeness of the monitoring
programme.
A record number of sites in the freshwater
ecologymonitoring programmewere sampled
in 2009 (66).
The Stream Ecosystems Evaluation
methodology was incorporated into the state
of the environment monitoring network. A
major milestone was met with the acceptance
for publication in an international scientific
journal of a manuscript describing the SEV
methodology.
The water quality of seven of Auckland’s lakes
was inferred using a unique approach, where
the response of tiny zooplankton species were
measured and used to determine productivity.
Lake Ototoa had the best water quality, while
Lake Spectacle had the poorest.

Compliance of the hydrological monitoring
network with rules in the Proposed Auckland
Regional Plan: Air, Land and Water is nearing
completion. Resource consent for the
Mahurangi River weir has been obtained
relating to the provision of fish passage.
Resource consents for the remaining three
non-complaint structures; Mangawheau,
Whangamarie and Oteha are being processed.
A total of 270 grass carp were successfully
released into Lake Wainamu in March 2009 in
order to eradicate the aquatic weed egeria.
The publication of “Fish Passage in the
Auckland Region- a synthesis of current
research” provided a comprehensive review
of the most up-to-date information available on
designing and retrofitting in-stream structures
to allow for themigration of native fish species.
A joint research and monitoring project
between the ARC and Watercare Services Ltd
was completed. Using a combination of
set-nets and electric fishing, a total of 250 sites
were surveyed in the Hunua Ranges Regional
Park. Six native fish species and three
introduced ones were captured.
A new population of the rare black mudfish
was discovered near Helensville.

Consents and compliance

75 rural complaints were investigated these
included dead animals in watercourses,stock
access to watercourses, dairy effluent run off,
vegetable washwater discharge and offal holes.
330 dairy inspections were completed and 45
per cent of farms surveyed received a full
compliance rating, 32 percent received a minor
non-compliance rating, 15 percent received a
moderate non-compliance rating, and 8 percent
received a major non-compliance rating. All
farms not fully compliant have received
follow-up inspections to resolve outstanding
issues.
The third phase of rural dam inspections took
place in west Rodney, Waitakere, and
Mahurangi, as part of the Rural Dams Strategy.
The focus of the next phase will be on-stream
dams requiring consents.
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Activity 3: Coastal management

Planning, monitoring and investigations:

Developed policy to support variations to the
Regional Plan: Coastal for aquaculture, coastal
occupation and charging, downtownwaterfront
development, and mangrove management.
Developed policy to improve the integrated
management of the Kaipara Harbour coastal
environment.
Continued to identify regionally significant
coastal habitats and promote management
controls necessary to sustain the functions of
the most highly valued areas.
Through the Coastal Enhancement Fund,
$441,000 was allocated to community groups
for projects in the coastal area during 2008/09
that address environmental enhancement,
safety and navigation, and public works and
infrastructure.
Continued support of the Waitemata Harbour
Clean-up Trust that collects rubbish discharged
into the harbour.
Submissions and further submissions to Plan
change 2 to the Regional Coastal Plan (coastal
occupation charging) were received following
public notification in July and in September
2007. Hearing arrangements await output of
the review of the New Zealand Coastal Policy
statement.
Plan Change 3 to the Regional Plan: Coastal
(Wynyard Quarter waterfront development)
was notified for submissions in July and for
further submissions in October 2007. The
Council’s decisions were notified on 29
November 2008. Twelve appeals to the plan
change were subsequently lodged with the
Environment Court.
Plan Change 4 to the Regional Plan: Coastal
(mangrove management) was notified for
submissions in October 2007 and for further
submissions in March 2008. The decisions of
the Hearing Committee were endorsed by the
Regional Strategy and Planning Committee in
February 2009, with public notification of the
decision on 16 February 2009. Three appeals
to the plan change have subsequently been
lodged with the Environment Court.
The saline water monitoring programme was
reviewed to identify gaps in the geographic
coverage of the monitoring network.
An investigation of the marine ecosystem in
the Weiti estuary was undertaken as a
precursor to evaluating the impact of land
development on the estuary and Karepiro Bay.

The ARC and Northland Regional Council jointly
released “Review of Environmental Information
on the Kaipara Harbour Marine Environment”.
This report summarised the environmental
information that is available for the Kaipara
Harbour coastal environment, with a primary
focus on the coastal marine area.
A comprehensive survey of coastal use was
completed using the Big Clean Up database.

Consents and compliance

Applications for rodent eradication in Hauraki
Gulf were granted.
The Department of Conservation in partnership
with the ARC was granted consent for
deposition of sand at Muriwai associated with
the reconfiguration of the carpark and provision
of beach access.
Sandspit Marina Yacht club have applied for a
discretionary activity consent to establish a
new marina in the Matakana River near
Sandspit.
Papakura District Council was granted consent
for the removal of mangrove forest from 27.6
hectares at Pahurehure Inlet no. 2, Manukau
Harbour.
Auckland City Council was granted consent for
a boat launching ramp and the associated
occupation and use of the coastal marine are
at St. Heliers Beach.
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Activity 4: Land management

Planning, monitoring and investigations:

Contributed to the development of a national
standard for the use of contaminated land and
implemented a monitoring programme to
determine the health of the region’s soil
resources and identify high risk areas for soil
erosion.
Contributed to the “Inter-council Working
Party” investigation of GMO issues.
The review of the Regional Plan: Sediment
Control and sediment generating activities in
the Proposed Auckland Regional Plan: Air, Land
and Water is progressing to schedule.
Resolution of appeals to the Auckland Regional
Plan: Air, Land and Water continues with
settlements on Management Areas,
Contaminated Land, Fertiliser Use, Land
Management, Discharges from Production
Land Activities, Water Allocation (all sections)
and Beds of Lakes and Rivers (all sections).
A soil quality and soil erosion monitoring
framework was implemented.
A framework for a community knowledge
network (an interpretivemodel) was completed
as part of the evaluation of the Auckland
Regional Plan: Sediment Control. The model
will be used to evaluate the likely effectiveness
of combinations of management practices and
the economic benefit of mitigation measures
and will contribute to determining areas of risk
for sediment generation.
Completed a survey of the extent of fencing
of streams in pastoral areas of the Auckland
region. Additional information of riparian
vegetation and stream bank stability was also
collected.
A Sustainable Catchments Programme was
adopted, bringing together several catchment
based programmes under a common
framework to co-ordinate ARC engagement
and implementation projects, initially focused
on the Mahurangi, Whangateau and Kaipara
Catchments and Harbours.
Under the Sustainable Catchments Programme,
an implementation plan for the Whangateau
Catchment and Harbour was developed with
iwi and community to protect and enhance the
harbour from current and future environmental
degradation.

Under the Sustainable Catchments Programme,
technical and funding assistance was provided
to landowners and community groups on
riparian protection and restoration in the
Mahurangi Catchment; 39 farm plans were
produced; and a document describing the
catchment and harbour, and wider issues was
completed to inform development of a
Catchment Plan that will be developed during
2009/10.
Under the Sustainable Catchments Programme,
the ARC continues to participate in the
Integrated Kaipara Harbour Management
Group, and the ARC commenced scopingwork
with the Primary SectorWater Group to engage
with the community in the Hoteo catchment
in the Kaipara Harbour.
The Mahurangi Action Plan fenced 4.54
kilometres of riparian margin. The Watercare
funded and ARC managed Waitakere River
Wairoa River project fenced 0.25 and 0.93
kilometres respectively, of riparian margin in
2008/09 to improve stream and harbour water
quality. Through the Environmental Initiatives
Fund, 24 km was fenced during the twelve
month period in 2008.
Continued to manage the aftercare of four
closed landfills to protect the environment from
leachate and gas emissions.

Consents and compliance

Albany High School was granted a consent for
new high school.
New Brew Manukau - NZ Breweries was
granted an industrial and trade waste process
and an air quality consent.
Recapping disused landfill - Ports of Auckland
were granted consent to undertake earthworks
associated with a disused landfill at Onehunga
to facilitate the construction of a bond store.
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Activity 5: Improving air quality

Planning, monitoring and investigations:

Continued implementation of a regional
campaign to raise awareness of the
environmental and health impacts of domestic
fire emissions and educate fire owners on
cleaner burning practises.
“Breathe easy and save money” and “Check
your chimney” leaflets were distributed to
435,000 households as inserts in suburban
newspapers.
Radio promotions about domestic fires and air
quality involving MaiFM, Radio Samoa, Radio
Tarana and 531PI were broadcast involving a
modern Maori legend based around Tawhiri
Matea, the Maori god of wind, and two
characters Paora and Pukeko, as well as
questions and answers targeted at Indian and
Samoan communities.
Partnered with the New Zealand Fire Service
to produce a brochure on backyard (outdoor)
burning and safety issues, which will be
distributed by the New Zealand Fire Service.
Wood burner testingwas undertaken to assess
how much effect wood moisture, wood size,
wood type and burner type have on the amount
of PM10 particles being emitted from wood
burners. This information will be used to help
determine the policies most likely to be
effective in reducing PM10 pollution in Auckland.
Relocated mobile trailers to two new sites in
Waiuku and on Waiheke Island for air quality
monitoring.
The regional air quality monitoring network
continued to operate with a planned expansion
to better assess representative health exposure
in the region.
Key knowledge gaps in the emissions inventory
continued to be identified and addressed.
Policies were developed and assessed for
delivering necessary reductions in domestic
emissions.
Air quality management strategies were
developed for the airsheds in the region.
Trends in air quality and air emissions were
monitored and evaluated against targets to
predict likely future compliance.
Data was updated and analysed to confirm the
contributions of different pollution sources in
the Auckland region.

Consents and compliance

Genesis Energy Limited was granted approval
for the construction and operation of a 480MW
power station at Kaukapakapa. An appeal
relating to three conditions of consent was
received from Genesis Power Limited and a
draft consent order to settle the appeal has
been circulated to the section 274 parties.
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Activity 6A: Natural heritage conservation

Annual ecological monitoring was completed
in regional parkland in theWaitakere and Hunua
Ranges, and at Tawharanui. A comprehensive
monitoring programme for High Conservation
Value sites was completed to assess ecological
health of forest areas on private and public land.
Advice and assistance was given throughout
the region to landowners and community
groups on the protection and restoration of
New Zealand’s biodiversity, with particular
focus on the rural community. Assistance was
given to 350 landowners, schools and
community groups involved in restoration
projects.
Implemented regional ecological corridors
including the Northwest Link, in partnership
with the community.
Advocated for the protection of Auckland’s
Volcanic Cones through initiating the
development of an education booklet, and the
review of regional policy.
Continued with implementation of the
Tawharanui Open Sanctuary and progressed
the operational plan for an open sanctuary at
Shakespear Regional Park.
Provided advice and assistance to Waitakere
Forest and Bird with the implementation of Ark
in the Park.
About 90,000 native trees were planted by
volunteers and ARC staff as part of the
revegetation project in Regional Parks, and
there were further dune plantings at Muriwai,
Shakespear and Long Bay.
Planning for the implementation of Shakespear
Open Sanctuary was progressed. Construction
of the pest proof fence will commence in
2009/10. Shakespear Open Sanctuary Society
Inc (SOSSI) was successful with its application
to the Ministry for the Environment’s
Sustainable Management Fund for funding
towards construction of the pest proof fence
at Shakespear.
The Hunua kokako population increased to 18
pairs in 2008/09 as a result of ongoing intensive
pest management inside the 1100ha
management area. At least 58 young have
fledged since joint ARC/DOC management
began in 1994.

Species conservation projects on the regional
parks included further releases of pateke to
Tawharanui Open Sanctuary in February and
May 2009, and the release of fourteen kakariki
in March 2009. To date seven missing species
have been reintroduced (forest and Auckland
green geckos, North Island brown kiwi, pateke,
North Island robin, whitehead and kakariki) to
Tawharanui Open Sanctuary in partnership with
Tawharanui Open Sanctuary Society.
Further releases of kiwi at Tawharanui Open
Sanctuary brought the founding population to
45 kiwi in total. A total of 6 kiwi chicks hatched
at Tawharanui this season from two pairs. This
is the first breeding population established on
the mainland in 60 years.
A further release of North Island robin to Ark
in the Park in Cascade Kauri Park by Waitakere
Forest and Bird was undertaken in June 2009
to supplement initial transfers in 2004/5. The
2008/09 breeding season for robins in the Ark
was successful with 13 fledglings produced.
During the 2008/09 season, robins bred
successfully at all of the recent release sites,
and whiteheads bred successfully at
Tawharanui Open Sanctuary.
The Heritage team provided a significant
amount of specialist advice into statutory
processes, ranging from pre-application
meetings, through to hearings including the Te
Arai proposed development, Albany High
School Waterview State Highway 20, Rodney
Power Station, Matakana and Hunua Quarries,
Hauraki Gulf District Plan, Ann’s Creek, and the
Waiheke Airpark appeal. Ongoing advice has
been provided on the Project Manukau Bird
Roost Management Plan and the North Shore
Busway. Heritage advice has also been
provided for a review of the Auckland Regional
Policy Statement.
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Activity 6B: Biosecurity

Implementation of new measures in the
Auckland Regional Pest Management Strategy
2007-2012, particularly in High Conservation
Value waterbodies and integrated site-led
control of animal pests at many High
Conservation Value sites.
A significant increase in biosecurity projects in
the Hauraki Gulf was achieved, including
additional pest plant control at Great Barrier
and Waiheke and improved pest surveillance
and Argentine ant control at Great Barrier.
The Waitakere Feral Pig Programme was
increased to twice-annual control across the
Ranges, with over 340 pigs culled, a significant
decrease in complaints of pig damage, and
widespread community support of the
programme.
The area under community pest control
increased from 45,000 ha to 56,000 ha. The
Strategic Weed Initiative programme at Piha
covered over 300 properties.
The Hunua Ranges and buffer zone feral goat
programme continued successfully, with feral
goat numbers continuing to fall.
A major effort was mounted to protect kauri in
the Auckland region against kauri dieback
(Phytophthora taxon Agathis), with surveys of
regional parkland and private land, signage,
publicity, development of standard operating
procedures, research; and deployment of
extensive phytosanitary measures for tracks
in the Waitakere Ranges, ARC vehicles,
contractors, concessionaires and key users.
The Lake Wainamu pest fish programme
continued successfully, with release of grass
carp to eradicate submerged pest plants.
Parks ecological weedmanagement highlights
included large scale pampas control from
Whatipu to Piha, and new projects at Atiu
Creek and Big Muddy Creek. Weed surveys
were conducted on all new regional parkland.
Feral deer were removed from Awhitu
peninsula, West Rodney and Kaipara South
Head peninsula.
Low incidence pest plant control included all
23 sites of spartina grass in the Manukau
Harbour, with only seven sites requiring
follow-up treatment.
All 940 Total Control Pest Plant sites were
inspected and control implemented where
necessary. Total expenditure fell, indicating
successful progress towards eradication at
almost all sites.

The Possum Control Areas at South Kaipara
and Awhitu peninsulas completed their first
year successfully, with possum indices below
agreed levels.
Better alignment of biosecurity and biodiversity
outcomes was achieved, through increased
use of biodiversity monitoring and application
of new monitoring technologies and plans.
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Activity 7: Cultural heritage conservation

Restoration and conservation work was
undertaken on a number of historic buildings
and structures throughout the ARC’s regional
parks. Highlights include the restoration work
on Brook Bach, Ashby Homestead, Vaughan
Homestead, Scandrett Homestead, Barr
Cottage, Liebergreen Cottage, Keddle House,
and Whatipu Lodge, and restoration of the
Rose Hellaby Garden. Restoration of the
historic orchard at the Brook Homestead,
Awhitu Regional Park was undertaken. A
conservationmanagement planwas developed
for the pa sites at Waitawa Regional Park.
The University of Auckland ran a summer field
school at Shakespear Regional Park in February
2009 to undertake archaeological research of
two sites along the predator proof fence route.
A successful public open day was held. NZ
Historic Places Trust approval was received for
the construction of the predator proof fence at
Shakespear.
Heritage staff worked with the NZ Historic
Places Trust (NZHPT) and local iwi to protect
and investigate koiwi remains at Medlands
Beach on Great Barrier Island. An
archaeological investigation was undertaken
with archaeologists from NZHPT, ARC and
University of Auckland.
A joint ARC and Department of Conservation
beach protection scheme for the Sunde
archaeological site (fossilised human and dog
footprints in ash) on Motutapu Island was
undertaken to protect the site from coastal
erosion. ARC Heritage staff worked with
Department of Conservation and University of
Auckland geologists.
The annual summer coastal cultural heritage
surveywas undertaken in the upperWaitemata
Harbour. Historic heritage surveys of the
coastline around McElroy Reserve on the
Mahurangi Harbour were undertaken, and a
number of sites recorded including Henry
Cowan's 1850s house site. This is part of a
long term goal to achieve complete survey
coverage of the region’s coastline. An
estimated 29 per cent of the total Auckland
region has been systematically surveyed and
assessed for these sites and places. The ARC
Cultural Heritage Inventory (CHI) has increased
to approximately 16,441 historic heritage sites.
Workwas undertaken to develop an onlineweb
based Cultural Heritage Inventory.

Information was compiled for the cultural
heritage component of the regional State of
the Environment Report.
The ARC continued to support the Mangere
Mountain Education Centre Accord (MMEC)
partnership.
The Heritage team has provided a significant
amount of specialist advice into statutory
processes, ranging from pre-application
meetings, through to resource consent
hearings, including, proposed developments
at Te Arai, Wynyard Quarter, and Owhiti and
Oripiu on Waiheke Island; the Hauraki Gulf
Islands District Plan; the Mangere Gateway
proposal; the Puketutu Island biosolids
proposal; Building 5 Greenlane Hospital; and
the Masonic Tavern. Heritage advice has also
been provided for a review of the Auckland
Regional Policy Statement.
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Activity 8: Planning for the future

The LGAAA process continued on the Auckland
Regional Policy Statement in 2008/09 with
negotiation and mediation of appeals lodged
in respect of the hearing panel’s decisions
released in 2007.
Decisions were released on part of the
Auckland Regional Policy Statement:
Change 8 – Landscape and Volcanic Features.
Council is still considering its approach to the
Landscape component of the change. Five
appeals have been lodged with the
Environment Court in relation to the decisions
on the volcanic features provisions of Change
8.
Decisions were released on ARPS Proposed
Private Change 11: Extension to the
metropolitan urban limits, Takanini Structure
Plan Area 2A; ARPS Proposed Private Change
12: Extension to the metropolitan urban limits,
Takanini Structure Plan Area Part 2Ba and 2C
and Proposed ARP: Air, Land and Water
Proposed Variation 2: Extension to the urban
Air Quality Management Areas, Takanini
Structure Plan Area 2A, Part 2B and 2C.
Proposed changes to the Metropolitan Urban
Limits provisions of the Regional Policy
Statement were received from Manukau City
Council and hearings commenced relating to
areas in Mangere/Puhinui.
Significant work also commenced on the
review of the Auckland Regional Policy
Statement.
Hauraki Gulf Marine Park Act 2000 changes
were incorporated into the Auckland Regional
Policy Statement review process.
Work continued on the latest State of the
Region Report which is due in November 2009.
The resolution of appeals to district plan
provisions continued. The appeal toWaitakere
City Council district plan change proposing the
urbanisation of the former Hobsonville Airbase
was resolved through negotiations for the
provision of a future park to protect the heritage
and coastal values. Environment Court
facilitated mediation on outstanding appeal
points, particularly in relation to the rural district
plan provisions of both the Franklin District
Council and the Rodney District Council, which
are ongoing.

The implementation of Environment Court
decisions continued with the relevant territorial
authorities, such as with North Shore City
Council on the urbanisation of the Long Bay
area and Waitakere City Council on the
protection of the values of the Swanson
foothills in the Waitakere Ranges through the
limitation of subdivision opportunities.
Input into local authority planning through
significant development proposals continued.
Particularly, new settlement proposals within
the Rodney District at Te Arai and the Wairoa
Maritime village within Manukau City being the
subject of extensive hearings at Council and
Environment Court level, respectively.
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2.3.4.2 Challenges

Activity 1: Stormwatermanagement and pollution

response

Implementing an education and information
sharing programme for the general public,
industry and policy makers.
Advocating and implementing a treatment train
approach to manage stormwater quality.
Effectively developing and implementing
Integrated Management Catchment Plans.
Improving stormwater quality and reducing
impacts on freshwater andmarine ecosystems.

Activities 2 - 4: Freshwater, coastal and land

management

Understanding cumulative impacts that
contribute to the degradation of freshwater and
coastal environments.
Identifying and understanding the linkages
between complex ecological systems and the
impacts of land use and urban development
on these systems.

Activity 5: Improving air quality

Retaining access to existing air quality
monitoring sites and gaining permission for
new sites that adequately represent public
exposure across the region.
Complying with the air quality national
environmental standard (AQNES) by 2013.

Activities 6A & 7: Natural and cultural heritage

conservation

Conserving and enhancing significant natural
and cultural heritage resources in a rapidly
developing region, particularly protecting
biodiversity, heritage buildings and
archaeological sites and preventing destruction.

Activities 6B: Biosecurity

Catering for the growing number of community
and landowner ecological restoration and pest
control initiatives.
Preventing the spread of kauri dieback in native
forests in the region.

Activity 8: Planning for the future

Managing the effects of growth and
development on the natural environment.
Completing the review of the Auckland
Regional Policy Statementwithin a compressed
timeframe, and within an uncertain context.

2.3.4.3 Working with Maori

ARC has continued to work collaboratively with
Te Uri O Hao and Ngati Whatua Nga Rima o
Kaipara on the Integrated Kaipara Harbour
Management Group.
Work in partnership with tangata whenua to
implement a kaitaikitanga project annually.
ARC has initiated ongoing engagement with
tangata whenua over their participation in and
aspirations for aquaculture within the region,
and has carried out preliminary consultation on
the ARC’s proposed policy directions and
concepts for aquaculture.
Full consultation with tangata whenua through
iwi authorities has taken place with respect to
relevant resource management consents.
Consultationwas undertakenwith iwi regarding
kauri dieback.
A radio promotion involving MaiFM, Radio
Samoa, Radio Tarana and 531PI were
broadcast. The MaiFM radio promotion about
domestic fires and air pollution started during
Maori Language Week (21 July 2008). It was
an eight week competition with one minute
segments of a modern Maori legend based
around Tawhiri Matea, the Maori god of wind,
and two characters Paora and Pukeko.
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2.3.5 Our performance against the levels of
service in the LTCCP 2006-16/ Annual Plan
2008/09

Activity 1: Stormwater management and pollution response

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Achieved25 in 2004/05 &
05/06

The number of repeat pollution incidents
from industrial and trade premises will
reduce annually.

SW1

15 from 2006/07

A further decrease in repeat pollution
incidents shows that educational
programmes and working with
industries is having a positive effect.

On-going
and on-track

90 percent by 2014The percentage of ARC's sediment
contaminant state of the environment
monitoring sites with either non -

SW2

for 2014
targetsignificant or declining trends in zinc

concentration over the preceding 8 year
period.

Concentrations of copper, lead and
zinc are monitored every two years in
the State of the Environment and
every two to five years in the
Stormwater Discharges programme
depending on the level of
contamination. Results show that;
overall more than 60 per cent of the
monitoring sites are in the “Green”
category indicating that organisms in
manymarine environments are at low
risk from heavy metals, the highest
concentrations of heavy metals were
found in muddy estuarine sites and
tidal creeks that receive runoff from
older urban catchments, particularly
in the middleWaitemata Harbour and
the upper Tamaki Estuary where
heavy metal concentrations
commonly fall into the “Amber” or
“Red” categories, and zinc
concentrations fall into the “Amber”
or “Red” categories more often than
copper or lead.
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StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Not achievedGreater than 75 per
cent

Greater than 75 percent satisfaction
level achieved in customer satisfaction
with resource consent process.

SW3

Initiatives have been identified in a
process review to address the gap

Not achieved100 per cent100 per cent of resource consents are
processed within statutory timeframes.

SW4

Results from 2006/07 onward relate
to this activity only, however previous
years figures are ALL consents.
Initiatives have been identified in a
process review to address the gap.

Achieved95 per cent95 per cent of all statutory enforcement
decisions are upheld.

SW5

AchievedGreater than 80 per
cent

Greater than 80 per cent of all consents
monitored are in compliance with
consent conditions.

SW6

These figures reflect the percentage
of total consents that are either in ‘full
compliance' or ‘minor
non-compliance' with consent
conditions
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Activity 2: Freshwater management

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Not
achieved

50 per centAt least 50 per cent of representative
streams monitored have excellent
biological quality, as measured by a
biological index of stream health.

FW1

* 20 per cent of representative
streams monitored have excellent
biological quality. The average
regional ecology score of 93 is in the
mid range of the ‘satisfactory’
category, driven largely by the two
dominant land uses in the Auckland
region (urban and rural).

AchievedEach lakemonitored
to maintain or
improve their

Lake surface water quality is maintained
or improved.

FW2

Trophic Level Index
score (as measured
by a 0.2 change to
the 3 year rolling
average over two
consecutive years)

* Three of the seven lakesmonitored
had improvedwater quality, three did
not change. Water quality
deteriorated in Lake Kereta. The
specific lake results were: Ototoa
-0.3; Pupuke -0.3; Kuwakatai 0.1;
Kereta 0.6; Wainamu -0.1; Tomarata
-0.2; Spectacle 0.0.

N/ADevelopment of this measure was
not progressed as it was no longer
considered appropriate for the Annual
Report. It has been replaced in the
LTCCP 2009-19.

Under development
- not progressed

Policy development is of high standard,
as measured by a policy quality
assurance rating, based on process
compliance and analytical quality.

FW3

Achieved0 per cent of
aquifers are
over-allocated.

The region's freshwater resources are
being sustained, as measured by the
water allocation and use in high-use
aquifer management areas.

FW4

0 per cent of
aquifers allocation is
over-used.

This measure monitors the water
allocation and use of 17 high use
aquifers in the Auckland region. There
were no over-allocations and no
allocations over-used in 2008-09.
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StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Not
achieved

Greater than 75 per
cent

Greater than 75 per cent satisfaction
level achieved in customer satisfaction
with resource consent process.

FW5

Initiatives have been identified in a
process review to address the gap

Not
achieved

100 per cent100 per cent of resource consents are
processed within statutory timeframes.

FW6

Results from 2006/07 onward relate
to this activity only, however previous
years figures are ALL consents.
Initiatives have been identified in a
process review to address the gap.

Achieved95 per cent95 per cent of all statutory enforcement
decisions are upheld.

FW7

AchievedGreater than 80 per
cent

Greater than 80 per cent of all consents
monitored are in compliance with
consent conditions.

FW8

These figures reflect the percentage
of total consents that are either in ‘full
compliance' or ‘minor
non-compliance' with consent
conditions
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Activity 3: Coastal management

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

AchievedAt least 70 per cent
of the community are
satisfied with the

Public perception of the balance
between the built elements and natural
environment on the coastline.

CM1

balance between
built elements and
the natural
environment on the
coastline.

* this percentage reflects both those
that feel there is a good balance, plus
those who feel it could be built up
more

N/ADevelopment of this measure was
not progressed as it was no longer
considered appropriate for the Annual
Report. It has been replaced in the
LTCCP 2009-19.

Under development
- not progressed

Policy development is of high standard,
as measured by a policy quality
assurance rating, based on process
compliance and analytical quality.

CM2

AchievedGreater than 80 per
cent of sites
monitored

Coastal water quality is maintained and
improved, as measured by a range of
environmental indicators.

CM3

* 86.5 per cent of coastal sites had
maintained or improved water quality
over the period 1987 to 2007. The
coastal water around the whole of
the Auckland region showed
significant improving trends in water
quality, with reduced levels of faecal
indicator bacteria, suspended solids,
total phosphorus, soluble reactive
phosphorus and nitrate. Most of
these improvements are consistent
with decreased anthropogenic
pressures. Some trends of
deteriorating water quality were
observed in open water coastal sites.
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StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Not
achieved

Greater than 75 per
cent

Greater than 75 per cent satisfaction
level achieved in customer satisfaction
with resource consent process.

CM4

Initiatives have been identified in a
process review to address the gap

Not
achieved

100 per cent100 per cent of resource consents are
processed within statutory timeframes.

CM5

Results from 2006/07 onward relate
to this activity only, however previous
years figures are ALL consents.
Initiatives have been identified in a
process review to address the gap.

Achieved95 per cent95 per cent of all statutory enforcement
decisions are upheld.

CM6

AchievedGreater than 80 per
cent

Greater than 80 per cent of all consents
monitored are in compliance with
consent conditions.

CM7

These figures reflect the percentage
of total consents that are either in ‘full
compliance' or ‘minor
non-compliance' with consent
conditions.
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Activity 4: Land management

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

N/ADevelopment of this measure was not
progressed as it was no longer
considered appropriate for the Annual
Report. It has been replaced in the
LTCCP 2009-19.

Under development
- not progressed

Policy development is of high standard,
as measured by a policy quality
assurance rating, based on process
compliance and analytical quality.

LM1

Not
achieved

100 per centARC will achieve 100 per cent
compliance with resource consents for
landfill aftercare activities.

LM2

The overall compliance with consents
for ARC landfills in 2008/09 is 92 per
cent or 5.5 out of 6 landfills. The
compliance rating for each landfill is
listed below:
Compliant = 1 or 2A
Non-compliant = 2B, 3 or 4

Rosedale leachate, monitoring
and stormwater = 2A
Rosedale gas = 2B (remedial
work undertaken April 2009,
now compliant)
Greenmount leachate,
monitoring and stormwater = 1
Greenmount gas = 1
Pikes Point* leachate,
monitoring and stormwater = 1
Devonport leachate*,monitoring
and stormwater = 1

*The ARC holds no gas consents for
Pikes Point or Devonport landfills.

Achieved15km increase
annually

The length of the region's streams that
are fenced and planted is increasing by
15km annually.

LM3

Data includes total of MAP fencing
2008/09 (5.724km) EIF component
(28.415) = total 34.319km. Comprised
of:

Wairoa = 0.931 km
Waitakere = 0.254 km
Mahurangi = 4.539 km
EIF component = 28.415 km
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StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Not
achieved

Greater than 75 per
cent

Greater than 75 per cent satisfaction
level achieved in customer satisfaction
with resource consent process.

LM4

Initiatives have been identified in a
process review to address the gap

Not
achieved

100 per cent100 per cent of resource consents are
processed within statutory timeframes.

LM5

Results from 2006/07 onward relate
to this activity only, however previous
years figures are ALL consents.
Initiatives have been identified in a
process review to address the gap.

Achieved95 per cent95 per cent of all statutory enforcement
decisions are upheld.

LM6

AchievedGreater than 80 per
cent

Greater than 80 per cent of all consents
monitored are in compliance with
consent conditions.

LM7

These figures reflect the percentage
of total consents that are either in ‘full
compliance' or ‘minor
non-compliance' with consent
conditions.
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Activity 5: Improving air quality

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Not
achieved

Results reported represent a calendar
year (i.e. 2008/09 result is for year
ending December 2008). Target not

Not to be exceeded.Meeting the regional air quality targets
by 2010 , particularly with regard to
Auckland's residential areas.

AQ1

met for PM10 at Khyber Pass,
Targets are as follows: Henderson (Lincoln Rd), Queen St,

Takapuna, Pakuranga, Botany Downs,
PM10: 13 micrograms per cubic metre,
on an annual basis.

Warkworth, Glen Eden, Kumeu,
Patumahoe, Pukekohe and Orewa
(i.e. target not met at 12 of 15
monitoring sites measuring PM10).
Annual PM10 concentrations were
decreasing until the year 2000, when
they levelled off. Emissions
improvements due to better vehicle
technology and fuels have been
countered by growth in vehicle
numbers, particularly diesel and the
increasing age of the vehicle fleet.
Emissions from domestic sources
such as home heating have not
changed much over the years.

Not
achieved

Results reported represent a calendar
year (i.e. 2008/09 result is for year
ending December 2008). Target not

Not to be exceeded.NO2: 66 micrograms per cubic metre,
in a 24-hour period.

met for NO2 at Khyber Pass Rd and
Queen St. Annual average NO2

concentrations have decreased at
some sites yet increased at others.
This is probably due to localised
changes in traffic flows and fleet
composition.

Not
achieved

PM10 standard to be
exceeded no more
than once a year

Meeting the National Environmental
Standards for Air Quality targets for air
pollutants by 2013, for the whole
Auckland region:

AQ2a

PM10: 50 micrograms per cubic metre,
in a 24-hour period.

Results reported represent a calendar
year (i.e. 2008/09 result is for year
ending December 2008). Annual PM10

concentrations were decreasing until
the year 2000, when they levelled
off. Exceedences were probably due
to a variety of sources including home
heating (wood or coal burning), road
works, motor vehicles and natural
sources.
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StatusResultsTargetMeasures

AchievedNO2 standard to be
exceeded no more
than 9 times per
year.

NO2: 200 micrograms per cubic metre,
in a 1-hour period.

AQ2b

Results reported represent a calendar
year (i.e. 2008/09 result is for year
ending December 2008). Annual
average NO2 concentrations have
decreased at some sites yet
increased at others. This is probably
due to localised changes in traffic
flows and fleet composition.

Not
achieved

Greater than 75 per
cent

Greater than 75 per cent satisfaction
level achieved in customer satisfaction
with resource consent process.

AQ3

Initiatives have been identified in a
process review to address the gap

Not
achieved

100 per cent100 per cent of resource consents are
processed within statutory timeframes.

AQ4

Results from 2006/07 onward relate
to this activity only, however previous
years figures are ALL consents.
Initiatives have been identified in a
process review to address the gap.

Achieved95 per cent95 per cent of all statutory enforcement
decisions are upheld.

AQ5
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StatusResultsTargetMeasures

AchievedGreater than 80 per
cent

Greater than 80 per cent of all consents
monitored are in compliance with
consent conditions.

AQ6

These figures reflect the percentage
of total consents that are either in ‘full
compliance' or ‘minor
non-compliance' with consent
conditions

Activity 6A: Natural heritage conservation

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Not
achieved

Increase on 2006/07Annual increase in the level of public
awareness of natural heritage issues
and values in the Auckland region, as
measured by the Environmental
Awareness Survey.

NH1

Just under half of respondents said
they knew more about Auckland's
natural environment and biodiversity
(49%) than they did three years ago.
This shows a drop in awareness since
2007/08.

AchievedIncrease on 2006/07Bird Count Index in the Waitakere
Ranges.

NH2

Long termmonitoring results for four
native bird species in the Waitakere
Ranges showed increases from
2007/08 to 2008/09 in numbers of tui,
tomtit and kereru. Kereru are now
nearly four times more numerous
than they were in 1997, while tui and
tomtit are more than twice as
numerous.
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Activity 6B: Biosecurity

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Achievedless than 3 per centPossum population index in the
Waitakere Ranges.

B1

AchievedIncrease on 2006/07Hectares under community pest control
increases.

B2

Achievedless than 8 per centPossum population index in the Hunua
Ranges.

B3
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Activity 7: Cultural heritage conservation

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

AchievedIncrease on 2006/07Increase in the level of formal protection
for natural and cultural heritage
resources in regional and district plans.

CH1

A total of 3994 cultural heritage
resources and 6232 natural heritage
resources are formally protected. This
is an increase of over 45-50% since
2004. NB: this KPI is only measured
every 4 years. There was a drop in
CH resources from 2007/08 to
2008/09 due to inaccuracies in
previous years data.

Not
achieved

Increase on 2006/07Annual increase in the level of public
awareness of cultural heritage issues
and values in the Auckland region, as
measured by the Environmental
Awareness Survey.

CH2

In 2008/09 just under half of
respondents said they knew more
about Auckland's Historic heritage
(41%) than they did three years ago.
This shows a drop in awareness
compared to 2007/08.

Activity 8: Planning for the future

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

N/ADevelopment of thesemeasureswas
not progressed as it was no longer
considered appropriate for the Annual
Report. They have been replaced in
the LTCCP 2009-19.

Under development
- not progressed

Sustainable management policies and
plans are of a high quality, as measured
by indicators of process compliance,
analytical quality and policy acceptance.

PF1

N/AInternal and external customers/
stakeholders have an increasing
awareness of social, economic, natural

PF2

and physical resource information
collected, and seek advice where
necessary.

N/AInternal and external
customers/stakeholders are happywith
the timeliness and relevance of

PF3

information provided, and use
appropriate information in
decision-making processes.
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2.3.6 Looking forward

Activity 1: Stormwatermanagement and pollution

response

Continue to work cooperatively and share
information with local councils and other
stakeholders to manage stormwater in the
region.
Continue to fund and provide technical
assistance to territorial authorities to produce
Integrated Catchment Management Plans.
Commence update of several stormwater best
practice guidelines (including TP108, TP10 and
TP124).

Activity 2: Freshwater management

Improve public access to environmental
information.
Progress with the implementation of a
management plan for the use and protection
of Waiheke groundwater.
Develop policy to define the allocation
constraints for surface water resources in the
northern part of the region.
Develop policy to protect fragile stream
systems from a variety of development-induced
impacts, particularly the loss of streams due
to urbanisation.
Continue to contribute and respond to the
Government’s Programme “A New Start for
Freshwater”.
Stream extent data will be incorporated into a
number of measures of ecosystem health
planned for the 2009 State of the Environment
Report.
Develop policy that is consistent with the
objectives and policies of the Proposed National
Policy Statement for FreshwaterManagement.
Continue to monitor the freshwater
environment, including Auckland rivers,
streams, lakes and wetlands.

Activity 3: Coastal management

Continue supporting communities and coastal
outcomes through the Coastal Enhancement
Fund.
Provide information on the ecological value of
the coastal environment in relation to
stormwater effects.
Develop policy to improve the integrated
management of the Kaipara Harbour coastal
environment.

Prepare a proposed regional policy framework
for management of aquaculture.
Complete the current Plan Changes (2 to 4) to
the Regional Plan: Coastal, and resolve
outstanding appeals to variation of chapters 10
and 20.
Prepare response options to address the new
requirements of the revised New Zealand
Coastal Policy Statement.
Continue to monitor marine ecology and water
quality parameters at representative sites
across the region.
Continue to monitor the coastal environment,
including harbour estuaries and reefs.

Activity 4: Land management

Contribute to the development of a national
environmental standard for the use of
contaminated land.
Implement a monitoring programme to
determine the health of the region’s soil
resources and identify high risk areas for soil
erosion.
Continue to contribute to the Inter Council
Working Party which is investigating GMO
issues.
Under the Sustainable Catchments Programme,
undertake implementation activities in the
Mahurangi, Whangateau and Kaipara
Catchments and Harbours to protect and
enhance the catchment and harbour, including
fencing of streams.
Under the Sustainable Catchments Programme,
develop a collaborative catchmentmanagement
plan with the Mahurangi Forum and wider
community in the Maharuangi Catchment and
Harbour.
Under the Sustainable Catchments Programme
and with the Primary Sector Water Group,
commence engagement with the community
in the Hoteo Catchment in the Kaipara Harbour.
Prepare a draft variation to the Proposed
Auckland Regional Plan: Air, Land and Water
to incorporate the Regional Plan: Sediment
Control and provisions to control stock access
to protect headwater streams.
Settle outstanding appeals to Chapter 5 –
Discharges to Land and Water and Land
Management of the Proposed Auckland
Regional Plan: Air, Land and Water.
Continue to monitor land environment,
including soil quality intactness and erosion
processes.
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Activity 5: Improving air quality

Continue to work with the Government and
stakeholders to identify and implement
measures to limit emissions from transport,
particularly heavy duty diesel vehicles.
Use detailed emissions prediction models for
industry, vehicles and domestic fires to assess
emissions reductions needed to meet the
AQNES.
Evaluate potential emissions reductions for a
range of domestic home heating scenarios.
Develop a framework to ensure that industrial
PM10 emissions are kept at the same or less
than current levels.
Develop policy for the Regional Policy
Statement, Air Land and Water Plan and
Regional Land Transport Strategy which will
allow the AQNES to be met.
Monitor trends in air quality and forecast air
emissions to track progress against National
and regional air quality standards.

Activities 6A: Natural heritage conservation

Continue to advocate for the conservation and
enhancement of significant natural heritage
resources.
Conserve and enhance significant natural
heritage values on regional parks in partnership
with the community.
Continue to work with landowners and
community groups to facilitate restoration and
protection of biodiversity.

Activities 6B: Biosecurity

Assist and facilitate research into the detection
and control of kauri dieback disease.
Continue to implement the provisions of the
Auckland Regional PestManagement Strategy,
2007-12.
Enhance protection of regional high
conservation value waterbodies.
Progressively implement enhanced measures
to protect Hauraki Gulf islands from biosecurity
threats.
Complete the combining of pest animal species
control programmes into fully integrated
programmes, to achieve greater biodiversity
outcomes on regional parkland and high
conservation value sites throughout the region.
Implement emergent research technologies to
achieve better control of key and previously
intractable pests.

Activity 7: Cultural heritage conservation

Continue to work with the regional community
to raise awareness and advocate for the
protection, conservation and enhancement of
significant cultural heritage resources.
Continue to undertake annual cultural heritage
surveys of the coastal marine area throughout
the region.
Conserve and enhance significant cultural
heritage resources on regional parks.
Maintain and develop the Cultural Heritage
Inventory (CHI) as a system and resource for
promoting the sustainable management of
cultural heritage resources of the region.

Activity 8: Planning for the future

Prepare a draft Auckland Regional Policy
Statement.
Manage the following proposed changes to
the Auckland Regional Policy Statement:
Changes 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12 and 13.
Provide policy input into the following activities:
Town centre development (Milford, Highbury
and Albany North), Rural Proposals (Te Arai and
Wairoa maritime Village) and Major
infrastructure (State Highway 16 and
Waterview connection).
Commence preparation of a State of the Region
report.
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2.4 Economic development

This group is comprised of one activity:

1. Economic development
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2.4.1 The economic development activities
contribute to the following community outcomes:

A thriving regional economy that supports a
good standard of living,
The ARC, the community, local and central
government, and business work together to
achieve results,
Aucklanders are educated and skilled and have
access to appropriate learning and training
opportunities,
Mäori are succeeding socially and economically,
and contribute to decision-making,
Valuing our identity and the changing face of
Auckland,
Aucklanders have access to a range of
affordable and safe ways to move people and
goods,
Recreational and leisure opportunities that offer
a range of experiences for all.

2.4.2 Influence on the four well-beings

These activities had no negative impact on the
environmental, social, cultural or economic
well-being of the region.

2.4.3 What did it cost overall?

Total cost of services in $millions

4.8Actual

5.5Planned

0.7Variance

Please refer to section 4.8 for further breakdown of
the activity cost of services.
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2.4.4 What did we achieve?

2.4.4.1 Highlights

Activity 1: Economic development

Implemented the Metro Project Action Plan
which intends to position Auckland as a
dynamic and internationally competitive region.
The plan recommends actions reflecting
international best practice around five key
objectives - leadership, infrastructure, visitors,
skills and business innovation.
'Bringing the World to Auckland - the case for
investment in the visitor economy' used as a
platform to advocate for infrastructure
investment in the visitor economy, including a
restructure of governance and funding
arrangements for Tourism Auckland.
Rolled out of the regional brand through
Tourism Auckland’s “This is Auckland”
campaign and the Heart of The City’s “Big Little
City” campaign. The regional brand has been
used extensively in association with major
events in the region such as the Louis Vuitton
Pacific yachting series, the U19 FIBA World
Cup and Rugby World Cup 2011.
'Positioning Auckland as a Major Events
Destination' was produced in May 2008. It
supported work to leverage opportunities
around RugbyWorld Cup 2011 and secure long
term benefits from this event through a
business engagement programme, investment
in infrastructure and future events such as a
possible bid for the Commonwealth Games.
'Maximising high growth potential-the case for
improving early stage investment' report
released in May 2009. The report
recommended assistance to high growth start
up companies and existing "small to medium
sized enterprises" with the potential to export
and become international companies.
Recommendations included the establishment
of an Angel Investment Association for NZ
which has been set up to improve the quantity
and quality of angel investment in NZ
businesses.
Partnered with the Ministry of Economic
Development (MED) in research into
Auckland’s innovation system, in particular
investigating opportunities around the food and
beverage, marine and bio-science sectors.
Dealt with 15 significant investors looking to
invest in the Auckland region.
Developed an interactive website to provide
economic and labour market information,
research and data to support decision-making
in the region.

Piloted a regional productivity programme in
association with local economic development
agencies, New Zealand Trade and Enterprise
(NZTE) and the Department of Labour.
Co-ordinated with central and local agencies
to implement a programme ofwork in the areas
of: skills and education; promoting Auckland
as an investment destination and leveraging
opportunities and benefits from hosting major
events such as the 2011 Rugby World Cup.
Launched a new joint funding arrangement
between Auckland City Council, Manukau City
Council and the Auckland Regional Council
focusing on regional outcomeswhich alignwith
the New Zealand Tourism Strategy 2015 and
provide a robust monitoring and evaluation
framework to measure performance against
defined targets.
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2.4.4.2 Challenges

Activity 1: Economic development

Driving Auckland to become a world class
city-region.
Current state of the global, national and regional
economy.
Ensuring all sectors of the community are
engaged.
Sourcing the additional resource necessary to
deliver projects.
The range and depth of the relationships
necessary in order to deliver on proposed
projects.
Providing value at a regional level.

2.4.4.3 Working with Maori

Activity 1: Economic development

Continuing work with Te Puni Kokiri and the
Mana Whenua Forum on the projects related
to the Metro Project Action Plan.
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2.4.5 Our performance against the levels of
service in the LTCCP 2006-16/ Annual Plan
2008/09

Activity 1: Economic development

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

AchievedUse of the Auckland Brand for Louis Vuitton
Pacific Series 2009 60 per cent of respondents
who came from the Auckland region noticed

50 per cent or more
respondents state
they are aware of the
regional brand.

Auckland regional brand
awareness.

ED1

and recognised the brand during the event,
and 62 per cent of respondents from outside
the region or overseas noticed the use of the
brand at the event.

Achieved11 projects under implementation in 2008/09
including:

10 or more regional
projects under
implementation by
the end of each
financial year.

Regional economic
development projects under
implementation.

ED2

Regional BioScience Action Plan
Growing Productive Businesses Pilot
Regional Knowledge Hub (Knowledge
Auckland)
Auckland Marine Industry Action Plan
Marine MRI
Manukau Food Innovation Centre
Screen Industry Action Plan
Major Event Strategy
Regional Visitor Plan
PLATO Network Pilot
Rugby World Cup.

Achieved15 regional value propositions in 2008/09
including:

12 regional value
propositions delivered
to potential investors
within the financial
year.

Number of regional value
propositions delivered to
potential investors.

ED3

Chu Chen
Rasmanne
Cooper & Company
Travel Jigsaw
GlobalX
Significan't/Sign Video
JetStar
Fujitsu
Italian Chamber of Commerce
Koffi Bafour
Hemant Bagga
Auckland International Airport
IBM
John Freeman
KALS Information Systems Ltd.
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StatusResultsTargetMeasures

N/AThis was not measured in 2008/09.Increase by 5
Geographic Units per
industry per annum.

Increased investment in
sector development in the
Auckland region.

ED4

The region has experienced an overall
increase, 3,109 in the total number of
businesses across all industries during
the period.

AchievedThis was a newmeasure in the Annual
Plan 2008/09. The result is based on a
stakeholder satisfaction survey was
conducted in August 2009.

75 per cent of
respondents that are
either satisfied or very
satisfied with the

Stakeholder satisfaction with
AucklandPlus relationship and
services received.

ED5

effectiveness of the
83.1 per cent of respondents were
satisfied or very satisfied with
AucklandPlus’ levels of service,

relationship and quality
of services/ advice/
support received from
AucklandPlus. effectiveness of relationship and quality

of service across all instances of
contact.

Achieved2008/09 - Visitor
sessions increased by
20 per cent each year
up to 2016.

A single facilitation point
website will be recognised as
a first for potential investors
into the region, with usage
increasing.

ED6

2.4.6 Looking forward

Activity 1: Economic development

Working with Tourism Auckland to grow
awareness of Auckland’s presence in the city
brand index.
Increasing investment into the target sectors
(marine, food and beverage and bioscience)
and the value of goods exported grows by at
least 5 per cent.
Benchmarking AucklandPlus globally.
Satisfying stakeholders in the effectiveness of
the relationship and the quality of
advice/support.
Further developing the regional economy, with
a focus on skills and education, the
identification of key growth sectors of industry,
and broadband infrastructure.

Co-ordinate skills and education work, business
innovation and export, promotion of Auckland
as an investment destination, and leverage
opportunities and benefits from hosting major
events such as the Rugby World Cup 2011.
Working with the Auckland Transition Agency
to establish a new economic function and plan
for the Auckland Council building upon the
Auckland Regional Economic Development
Strategy.
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2.5 Regional leadership and community
development

This group is comprised of four activities:

1. Regional coordination and external relations

2. Democracy services

3. Te Hononga Māori

4. Sustainable schools and communities
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2.5.1 The regional leadership and community
development activities contribute to the
following community outcomes

The ARC, the community, local and central
government and business work together to
achieve results,
Mäori are succeeding socially and economically,
and contribute to decision-making,
The significant place of tangata whenua is
acknowledged and their role as kaitiaki is
recognised,
Valuing our identity and the changing face of
Auckland,
Aucklanders are educated and skilled and have
access to appropriate learning and training
opportunities,
Aucklanders caring for and enjoying the natural
environment,
Auckland’s special places are respected and
conserved,
The diversity of native species and habitats is
protected and restored.

2.5.2 Influence on the four well-beings

These activities had no negative impact on the
environmental, social, cultural or economic
well-being of the region.

2.5.3 What did it cost overall?

Total cost of services in $millions

12.9Actual

15.3Planned

2.4Variance*

* Activities associated with the 'Sustainable schools
and communities' programme of work took longer
to roll out than planned.

Please refer to section 4.8 for further breakdown of
the activity cost of services.
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2.5.4 What did we achieve?

2.5.4.1 Highlights

Activity 1A: Regional co-ordination

The Council engaged with the Royal
Commission of Inquiry on Auckland’s
governance and, following their
recommendation to Government, worked with
the Government and engaged with the select
committee on Auckland governance legislation.
More recently, the ARC has worked
co-operatively with the Auckland Transition
Agency to assist with a smooth transition to
the new Auckland Council by 1 November
2010.
External engagements took place during the
year on a range of issues. This included
meeting with ministers, party political leaders
and government officials, hosting overseas
delegations to develop relationships, and
running a programme of seminars to share
learning with local council partners and key
stakeholders.
The ARC provided funding to regional
organisations, the Auckland Philharmonia
Orchestra and Surf Lifesaving (Northern region).
Funding has been discontinued from 2009/10
with the passage of the Auckland Regional
Amenities Funding Act 2008, which ensures
that secure, ongoing funding is provided to
these organisations by Auckland’s territorial
authorities.
A report titled 'Auckland Regional Community
Outcomes', outlining the main issues and
trends across each of the 20 regional outcomes
and indicating general progress within them
was completed.

Activity 1B: Auckland Sustainability Framework

and One Plan

Worked with a range of central and local
government agencies, and key stakeholders
to finalise version 1 of One Plan for the
Auckland region and began implementation of
version 1.
Continued to use the Auckland Sustainability
Framework to guide regional strategies and
decision making towards sustainable
outcomes.

Activity 1C: Environmental Sustainability

The ARC led two dedicated work streams,
involving local and central government,
stakeholders and others, to co-ordinate regional
initiatives on climate change and energy.

The ARC, with input from key stakeholders,
prepared Issues and Options papers for climate
and energy.
The CarbonNow and Carbon Futures projects
commenced, with the aim of developing
regionally consistent and robust carbon
accounting methodologies and
carbon-responsible strategies.
A regional energy database was established,
and work commenced on regional energy
trends.

Activity 2: Democracy services

A full committee round for the year was held,
with a significant number of additional Council
meetings to consider issues including public
transport funding and Auckland Governance.
We undertook a significant amount of public
engagement and held hearings on awide range
of topics, in particular, the Regional Parking
Strategy, Navigation Safety Bylaw and plan
changes to the Regional Policy Statement and
Regional Plan: Coastal.

Activity 3: Te Hononga Māori

Increased the level of Rangatira ki te Rangatira
engagement between Councillors and Iwi
across the region from a previously adhoc
approach to more regular and coordinated
meetings, including mana whenua
representation on the Regional Sustainable
Development Forum. Other engage included
input to:

ARC Royal Commission submission
Auckland’s future governance
Kauri dieback disease prevention
programme.

Supported the establishment of the Tämaki
Regional Mana Whenua Forum.
Contributed to the Mäori outcome plan
implementation for Papakura.
Contributed to the Mäori outcome plan
development for Manukau.
Supported a number of Marae development
projects including Reweti Marae, Whatapaka,
Reretewhioi, Wharekawa and Mangatangi.
Contributed to a number of key ARC regional
policy reviews, some still ongoing including:

Auckland Regional Policy Statement
Auckland Regional Land Transport
Strategy
Auckland Regional Plan - Coastal -
Aquaculture
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Auckland Regional Plan – Air, Land and
Water
Auckland Regional Parks Management
Plan

Supported ongoing work with One Plan and
the Regional Sustainable Development Forum.
Continued to strengthen a number of
relationships with iwi across the region.

Activity 4: Sustainable schools and communities

Over 25,400 students participated in
environmental education programmes on
Auckland regional parks, and 150 schools and
kindergartens participated in the Enviroschools
programme. The WasteWise Schools
programme, run in partnership with all seven
Auckland local authorities continued to develop,
with 20 new schools joining the programme
and bringing the total to 31 "WasteWise"
schools committed to reducing their waste to
landfill.
140 young leaders from 32 schools participated
in the various strands of the Youth
Development programme, including the ARC's
Make a Difference hui and the Sir Peter Blake
National Youth Environmental Forum:
Regeneration Project. A partnership with the
Department of Conservation offered additional
opportunities to young people to take part in
marine related 'make a difference' activities.
360 environmental groups were supported
through training programmes, quarterly
newsletters and by providing access to the
technical expertise of ARC staff. 1500 people
were involved in training and action days.
Over $500,000 was allocated to 174 projects
from the Environmental Initiatives Fund.
The ARC continued to support the Hauraki Gulf
Forum in its role of promoting and facilitating
the integratedmanagement of the Hauraki Gulf
- including the publication of "Governing the
Gulf", a guide to second generation policies and
plans under the Resource Management Act.
The Wai Care programme supported over 125
community water monitoring initiatives,
involving over 10,000 people. As a result of
their efforts over 26,000 trees have been
planted and 400 stream monitoring sessions
have been recorded.
The Diversity programme brought over 500
people into the ARC's regional parks to take
part in sustainable gardening workshops,
Ambury Farm and Botanic Garden experiences
and a Pacific Youth programme.

Local government staff from across the region
have completed the Intercultural Awareness
and Communication Training programme - a
partnership programme with the Office of
Ethnic Affairs and a workstrand of the Auckland
Regional Settlement Strategy.
8,200 customers used the 17 Hazmobile
collections and 173,075kg of hazardous waste
was collected for safe disposal.
The Renew Waste Exchange membership
grew to 2,500 people and a new recycling
directory has been added to this service.
Mahurangi Action Plan community engagement
included the delivery of theWai Care education
programme through the local schools and home
schools. Five community tree planting days
and riparianmanagementworkshopswere held
for rural landowners.
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2.5.4.2 Challenges

Activity 1: Regional coordination and external

relationships

Workingwith central government, iwi and other
Auckland councils, supporting the Regional
Sustainable Development Forum.
A major challenge arose from the
Government’s decision to create a new
Auckland Council as a unitary authority, and to
dissolve the existing councils in the Auckland
region, as of 1 November 2010. The Auckland
Transition Agency has been established to
oversee the transition to the new Auckland
Council, and the ARC has been working with
that agency to ensure a successful transition
takes place.

Activity 2: Democracy services

Ensuring appropriate Councillor and public
engagement over major issues including
regional governance and reviews of the
Regional Land Transport Strategy and Regional
Policy Statement, while ensuring continuity in
with all of the work-streams set out in the
2008/09 Annual Plan.

Activity 3: Te Hononga Māori

For ARC
Regional coordination of Mäori
engagement.
Integrating a whole of ARC approach to
Mäori engagement.

For Mäori
Differing levels of capability and capacity
of Mäori organisations to respond.
Responding to the volume of demand
placed on Mäori by a variety of agencies.

Activity 4: Sustainable schools and communities

The number of environmental groups requiring
resource and schools wanting to participate in
environmental education programmes
continues to grow at approximately 20 per cent
per annum.

2.5.4.3 Working with Maori

Activity 1: Regional coordination and external

relationships

Relations with Mäori have been enhanced
through the collaborative development of the
Auckland Sustainability Framework and the
establishment of the Tamaki Regional Mana
Whenua Forum.
In developing the ARC’s preferred option for
the future governance of the Auckland region,
the ARCmet with mana whenua and took their
views into account. These views have
continued to inform the ARC’s views on the
future of regional governance.

Activity 3: Te Hononga Māori

Over the past year Mäori have been involved
in a number of regionally significant initiatives
and the ARC has contributed to a number of
Mäori initiatives throughout the region.

Activity 4: Sustainable schools and communities

A priority area for the environmental Initiatives
Fund from 2009 are Kaitiakitanga projects that
relate to the exercise of guardianship by
tangata whenua of an area in accordance with
tikanga Maori.
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2.5.5 Our performance against the levels of
service in the LTCCP 2006-16/ Annual Plan
2008/09

Activity 1A: Regional coordination and external relationships

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

N/ADevelopment of this measure was not
progressed as it was no longer
considered appropriate for the Annual
Report. It has been replaced in the
LTCCP 2009-19.

90 per cent
confidence rating

Key stakeholders are confident that
their relationship with the ARC has a
positive influence on regional
outcomes.

RC1

N/ADevelopment of this measure was not
progressed as it was no longer
considered appropriate for the Annual
Report. It has been replaced in the
LTCCP 2009-19.

Under development
- not progressed

Achieve high standards of policy
development and strategic advice as
measured by a quality assurance
rating, based on process compliance,
analytical quality and policy
acceptance.

RC2

Achieved75 per centCommunity perception of the ARC
fulfilling its role in the region.

RC3

Activity 1B: Auckland Sustainability Framework

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

AchievedOne Plan version 1 aims to improve
implementation of the region’s
strategies and bring a more

September 2008The first version of One Plan for the
Auckland region is produced by Sept
2008.

RC4

co-ordinated and integrated approach
to delivery of significant investments
across the region, particularly
infrastructure investments. The Plan
was produced in September and
endorsed by the Regional Sustainable
Development Forum (RSDF) on 10
October 2008 and by the ARC on 28
October 2008. One Plan was
acknowledged by the Royal
Commission into Auckland’s
Governance as a significant positive
step towards collaborative regional
strategy and action.

The purpose of One Plan is to produce
a detailed infrastructure plan to
progress the economic, social,
environmental and cultural wellbeing
of the region. The One Plan framework
has 3 parts to it: 7 priority programmes
of action; regional infrastructure plan
commencing with the development of
an infrastructure inventory; future
priority areas.
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Activity 1C: Environmental sustainability

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Not achievedThe Regional Strategy and Planning
Committee decision on 7 July 2009
following a review of work

By the end
of November* 2009

*This target was
revised.

A regional response to climate
change is developed and approved.

RC5

programmes has resolved not to
prepare a Regional Response to
Climate Change by November 09.

Not achievedThe Regional Strategy and Planning
Committee decision on 7 July 2009
following a review of work

By the end
of November* 2009

*This target was
revised.

A regional energy strategy is
developed and approved.

RC6

programmes has resolved not to
prepare a Regional Energy Strategy by
November 09.

Activity 2: Democracy services

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

AchievedARC achieved Audit New Zealand
clearance both its Annual Plans and

AchievedA clear annual audit of the ARC annual
report and each LTCCP or amendment.

DS1

Annual Reports in 2006/07 and
2007/08, its Annual Plan 2008/09,
amendments to its LTCCP 2006-16 in
2007/08 and 2008/09 and LTCCP
2009-19.

Achieved100 per cent not
upheld

No decisions or information complaints
against the ARC are upheld by the
Ombudsman.

DS2

Not achieved70 per centCommunity perception of confidence
that the council makes decisions that
are in the best interests of the region.

DS3

Note: Results before 2006 are not
comparable.
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Activity 3: Maori relations

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Achieved80 per cent of
iwi/hapu have an
agreed programme
with ARC by June
2008

We will sustain relationships with
tangata whenua by reaching agreement
with iwi/hapu on specific programmes.

MR1

93 per cent or 14 of 15 iwi/ hapu
authorities have identified agreedwork
programmes or projects.

AchievedARC has taken into account: the
relevant Iwi planning documents;
engagement with Maori on a number

Statutory
responsibilitiesmet

We will meet our statutory
responsibilities in regard to Maori.

MR2

of levels and initiatives includingMaori
Outcome Planning and Resource
Management matters; and Regional
Policy and Strategy Reviews. These
have contributed to developing Mäori
capacity to participate in Council
decision-making through the
establishment of the Tamaki Regional
Mana Whenua Forum.

Achieved75 per cent of tribal
authorities within
Auckland region

Increasing the level of participation of
Maori in ARC decision-making
processes.

MR3

100 per cent of Iwi Authorities have
heen engaged. ARC has worked to
increase the level ofMäori contribution
to Council decision-making in
particular through the ARC's
engagement with iwi during the Royal
Commission process, Regional
Sustainable Development Forum,
Regional Parks Acquisition, ongoing
development of One Plan, and a
number of rangatira ki te rangatira
(leadership) engagements.

Achieved6 programmes supported in
agreement with iwi.

6 programmesNumber of specific iwi development
programmes supported in agreement
with iwi.

MR4

93 per cent (14 of 15) iwi/ hapu
authorities had identified agreed work
programmes or projects .
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Activity 4: Sustainable schools and communities

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Achieved95 per cent satisfactionAt least 95 per cent
satisfaction with Learning
Through Experience education
programmes and 22,000
students participate each year.

SS1

Achieved22,000 students participate

25,413 students participated in
2008/09

Achieved80 per cent satisfactionThe satisfaction of councils
involved in Waicare with the
regional co-ordination of the
programme.

SS2

This represents the total percentage
of respondents whose satisfaction
levels were either 'high' (64.3
percent) or 'medium' (35.7 per
cent).

AchievedNumber of trees planted
greater than 20,000

The number and location of
trees planted with
Environmental Initiatives Fund
(EIF).

SS3

* More than 70,000 native plants
were planted all over the Auckland
region. Note this figure was
collated in December 2008 as this
is when the applicants from
2007/08 contracts expired.
Applicants for the 2008/09 funding
round have until November 2009 to
uplift their funds, therefore those
figures will be available November
2009.
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StatusResultsTargetMeasures

AchievedNo areas to address (100
per cent unqualified)

Annual Assessment by
Ministry of Education on the
quality of educational
programmes.

SS4

An audit was undertaken by
Ministry of Education. No concerns
were expressed.

Note: this is the last time this
measure is to be reported as
Ministry of Education has
withdrawn its funding for the LTE
programme.

Achieved4 training programmesThe number of training and
networking events available to
care groups and 85 per cent
satisfaction with these events.

SS5

14 programmes were offered in
2008/09 including workshops on
native plant propagation, Eco-events
website, shellfish monitoring, and
ecology.

Achieved85 per cent programmes

100 per cent satisfaction was
reported for the 7 of 14 training
sessions that were formally
evaluated.

Achieved80 per cent satisfactionAt least 80 per cent
satisfaction of EIF applicants
with the advice and funding
programme.

SS6
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StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Achieved80 per cent uptakeThe uptake of funds allocated
through the EIF will be greater
than 80 per cent.

SS7

While the number of applications
received has declined, the fund is
still substantially oversubscribed.
An increase in “pre-application”
advisory work, including funding
seminars, has enabled potential
applicants to access alternative
funding sources for their projects
and/or possibly reduced the number
of ineligible applications. Note the
figure stated was collated in
December 2008 as this is when the
applicants from 2007/08 contracts
expired. Applicants for the
2008/2009 funding round have until
November 2009 to uplift their funds
and figures will be available in
November 2009

N/AThese targets were incorrectly
raised in the 2008/09 Annual Plan.
The information is no longer

12,000 customers per
annum using the
HazMobile collection.

The amount of waste collected
(oil batteries and chemicals*),
by the Hazardous Waste
programme.

SS8

appropriate as a target for measure
See new target below. of the Hazardous Waste

programme. See below for new
target and results.

*New targets have been
developed for this revised
measure. 0.7 kg per capita of

hazardous water collected
per annum.

See new target below.

Batteries - not
achieved

Chemicals -
Achieved

Batteries 59,594 kg in 2007/08,
49,887kg in 2008/09

Chemicals 20,804 kg in 2007/08,
13,020kg in 2008/09

*Batteries maintained at
2007/08 levels.

*Chemicals and Oil
decreased from 2007/08
levels.

Oil - AchievedOil 77,250 kg in 2007/08, 72,000kg
in 2008/09*These are new targets to

replace the customer and
collection targets above. The target was to maintain the level

of batteries for 2008/09. Batteries
are a commodity on the
international market for their lead.
Over the 08/09 period the price of
lead rose dramatically resulting in
competition for this material from
commercial agents.
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2.5.6 Looking forward

Activity 1: Regional co-ordination and external

relationships

Co-operating with the Auckland Transition
Agency, the Government and local councils to
implement the changes resulting from the
Government’s decision to reform Auckland’s
governance.
Continue to support the Regional Sustainable
Development Forum which has membership
from the ARC, all Auckland local councils,
central Government and Mana Whenua.
Continue to use the Auckland Sustainability
Framework to guide regional strategies and
decision making towards sustainable
outcomes.
Begin to implement the first One Plan for the
Auckland region, which has identified a set of
regionally significant programmes for the
Auckland region.
Prepare a regional infrstructure inventory as a
first step towards a regional infrastructure plan
by September 2009.
Continue to work on the Wynyard Point area
of the waterfront.
Work with the region’s territorial authorities
and other agencies to ensure that Auckland
maximises the economic and social benefits
to be gained from the Rugby World Cup 2011.

Activity 2: Democracy services

Ensuring, as far as practical, the completion of
all public and political engagements in relation
to the development and review of policy and
plans.

Activity 3: Te Hononga Māori

Continue to support the ongoing development
of the Tämaki Regional Mana Whenua Forum
Facilitate the contribution of tangata whenua
to key regional policy and plan reviews, and
council decision-making.
Work more effectively with the Crown and iwi
in regard to Treaty of Waitangi settlements
across the region.
Strengthen partnering opportunities with local
councils and Crown agencies in the ongoing
development of Mäori outcomes.
Ensure that Mäori are effectively engaged with
the ongoing development of One Plan.
Continue to improve ARC’s systems and
processes to more effectively engage with
Mäori and reflect Mäori values in regional
strategies and policies.

Activity 4: Sustainable schools and communities

Continue to work with young people and
schools in order to provide them with
opportunities and resources to actively
contribute to Auckland’s sustainable future.
Continued provision of funding, education and
technical support to encourage and motivate
communities and individuals to be involved in
positive environmental action in areas of
strategic priority.
Work with targeted communities and groups
to increase their understanding of sustainability
and the ecological resources and limits of the
region.
Work in partnerships coordinating the
implementation of regional strategies, policies,
plans and programmes that are focused on
communities.
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2.6 Regional parks

This group of activities is comprised of six activities:

1. Looking after our regional parks

2. Auckland Botanic Gardens

3. New regional parks

4. Farming on regional parks

5. Mt Smart Stadium

6. Visitor services
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2.6.1 The regional parks activities contribute to
the following community outcomes:

Recreational and leisure opportunities that offer
a range of experiences for all,
Open spaces and green places, now and for
the future,
The significant place of tangata whenua is
acknowledged and their role as kaitiaki is
recognised,
Aucklanders caring for and enjoying the natural
environment,
Auckland’s special places are respected and
conserved,
The diversity of native species and habitats is
protected and restored,
Safer neighbourhoods and public places,
Quality built environment.

2.6.2 Influence on the four well-beings

These activities had no negative impact on the
environmental, social, cultural or economic
well-being of the region.

2.6.3 What did it cost overall?

Total cost of services in $millions

35.3Actual

35.1Planned

(0.2)Variance

Please refer to section 4.8 for further breakdown of
the activity cost of services.
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2.6.4 What did we achieve?

2.6.4.1 Highlights

Expanded the regional parks network through
strategic acquisitions of new parkland at Te
Arai Point in the north east of the Rodney
District, and land adjacent to the existing
Tapapakanga Regional Park in the south east
of Manukau. The almost 50 hectares of new
parkland at Te Arai Point was acquired for its
strategic linkages, as well as its high ecological,
recreational and scenic values. The 27 hectare
addition to Tapapakanga Regional Park
completes the Tapapakanga jigsaw, filling the
wedge that had previously split the park and
limited access for visitors across the park.
Initiated the review of the Regional Parks
Management Plan. The initial public
consultation notifying the intent to review the
plan resulted in 36 submissions. The
subsequent draft management plan, will be
released for public submissions in late 2009.
Increased the number of publicly bookable
baches on regional parks from 10 to 13 in time
for the 2008 / 2009 summer, with the addition
of baches at Atiu Creek and Scandrett regional
parks and at Whatipu in the Waitakere Ranges
Regional Parkland. The enthusiastic uptake of
this opportunity by regional park visitors shows
that people are keen to experience regional
parks in a range of ways.
Explored the practical implications of
establishing and managing a South East
Auckland (S.E.A.) kayak / waka trail, in
conjunctionwith the regional kayaking fraternity
and iwi. The trail will soon become a reality,
with required development works now
identified and funded through the LTCCP
2009-19.
Made significant progress on the development
of the new master plan for the Auckland
Botanic Gardens. Expected to be completed
in late 2009, this plan will set the framework
for future development and enhancement of
the gardens, in order to best provide for the
aspirations of the regional community and
enhance the reputation of the gardens as a
centre of botanical excellence.

Completed the fourth year of the West Coast
Rock Fishing project (and its first year as a rate
funded programme), ensuring that the gains
from previous years were sustained. Rock
fishing safety advisors continued weekend site
visits to rock fishing locations on the region’s
west coast through to Queens Birthday
weekend. This programme has benefited from
the ongoing support of Safe Waitakere,
Watersafe Auckland and Surf Lifesaving
Northern Region.
Worked with partner agencies to address the
issues associated with vehicles on the region’s
beaches. Achievements included
strengthening the statutory framework, raising
awareness of issues and rules, understanding
the demands and issues for off road motorised
recreation, closing illegal access points,
increasing compliance, and developing a
monitoring programme. These initiatives were
successful in gaining increased regional support
and adherence to the existing regulations. They
have also effected a reduction in the number
of incidents and the extent of environmental
damage arising from vehicles on beaches. ARC
will continue to work with partner organisations
to ensure the gains from this project are not
lost, and has committed funds in its LTCCP
2009-19 to ensure this.
Successfully completed the project to remove
sediment from the two Auckland Botanic
Gardens lakes; the first stage of a project to
improve the quality of waterways within and,
flowing from, the gardens. Further low impact
design works were also initiated, including new
systems to recycle irrigation run-off from the
gardens nursery.
Completed an order in council process to
protect, in perpetuity, existing regional park
land from future sale. The published Local
Government (Auckland Regional Parks) Order
2008, the first of its kind in New Zealand with
respect to protecting parkland, officially came
into effect on Thursday 11 September 2008.
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2.6.4.2 Challenges

Developing and implementing a sustainable
business approach to the operation of Mt
Smart, in order to ensure it remains a high
quality venue for international entertainment
and sporting events and community activities.
Managing new regional parks, including
undertaking basic infrastructure maintenance
and improvements at Te Arai Point in Rodney,
and the new addition to Tapapakanga Regional
Park in Manukau.
Managing the demand and impacts of
recreational activities on the natural, cultural
and landscape values of regional parks, and the
needs of local communities within which
regional parks are located.
Ensuring that the regional parks network is
provided and developed so that it is accessible
to, and valued by, the whole regional
community for generations to come.

2.6.4.3 Working with Maori

WorkingwithMaori to developmore integrated
and sustainable collaborative working
relationships in respect to kaitiakitanga and
parkland throughout the Auckland region. ARC
hopes to strengthen its relationship with
tangata whenua through development of a
Regional Parks Te Mahere Hononga Maori –
Maori Relations Plan.
As part of the Regional Parks Management
Plan review, ARCworkedwith tangata whenua
in recognition of the relationships that each iwi
/ hapu has with the whenua, awa and moana
areas upon and adjacent to the regional parks.
This has involved formal written
communication, hui with each iwi, a
presentation to the Tamaki Makaurau Regional
Mana Whenua Forum and support for iwi to
provide written technical input to the
management plan review.
A television series, Te Pa, which is to be
screened by Television New Zealand later in
2009, was filmed at Tapapakanga Regional Park
during the year. ARC and the film producer
worked closely with both Ngati Paoa and Ngati
Whanaunga to make the filming a success.
Once filming was completed, the Pa structures
were relocated to the Kaiaua marae, where
they are now used for marae activities.
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2.6.5 Our performance against the levels of
service in the LTCCP 2006-16/ Annual Plan
2008/09

Activity 1: Looking after our regional parks

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Achieved85 per centAt least 85 per cent of visitors are
satisfied with regional parks facilities,
as measured annually.

LP1

Achieved85 per centAt least 85 per cent of park visitor
service standards are met, as
measured annually.

LP2

Activity 2: Auckland Botanic gardens

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Achieved85 per centAt least 85 per cent of visitors are
satisfied with the Auckland Botanic
Gardens, as measured annually.

BG1

Achieved75 per centAt least 75 per cent of Botanic
Gardens park visitor service
standards are met, as measured
annually.

BG2
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Activity 3: New regional parks

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

AchievedTotal of 500
hectares

Increase the size of the regional park
network by at least 500 hectares
over the next 10-years (2006-16) by

NP1

purchasing three new parks, as well
as land adjacent to existing parks, to
meet community growth and
demand.

This cumulative target has been
exceeded as a result of ARC's
commitment to extending Auckland's
regional park network. Acquisitions in
the 2008/09 financial year totalled 76.75
hectares, resulting from an addition to
Tapapakanga Regional Park and
purchase of parkland at Te Arai.

Not achieved90 per centCommunity satisfaction with the
provision of regional parks, as
measured annually.

NP2

This result continues the trend from
recent years, being marginally below
target, although it does indicate a small
improvement in satisfaction levels. This
possibly reflects ARC's commitment to
work with other councils to acquire
parkland closer to urban centres, as well
as continuing to acquire parkland in
more remote parts of the region.
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Activity 4: Farming on regional parks

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Achieved90 per centAt least 90 per cent visitor
satisfaction with farm parks.

FP1

Achieved85 per centAt least 85 per cent of farming
service standards
(pasture/infrastructure) are met.

FP2

Activity 5: Mt Smart Stadium

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Achieved85 per centMt Smart Stadium exceeds a
stadium patron satisfaction rating of
85 per cent, as measured annually.

MS1

Achieved185 community
events annually

Facilities at Mt Smart Stadium are
promoted and made available to at
least 185 non-commercial events

MS2

annually, which are of benefit to the
community, as measured by events
records.
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Activity 6: Visitor services

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Not achieved90 per centAt least 90 per cent of the regional
community are aware of regional
parks as measured annually.

VS1

Results, while still high, have been
below target for the last three years.
An enhanced targeted awareness
marketing programme was
implemented in the 2008/09 financial
year, and is expected to result in higher
levels of awareness in future years.

AchievedMore than 2000
active and
registered
volunteers

There are more than 2000 active
parks volunteers.

VS2

N/ADevelopment of this measure was not
progressed as it was no longer

Under
development- not
progressed

An increasing level of support
generated from partnerships as
measured annually with a 10-year
target of at least one active
partnership for each regional park.

VS3

considered appropriate for the Annual
Report. It has been replaced in the
LTCCP 2009-19.

Capital works on parks

StatusResultsTargetMeasure

Not achieved93.5 per cent of projects completed at
year end

95 percent
achieved and

At least 95 per cent of projects are
delivered on time and within budget

within 5 per cent
of budget

with no more than a five per cent
budget variance. 0.9 per cent year end budget variance,

excluding budget carried forward into
2009/10.This carry forward represents
7 per cent of original budget.
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2.6.6 Looking forward

Completing the Regional Parks Management
Plan and undertaking a review of the Mt Smart
/ Rarotonga Domain Management Plan, in
consultation with the regional community.
Establishing a network of suitable overnight
destinations on regional parks along the route
of the South East Auckland (S.E.A.) kayak /
waka trail.
In collaboration with Watersafe Auckland,
ensuring that gains from the West Coast Rock
Fishing project, run after the last four years,
are not lost, by funding the programme into
the future from regional rates.
Further reducing the environmental impact of
farming operations through enhancing and
expanding sustainable farming practices on
regional parks.
Continuing to improve the accessibility, amenity
and safety of new and existing regional parks
through capital improvements, including
harvesting the forestry at Waitawa Regional
Park, implementing works at Muriwai Regional
Park, developing the Long Trail in theWaitakere
Ranges Regional Parkland, and carrying out low
impact design solutions to reduce
contamination of waterways at Auckland
Botanic Gardens.
Through a new committee specifically
established tomake decisions in respect toMt
Smart, undertaking a review of the Mt Smart
business model and developing a sustainable
business direction for the stadium into the
future.
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2.7 Safety

This group is comprised of three activities:

1. Hazards management

2. Civil defence emergency management

3. The Harbourmaster
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2.7.1 The safety activities contribute to the
following community outcomes:

Safer neighbourhoods and public places,
The ARC, the community, local and central
government and business work together to
achieve results,
Neighbourhoods with a sense of community,
Recreational and leisure opportunities that offer
a range of experiences for all,
Open spaces and green places, now and for
the future.

2.7.2 Influence on the four well-beings

These activities had no negative impact on the
environmental, social, cultural or economic
well-being of the region.

2.7.3 What did it cost overall?

Total cost of services in $millions

4.2Actual

3.9Planned

(0.3)Variance

Please refer to section 4.8 for further breakdown of
the activity cost of services.
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2.7.4 What did we achieve?

2.7.4.1 Highlights

Activity 1: Hazards management

Participated in the planning for Exercise
Ruaumoko – a civil defence exercise based on
a volcanic eruption in the Auckland Volcanic
Field. Organised the scientific scenario,
established the Auckland Volcanic Scientific
Advisory Group and formalised itsmembership.
Organised civil defence training for 80 ARC
staff and their successful participation in
Exercise Ruaumoko.
Established a new arrangement with the Civil
Defence Emergency Management Group to
provide space within the ARC for a new
Emergency Operations Centre, and provide
staff to help run the centre during an
emergency.
Contributed to the preparation of the draft
ARPS.

Activity 2: Civil defence emergencymanagement

Provided staff volunteers to operate the Group
Emergency Operations Centre (GEOC) in
emergency management response and
participate in a major storm in July 2008 and
the “swine flu” pandemic that started in April
2009.
The EmergencyManagementOffice conducted
the first ever large scale recovery exercise in
New Zealand.
The development of a new and enhanced
website for Auckland Civil Defence.

Activity 3: The Harbourmaster

Responded to 5 commercial ship oil spills
resulting in $56000 cost recovery and fines.
The Navigation Safety Bylaws adopted by
Council and became operative on 1 July 2008.
Launched new harbour patrol boat.
Processed and authorised 923 harbour events.
1600 safe boating education packs distributed.
Removal of 54 dangerous piles from the
Hobson Bay wavescreen.

2.7.4.2 Challenges

Activity 1: Hazards management

Raising public awareness of the community’s
exposure to hazards and minimising risks.

Activity 2: Civil defence emergencymanagement

Increasing the preparedness of the public of
Auckland to cope with an emergency.

Activity 3: The Harbourmaster

Commenced procedures to remove illegal
moorings in conjunction with the Coastal
Consent Compliance team.

2.7.4.3 Working with Maori

Civil Defence Emergency Management
engagement with Mäori occurs at the local
council level.
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2.7.5 Our performance against the levels of
service in the LTCCP 2006-16/ Annual Plan
2008/09

Activity 1: Hazards management

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Not achieved58 per centImproved regional understanding of
hazard consequences and risk.

HZ1

This measure looks at 10 different
natural hazards, our knowledge of
hazards information (location,
magnitude, frequency), our knowledge
of vulnerability (of physical
infrastructure, people, social and
economic) to these hazards, our
knowledge of the consequential risk
and our treatment of that risk. Each of
these factors are given a score and our
total knowledge is an average of
knowledge across these areas
(expressed as a% of total knowledge).
The 10 identified hazards that were
used as a benchmark have been
reassessed for 2008/09 and scores
updated based on research undertaken
over the last 12 months.

Achieved50 per centRegional hazards policies
implemented in district plans, as
measured by policy acceptance
ratings.

HZ2

There have been no new plan changes
relating to managing natural hazards in
the last 12 months.
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Activity 2: Civil defence emergency management

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Not achievedStakeholder satisfaction has not been
formally measured. However, the ARC
is the Auckland CDEMG’s administering
authority and provides the following
support:

SatisfiedCivil Defence Emergency
Management Group (CDEMG)
stakeholder satisfaction with ARC
administration of the CDEMG Plan.

CD1

1) Administration of meetings of the
CDEMG committee
2) Provision of advice and support to
effectively ensure sound financial
governance
3) Administration support
4) Assistance where requested to give
legal opinions and other policy
clarifications, inclusive of contract
advice.

In doing this, the ARC has met the
expectations of the Auckland CDEMG.

Activity 1: The Harbourmaster

StatusResultsTargetMeasures

AchievedMinimum 50 per
cent

At least 50 per cent of harbour users
satisfied with harbour management.
* Measured every two years

HM1

Measured every two years from
2004/05

AchievedMinimum 70 per
cent

At least 70 per cent of harbour users
aware of the ARC's role in harbour
management.

HM2

Measured every two years from
2004/05
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StatusResultsTargetMeasures

Achieved100 per cent
response

100 per cent of oil spills responded
to effectively and on time.

HM3

2.7.6 Looking forward

Activity 1: Hazards management

Identify further opportunities to reduce risk
from natural hazards.
Provide advice and input into hazards policy
development and implementation.
Provide natural hazards advice to the CDEMG
to ensure an appropriate civil defence response
across the region.
Model the extent of inundation from a distant
source tsunami on the Auckland region.

Activity 2: Civil defence emergencymanagement

Ensure the Group EmergencyOperating Centre
has all the required processes in place to
complete effective incident management if an
emergency were to occur.
Provide emergency management advice
through the effective management of an
Emergency Management Office.
Co-ordinate the development of an information
management system within the GEOC.
Develop an early warning system for effective
disaster management throughout the Auckland
region.
Participate in all National CDEMG exercises
that require Auckland Region's involvement.
Ensure that, once the Auckland Regional Local
Government governance project has been
completed, any issues are resolved
satisfactorily.
Participate in National projects as requested
by the Ministry of Civil Defence Emergency
Management.

Activity 3: The Harbourmaster

A continuation of the review of moorings
management issues around the region.
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Chapter 3: Your regional council

This chapter includes explanations of the structure and purpose of the ARC Group including, the elected Council,
ARC management team, Council Controlled Organisations (CCOs) and how they operate as a business
organisation. It outlines what the chairman, councillors and general managers do and the corporate governance
practices established to ensure the council fulfils its legal obligations, such as its financial accountability and
risk management. It also includes the objectives and performance results for its CCOs (ARTA and ARH) and
reports on the Council’s operations and sustainability targets.
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3.1 Your Council

3.1.1 Elected representatives

The 13 ARC councillors representing the Auckland
region are:

Michael Lee, Chairman
Chair, Regional Sustainable Development
Forum
Chair, CE Review Committee
Deputy Chair, Hauraki Gulf Forum
T: 09 366 2111
M: 0274 943 198
(Auckland)

Dianne Glenn
Chair, Environmental Management
Committee
T: 09 238 5352
M: 027 4284 779
(Franklin/Papakura)

Michael Barnett, Deputy Chair
Chair, Regional Economic Development
Forum
Deputy Chair, Regional Transport
Committee
T: 09 302 9916
(Auckland)

Brent Morrissey
Deputy Chair, Transport and Urban
Development Committee
T: 09 366 2000 ext. 7122
M: 0274 853 521
(Manukau)

Judith Bassett QSO
Chair, Auckland Regional Holdings
T: 09 849 2267
(Auckland)

Christine Rankin
Deputy Chair, Regional Strategy and
Planning Committee
T: 09 366 2066
(North Shore)

Bill Burrill
Chair, Finance Committee
M: 021 978 139
(Manukau)

Christine Rose
Chair, Transport and Urban Development
Committee
Chair, Regional Transport Committee
Deputy Chair, Parks and Heritage
Committee
T: 09 412 5668
M: 027 428 4778
(Rodney)

Clive Carter
Deputy Chair, Finance Committee
T: 09 303 1615
M: 0275 778 921
(Auckland)
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Jan Sinclair
Deputy Chair, EnvironmentalManagement
Committee
T: 09 292 2421
M: 0274 773 317
(Manukau)

Joel Cayford
T: 09 445 2763
M: 027 4978 123
(North Shore)

Paul Walbran
Chair, Regional Strategy and Planning
Committee
Director, Auckland Regional Holdings
Director Sea + City Projects Limited
T: 09 817 8163
M: 021 886 723
(Waitakere)

Sandra Coney
Chair, Parks and Heritage Committee
T: 09 366 2000, ext. 8208
(Waitakere)

3.1.2 How the council works

The role and purpose of local

government

The Local Government Act 2002 establishes the role
of the ARC and the purposes of local government.
That is to enable democratic decision-making and
action by, and on behalf of, communities, and to
promote the social, economic, environmental and
cultural well-being of communities in the present
and for the future.

The Council, in performing its responsibilities, acts
in accordance with the principles established in the
Act, and within its wider legislative framework. Key
legislation enabling the Council to perform its
functions includes the:

Local Government Act 2002
Resource Management Act 1991
Biosecurity Act 1993
Civil Defence Emergency Management Act
2002
Land Transport Management Act 2003
Public Transport Management Act 2008
Reserves Act 1977
Hazardous Substances and New Organisms
Act 1996
Local Government Official Information and
Meetings Act 1987
Hauraki Gulf Marine Park Act 2000
Waitakere Ranges Heritage Area Act 2008.

Regional representation

The ARC has 13 councillors, elected from across the
Auckland region: Auckland, Franklin/Papakura,
Manukau, North Shore, Rodney and Waitakere.
Elections for the 13 councillors are held every three
years. The current Council was elected in 2007.

The Council seeks to provide effective leadership
within the region, including effective advocacy on
behalf of the over 1.3 million people living here. The
Council also aspires to take a more effective role in
promoting and achieving the sustainable
development of the region.

Councillors are accountable to the regional
community, with whom they consult on awide range
of plans and policies. Staff work in partnership with
councillors to ensure the best decisions are made
for the region. Meetings are held regularly, at which
staff report to councillors. Once the public has been
asked its opinion and the Council has approved an
activity or function, ARC staff, in partnership with
the community, make it happen.
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The role of Council and its chairman

The role of the councillors, acting as the Council, is
to develop and adopt ARC policy, to monitor the
performance of the Council against its stated
objectives and policies, to ensure prudent
stewardship of council resources, to employ the
chief executive and to advocate on behalf of the
region’s residents and ratepayers. A code of conduct
governs the relationship between the Council and
ARC staff.

The chairman’s role is to preside at Council
meetings, advocate on behalf of the regional
community and provide leadership and feedback to
other elected members. The deputy chair performs
these responsibilities if the chairman is absent.

What’s the difference between the ARC

and the region’s city and district councils?

Auckland’s seven city and district councils primarily
deliver services, such as water supply, sewage
treatment, libraries, waste disposal and road
maintenance. The ARC manages the region’s
growth, plans and contributes funds for the region’s
transport, manages its regional parks and integrates
the management of the environment in all of the
region’s cities and districts.

How we keep you informed

The ARC makes regular efforts to ensure you are
informed through the media, public consultation
meetings, various newsletters (including Region
Wide), advertisements and websites.

Our Long-term Council Community Plan (LTCCP)
and Annual Report play vital roles in developing an
integrated planning, reporting and decision making
framework. The purpose of the framework is to
ensure that our efforts and resources are directed
towards achieving strategic objectives and our
long-term vision for the region.

The Annual Report outlines our performance over
the past year against activities included in the Annual
Plan, as well as our longer term outcomes for the
community from the LTCCP. This report aims to
present Council’s performance in a holistic and
transparent manner. In doing so it aims to document
how our policies, programmes and actions are
contributing to a more sustainable region by tracking
performance against key indicators at an
organisational and regional level.

Having your say

There are many ways for you to have your say on
the governing of the Auckland region. Every three
years you have the opportunity to vote for councillors
within your district in local body elections. You can
write or phone electedmembers, speak at ameeting
on your own or as part of a group, or present a
petition. There is also the opportunity every year to
make submissions on the ARC’s annual or ten-year
plan.

3.1.3 Council committee structure

All councillors are members of the five standing
committeeswhichmeetmonthly. These committees
carry out the bulk of the Council’s decision-making
work.

The standing committees, other committees and
sub-committees generally have a review or
recommendation role. Ad hoc committees are
formed as required for special issues.

The standing committees and their areas of
responsibility are illustrated in the following diagram.
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3.1.4 Committee achievements 2008/09

The key achievements of the standing committees
during 2008/09 are listed below:

Environmental Management Committee

Endorsed the proposed Navigation Safety
Bylaw Schedule of Infringement Offences and
Fees.
Approved funding of $15,400 for Awhitu
Peninsula Landcare.
Support of E-Day (for recycling of electronic
waste) through sponsorship, staff time and a
public statement.
Assistedwith the riparian rehabilitation required
in Whitford Forest, through a grant.
Increased the Environmental Initiatives Fund
maximum grant possible to $15,000.
Submitted to the Ministry for the
Environment’s Waste Minimisation in New
Zealand document.
Endorsed the Sustainable Catchments
Programme.
Endorsed Land Assistance Funds to fence and
plant riparian streams, and development of 39
farm plans in the Mahurangi Catchment.
Endorsed the Stormwater Action Plan activities,
including providing technical and funding
assistance to develop Integrated Catchment
Management Plans.
Awarded six grants under the Low Impact
Design Innovative Grant (LIDIG) programme
for 2008/10 to incorporate Low Impact Design
into the developments through the LIDIG
Council panel.
Endorsed allocation of $412,000 to community
groups under the Coastal Enhancement Fund
for projects in the coastal area during 2009/10
that address environmental enhancement,
safety and navigation, and public works and
infrastructure.
Approved an increase in support for the
Waitemata Harbour Clean-up Trust from
$30,000 to $40,000 per annum.
Agreed new priority areas for the
Environmental Initiatives Fund to ensure that
funds are distributed into areas that are
strategically important to the region.
Approved $130,000 in annual funding for the
Learning Through Experience programme
following the loss of the Ministry of Education
contract.
Made changes to the ARC’s collection of waste
agricultural chemicals, including endorsement
of the new AgRecovery scheme for rural
landowners.

Approved $20,000 to assist community
organisations to meet the cost of applying for
resource consents for projects that have wide
public benefit.

Finance Committee

Endorsed, in principle, the proposed
contributions by the Auckland Regional Council
to regional projects that help deliver the Rugby
World Cup 2011.
Administered the remission of rates for
community, sporting and other organisations
providing community services.
Endorsed the amended Policy 8 (remission of
rates for rating units protected for natural or
historic or cultural conservation purposes) to
Council to encourage the preservation and
enhancement of open space in the Auckland
region.
Monitored and provided guidance to the
internal sustainability programme via quarterly
sustainability reports.
Monitored the performance of ARTA and ARH,
including reviewing quarterly and annual
reports, statements of intent, ARH's Long Term
Funding Plan and Board appointments.
Considered major transactions by ARH and
ARTA, including ARTA's public transport
procurement strategy, the integrated ticketing
project, and the winding up of Americas Cup
Village Limited.
Managed ARC finances within the financial
framework of the ARC Annual Plan 2008/09.
Adopted the Treasury Management Policy.
Endorsed the findings of the internal audit
report into the management of the
Environmental Initiatives Fund processes

Parks and Heritage Committee

Expanded the regional parks network through
purchasing 50 hectares of new parkland at Te
Arai in August 2008 and an addition of 27
hectares to Tapapakanga Regional Park in June
2009.
Adopted significant ongoing measures to
prevent the spread of kauri dieback, including
extensive phytosanitary measures in the
Waitakere Ranges Regional Park, surveys and
signage in all regional parkland, development
of standard operating procedures for
contractors and concessionaires; also funding
of research into disease vectors and control
methods, and extensive community
consultation.
Approved grass carp for the eradication of
Egeria densa from Lake Wainamu,
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Renewed support for the Artist in Residence
on regional parks programme.
Continued to work toward a position where
there is greater control of vehicles on beaches
regionally.
Endorsed the West Coast Rock Fishing Safety
Programme for 2008/09 and 2009/10.
Renamed theWest Stand atMt Smart Stadium
the Colin Kay Stand in his memory.
Made stands and public areas at Mt Smart
smoke free, except for dedicated smoking
areas outside the stands.
Approved the removal of pest plants at many
locations across the regional parks network,
including 37 hectares of pampas grass at
Whatipu.
Approved the control of animal pests at key
locations, including significant possum and goat
control in the Hunua Ranges and buffer zone,
control of many pests in High Conservation
Value Areas regionally, and management of
Possum Control Areas at Awhitu and South
Kaipara pensinsulas.
Improved the quality of the ARCwebsite “plant
search” function, which won a national award.
Approved the adoption of the Biosecurity
Management Plan for the Hauraki Gulf
Controlled Area, and rolled out extensive
signage and other measures as part of the
“Treasure Islands” campaign.
Assisted hundreds of community groups,
schools and landowners with environmental
issues, by provision of advice, resources and
direct funding.
Supported the ongoing partnership with
Waitakere Forest and Bird with the Ark in the
Park project, and approved the 2006-08 annual
report.
Endorsed the ongoing success of Tawharanui
Open Sanctuary in partnership with TOSSI
(Tawharanui Open Sanctuary Society Inc), and
the implementation of Shakespear Open
Sanctuary in partnership with SOSSI
(Shakespear Open Sanctuary Society Inc).
Endorsed the ongoing success of kokako
conservation programme in the Hunua Ranges
and recognised the contribution volunteers
make to the project.
Recognised the success of the releases of
North Island robins and whiteheads to open
sanctuaries on regional parks and on private
land in the Auckland region.
Supported the progress with conservation and
restoration of built heritage resources on
regional parks.
Supported the restoration of the historic
heritage orchard at Brook Homestead, Awhitu
Regional Park.

Regional Strategy and Planning Committee

Developed a background document on the
proposed review of the Auckland Regional
Policy Statement and considered feedback on
this.
Accepted Version 1 of the reviewed Auckland
Regional Policy Statement and provided
feedback for the development of Version 2.
Heard submissions and notified decisions on
plan changes to the Auckland Regional Policy
Statement, including Plan Change 6 (LGAAA
changes) and Plan Change 8 (Landscape and
Volcanic Cones).
Released decisions on proposed Plan Changes
11 and 12 (Takanini and Papakura) to the
Auckland Regional Policy Statement andmade
submissions on associated district plan
changes.
Commenced hearings on Plan Change 13
regarding changes to the Metropolitan Urban
Limits in the vicinity of the Auckland
International Airport and made submissions on
the associated district plan change.
Approved a significant number of consent
orders relating to appeals to the proposed Air,
Land andWater Plan, proposed Rodney District
Plan 2000 andWaitakere District Plan changes
under the LGAAA.
Heard submissions and notified decisions on
a number of changes to the Regional Plan:
Coastal including Plan Change 4 (Mangroves),
Plan Change 3 (Wynyard Quarter) and made
submissions on associated Auckland City
Council Plan Change 4.
Approved an Issues and Options paper for the
review of the Regional Plan: Sediment Control.
Approved submissions on the Three Waters
Draft Strategic Plan, the Unit Titles Bill and
notified National Policy Statements on
freshwater and renewable electricity
generation.
Approved an Aquaculture Issues and Options
paper.
Approved the ARC submission to the
Aquaculture No. 2 Bill and Resource
Management (Simplify and Streamline)
Amendment Bill 2009 and presented to the
Select Committees.
Endorsed version 1 of One Plan and the
preparation of the regional infrastructure
inventory.
Approved Issues andOptions papers on climate
change and energy, and reviewed decisions
on the development of a regional energy
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strategy and regional response to climate
change.
Considered and approved consequential actions
following Environment Court decisions on Long
Bay, Swanson and Bayswater.

Transport and Urban Development Committee

Approved the Regional Parking Strategy and
the Regional Strategic Freight Network Plan.
Submitted on ARTA’s draft Auckland Transport
Plan and Auckland Regional Land Transport
Programme, the draft Park and Ride Strategy,
and the Auckland Public Transport Plan.
Supported the provision of walking and cycling
facilities across the Auckland Harbour Bridge.
Submitted on various plans including: SH 1/16
Auckland to Wellsford Strategy Study, the
Regional Road Safety Plan 2008-2012, the
Waikato Regional Rail discussion document.
Supported the preparation of a master plan for
the proposed development of the Orakei
peninsula.

Approved a submission on the discussion
document “Building Sustainable Urban
Communities".
Endorsed the findings of the cruise terminal
project work on Queens Wharf.
Endorsed the draft precinct plan for Wynyard
Quarter (Precinct Plan 1, version 6).
Championed light rail, including heritage trams,
in any public transport options for Wynyard
Quarter as part of the area’s redevelopment.
Supported the intention to relocate the bulk
liquids industry from Wynyard wharf.
Approved the development framework for the
Onehunga rail station.
Approved the CBD Rail Link Memorandum of
Understanding between ARC, ARTA, Auckland
City Council and NZ Railways.
Approved AucklandPlus Statement of Intent.
Approved new funding and governance
arrangements for Tourism Auckland.
Oversaw ARC’s role in leverage and legacy
arrangements for Rugby World Cup 2011.
Endorsed ARC’s contribution to the Tamaki
Transformation Project.

Chapter 3: . Your regional council

96

A
uc
kl
an
d
R
eg
io
na
lC

ou
nc
il
|A

nn
ua
lR

ep
or
t
09



3.1.5 Councillors’ meeting attendance and
remuneration 2008/09

Remuneration and ExpensesNumber of meetings

Councillor
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59,240---59,24066-510518829222Barnett

108,2164391,1721,53045,75011245-103112612101529Bassett*

96,2171,2726,56516,94971,4301573176113104111101526Burrill

48,3321,502611-46,22091-15851027117723Carter

52,9781806684,08048,050123821210113281671126Cayford

77,3186663,382-73,270107-41102927229926Coney

120,77469216,45729,66573,9601835631211211389101628Glenn

157,4311,.0342,514-153,884108-5994732107929Lee

67,0135265,9446,27354,270149202911813302091630Morrissey

40,009-919-39,09065-226151996319Rankin

100,1671,6388,49913,77076,260165165913513502191329Rose

69,371-14,6552,05752,660130417119133019101829Sinclair

156,5836605,6107,02573,730147471012610511381628Walbran**

*Councillor Bassett’s remuneration includes ARH Board Chair fees
**Councillor Walbran’s remuneration includes ARH Board Director fees and Sea+City Projects Limited Director fees.

+RMA = Resource Management Act

The table above shows councillor attendance at
scheduled council and statutory committeemeetings
and required committee and sub-committee
meetings. While eleven Council meetings were
scheduled for the 2008/09 year additional meetings
were added to address specific issues and topics.

This table records formal meetings as defined by the
Local Government Official Information andMeetings
Act 1987. It should be noted that the number of
meetings recorded within the table above is only an
indication of councillors’ time allocation as where a
meeting extends for more than one day it is counted
for each day. Other meetings such as policy
document hearings and regional committeemeetings
do not necessarily include all councillors as they are
not automatically members of those committees. In
addition, councillors attend a significant number of
briefings, community meetings, conferences and
site visits that are not recorded here.

Furthermore councillors devote a number of hours
to committee entities voluntarily which are not noted
on this table. For example councillors are members
of committees and boards such as Ambury Park
Centre for Riding Therapy, AucklandRegional Physical
Activity and Sport Strategy (ARPASS), Friends of
Botanic Gardens and the Regional Animal Health
Committee, to name but a few.

Councillor remuneration is made up of several
components: annual salary, honorium, and meeting
fees. Income from Resource Management Act
hearings is met by the applicant and is therefore not
ratepayer funded. Expenses include reimbursements
for costs such as internet broad band,
communications and other out of pocket expenses
in line with Remuneration Authority policy.
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3.2 The ARC Group

This section outlines the organisational structure, management and corporate governance for the Auckland
Regional Council Group including its two Council Controlled Organisations, Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH)
and Auckland regional Transport Authority (ARTA). The following diagram reflects the structure and relationship
of the Group.
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3.2.1 ARC’s management team

The role of the management team:

The ARC management team is made up of a chief executive and general managers. They work in partnership
with the Chairman, councillors and staff to ensure the best decisions are made for the region.

Peter Winder
Chief Executive

Chief Executive

The chief executive is responsible to the Council
for:

implementing Council decisions,
advising the Council,
performance of powers and duties delegated
to the CE or other employees,
management of the council’s operations,
maintaining systems that enable effective
planning and reporting,
providing leadership for, and employing staff
on behalf of, the Council.
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General managers

ARC's General managers oversee the day-to-day
operations carried out by staff.

In 2008/09 the ARC underwent a mini restructure of
some of its management areas. The number of
general managers went from seven in 2007/08 to

eight in 2008/09. Two new departments were
created to oversee Human Resources, and Transport
and Urban development. The Corporate Services
department took on the responsibility of the former
Finance department and a Chief Operating Officer
was was named to oversee the department.

The General Managers in 2008/09 included:

Louise Mason
General Manager
Programmes and Partnerships

Christine Perrins
Executive Manager
Chief Executive’s Office

Lesley Baddon
General Manager
Policy and Planning

Brian Monk
Chief Operating Officer
Corporate Services

John Smith
General Manager
Transport and Urban Development

Janine Bell
General Manager
Regulatory Services

Julia Wiegandt-Goude
General Manager
Human Resources

Mace Ward
General Manager
Parks
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3.2.2 ARC's organisational structure

The organisation has eight departments:

Chief Executive’s office
Corporate services
Human resources
Parks
Policy and planning
Transport and urban development
Programmes and partnerships
Regulatory services

Each department is headed by a general manager
and is made up of groups that deliver on the activities
that the department is responsible for (Refer to 3.2.1
ARC's Management team section).

The diagram below shows the teams that make up
each department.
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The role of ARC staff is to support Council

decision making and implement Council policy

and decisions.

We recognise and treasure

value creation for the Auckland region,
learning-based improvement,
excellent public service,
working together for common goals,
professionalism, humility and responsibility,
treating others with dignity and building trusting
relationships.

Support services for the organisation is provided

through the following departments:

In 2008/09, the Corporate Service and Finance
departments were re-structured to create the
following support functions. The Organisational
Performance team was also shifted from the CE's
Office into Corporate Services .

Corporate services

This department is in charge of:

Accounting services
Administrative operations
Contact centre
Communications and marketing
Corporate planning and reporting
Information and communications technology
Organisational performance
Rates and revenue planning
Treasury and financial planning

Human Resources

This department is in charge of:

Health and safety
Human resource leadership and advice
Human resource information systems
Recruitment
Staff development

The following departments are responsible for

the delivery of activities outlined in the ARC's

LTCCP:

Chief Executive’s office

Provides strategic advice and support to elected
members, central government and stakeholders in
the identification, development, alignment and
delivery of community outcomes that build a resilient
and sustainable future for the Auckland region. It
also liaises with Council-Controlled Organisations,
ARTA and ARH.

This department contributes to the following
activities:

Regional co-ordination and external relations
Democracy Services
ARTA operating and capital funding

Programmes and partnerships

Delivers non-statutory programmes and partnerships
to support regional goals. The programmes are
designed to achieve regional outcomes and drive
initiatives to bring about behavioural change within
the community through education, advocacy and
partnerships. In 2008/09, the Māori relations team
wasmoved to this department from the CE's office.

This department contributes to the following
activities:

Stormwater management and pollution
response
Freshwater management
Coastal management
Land management
Improving air quality
Natural heritage
Biosecurity
Cultural heritage
Economic development
Regional coordination and external relations
Te Hononga Māori
Sustainable schools and communities
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Parks

Responsible for managing a network of 26 regional
parks covering approximately 41,000 hectares,
ranging from sandy beaches, farmland and
bush-wilderness areas to the Auckland Botanic
Gardens and Mt Smart Stadium. The ARC provides
for the use, enjoyment, maintenance, protection,
preservation and enhancement of the regional parks
network by everyone in the Auckland region.

The Parks department contributes to the following
activities:

Looking after our regional parks
Auckland Botanic Gardens
New regional parks
Farming on regional parks
Mt Smart Stadium
Visitor services
Natural heritage
Biosecurity
Cultural heritage

Regulatory services

Responsible for ensuring the effective application
of, and compliance with, the ResourceManagement
Act, ARC policy and rules through regulatory
processes. The department provides regulatory
support and advice to the organisation and the
Council’s electedmembers. In 2008/09, the Auckland
Regional Civil Defence Emergency Management
Group (CDEMG)wasmoved to this department from
Policy and planning.

This department contributes to the following
activities:

Stormwater management and pollution
response
Freshwater management
Coastal management
Land management
Improving air quality
Planning for the future
Hazards management
Civil defence emergency management
Harbourmaster

Policy and planning

Responsible for driving the development and
monitoring of regional policy and strategic planning
for the Auckland region including the Regional Policy
Statement and Regional Growth Strategy. The
department provides the process and decision
framework which underpins statutory and
non-statutory responses to achieve community
outcomes.

This department contributes to the following
activities:

Built Environment / Auckland Regional Growth
Strategy
Stormwater management and pollution
response
Freshwater management
Coastal management
Land management
Improving air quality
Planning for the future
Economic development
Regional coordination and external relations

Transport and Urban development

In 2008/09, this department was created to oversee
the implementation of regional policies and strategic
plans relating to transport and urban development
in the Auckland region. Teams were moved from
the Policy and Planning and the Regulatory Services
departments. The Transport and Urban development
department provides the process and decision
framework which underpins statutory and
non-statutory responses to achieve community
outcomes related to transport and urban
development.

This department contributes to the following
activities:

Regional Land Transport Strategy
Built Environment / Auckland Regional Growth
Strategy
Planning for the future
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3.2.3 Corporate Governance

Identification and management of risks

The ARC’s corporate governance practises have
been established to ensure that all legally required
responsibilities, such as financial accountability and
risk and assurance, are carried out.

Financial and performance reporting

Monthly financial results for each department are
reported against budget and monitored by
management, with the FinancialManagement Report
considered at the monthly Finance Committee
meeting.

Extensive KPIs relating to all departments have been
developed and are reported quarterly through a
balanced scorecard to the Council.

The Local Government Act 2002 requires the ARC
to report against community outcomes every three
years and groups of activities annually.

ARC’s audit, risk and assurance

programme

The Council has an internal audit function, with the
primary objective to assist management by providing
an independent and objective opinion to the
organisation on the control environment (comprising
the systems of governance, risk management and
internal control). This objective is achieved by
examining, evaluating and reporting on the adequacy
of the council’s control environment via a number
of individual audit assignments each year (Annual
Audit Plan). Internal audit reports to the Finance
Committee.

In 2007, the Audit and CEO Review Special
Committee (now the Finance Committee) approved
the Internal Audit Charter and the Audit Committee
Charter. This document guide the internal auditor in
performing audits thereby giving assurance to
management and other stakeholders.

Finance Committee

Internal audit reports quarterly to the Finance
Committee on all findings and recommendations as
well as improvement actions undertaken by
management on audits performed. The committee’s
main responsibilities are:

External Focus:

a) Oversee council compliance with the Local
Government Act 2002.

b) Review the final draft financial statements prior
to approval by Council, taking on board any external
audit comments. In particular the review should
focus on:

significant changes in accounting policies and
practises;
major risk areas;
significant audit adjustments;
any concerns raised by Audit New Zealand; and
any proposed departures from accounting
standards.

(c) Review management responses to audit reports
and the extent to which external audit
recommendations concerning internal accounting
controls and other matters are implemented.

(d) Recommend the adoption of the Annual Report.

Internal Audit Focus:

(a) Ascertain that the activities undertaken by the
internal audit function are in accordance with the
Internal Audit Charter.

(b) Provide guidance around the development of the
audit plan and activities of the internal audit function.

(c) Review the effectiveness of the internal audit
function including compliance with best practise.

(d) Review the implementation of significant
recommendationsmade by the internal audit function
around critical risk areas.

Other Matters:

(a) Review the Audit Committee Charter annually.

(b) Review the internal control environment including
computerised information system controls and
security.

(c) Review, with the Council, legal compliance and
any legal matter that could have a significant impact
on the Council’s financial statements.

(d) Recommend special projects or investigations.

(e) Oversee the establishment and ongoing
management of the ARC’s risk management
framework and strategies, including:

Insurance;
risk documentation;
reporting;
mitigation; and
avoidance strategies.
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Risk and Assurance Report:

Assurance assignments undertaken during 2008/09
included the following:

Risk Management

Risk Management is the culture, processes and
structures that are directed towards the effective
management of potential opportunities and adverse
effects within the Auckland Regional Council (ARC)
environment. Internal audit continues to participate
in the development of the ARC’s methodology to
identify, assess and mitigate risks, and to ensure
the ARC, including management and the Council,
are aware of key business risks.

SAP Audit

This follow up review focused on the management
action plans to address the recommendations of the
May 2007 review on the BASIS component of SAP.
The objectives of the 2007 review were to examine
the policies and procedures around themanagement
of SAP BASIS, and to assess the controls
appropriateness and operating effectiveness.

Sensitive Expenditure Audit

The focus of the review was the existence of and
communication of ARC Policy regarding sensitive
expenditure including transactional testing of key
controls (granting of spend, completeness of returns,
approvals, tracking etc).

Grant Management Audit

During the audit, the focus was on grant
management controls to ensure grants were used
for the purposes intended and that there were
sufficient controls in place around the giving of
money and the tracking of expenditure.

Auckland Plus Project Management Audit

The audit considered the elements of project
management and how they have been applied to
Auckland Plus projects, by verifying the presence of
strategic project management tools for organising
and monitoring every facet of the project, and the
presence of clearly defined phases and
sub-processes throughout the project’s lifecycle that
are in agreement with the project objectives.

Development of a Legislative ComplianceManual

and Register of Compliance Obligations

The ARC has a multitude of operating areas and
processes. Consequently a wide range of legislation
is applicable to the council. The ARC appreciates
that as part of the risk management process, one of
its core risks is compliancewith statutory obligations.
As a public entity, the ARC has a responsibility to
identify and comply with all relevant legislation.
Non-compliance could expose the ARC, its staff, or
members of Council, to risks.

The Legislative Compliance Manual (that includes a
Legislative Compliance Policy and Programme) forms
an integral part of the ARC’s governance framework
and aims to provide guidance on the management
of the ARC’s legislative obligations, including the
process surrounding legislative changes and
amendments. The programme also aims to prevent,
and where necessary, identify and respond to,
non-compliance with the ARC’s obligations under
law.

The Register of Compliance Obligations includes the
general elements which have a duty or compliance
requirement, mechanisms in place to ensure
compliance and the effects of non-compliance on
the ARC.

Petrol Card Review

The objective of the review was to determine
whether controls were adequate over the
procurement of fuel using fuel cards.

HR/Payroll data confirmation review

The objective of this review was to ensure all
employee data recorded on HR records correspond
with employee information recorded on the payroll
system.
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3.2.4 Council-Controlled Organisations

The Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA)
and Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH) are 100 per
cent owned, council-controlled organisations
established to assist the ARC fulfil its responsibilities
in relation to:

setting the strategy for the Auckland regional
land transport system,
integrating the planning, funding and
development of the Auckland regional land
transport system, and
stormwater funding in the long-term interests
of the region.

While the ARC has a responsibility to monitor and
report on each CCO's performance as part of its
annual report, ARH and ARTA prepare their own
annual reports, and readers are referred to them for
further detail.

3.2.4.1 Auckland Regional Transport Authority
(ARTA)

ARTA’s objective is set by legislation through the
Local Government (Auckland) Amendment Act 2004
(LGAAA). This is to plan, fund and develop the
Auckland regional land transport system in a way
that contributes to an integrated, safe, responsive
and sustainable land transport system for the region.

In addition to this objective, the ARC has, through
its governance arrangements with ARTA, instituted
a number of policies and objectives that relate to the
ownership and control of ARTA. These arrangements
include specific objectives and performance targets
incorporated within the ARTA Statement of Intent
2008-11.

Nature and scope of activities of ARTA

ARTA was established on 1 July 2004, although it
did not become fully operational until 1 December
2004. ARTA is responsible for a range of functions
including:

Preparation of a land transport programme for
the Auckland land transport system that
includes all of ARTA’s activities under the Act
in accordance with the Land Transport
Management Act 2003.
Responsibility for the public transport service
obligations of the ARC vested in it by section
24 of the LGAAA.
The functions of the Regional Council for the
Auckland region under the Public Transport
Management Act 2008.
Responsibility for the approved activities of the
ARC under the national land transport
programme (other than activities relating to the
exercise of the ARC’s powers under sections
175 to 182 of the Public Transport
Management Act 2008).
Seeking and receiving funding for the Auckland
regional land transport systems from sources
other than the National Land Transport Account
and making payments from the Auckland
Regional Land Transport Fund.
Carrying out research, education, or training in
relation to land transport in the Auckland region.
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Performance objectives and results (ARTA)

Performance objectives and targets were agreed between the ARC and ARTA as part of ARTA’s Statement
of Intent. A summary of ARTA’s assessment of its performance against those targets is set out below. Full
details are contained in ARTA’s Annual Report 2008/09.

Result2008/09 targetTargetPerformance measureStrategic
challenge

58,621,00056,500,00010.5 per cent growth over 3 years (with
a base year of 2005/06 = 51.13m).

Total PT patronage
increases.

Passenger
Transport (PT)

77.7 per cent (All
projects)

85 per centPercentage of ARTA capital budget
spent during the financial year.

Capital projects
implemented to schedule
and on budget.

Build a
customer
focused

84.3 per cent
(Controllable
projects)

organisation
with excellent
leadership
practices,
effective AchievedAchieveAdministration costs in any financial

year do not exceed the amount
approved by the ARC.

Administration costs
managed to budget.teamwork and

good
processes.

AchievedAchieve100 per cent compliance as measured
by Audit NZ annual audit.

Accounting policies are
consistent with the ARC
Group and all legal and
audit requirements are
met.

AchievedAchieve100 per cent compliance as measured
by Land Transport NZ annual audit.

Policies, procedures and
processes consistent with
Land Transport NZ’s
requirements.

98.6 per cent95 per cent
(based on real
time data)

Northern Busway services arrive at
destination station within 5 minutes of
schedule.

RTN services arrive at all
stations within 5 minutes
of scheduled time.

Improve service
punctuality.

87.8 per cent75 per centWestern Line rail services arrive at
destination station within 5 minutes of
schedule.

84.2 per cent88 per centSouthern and Eastern Line rail services
arrive at stations within 5 minutes of
schedule.

87.6 per cent95 per cent
(based on real
time data)

Bus and ferry services (using Real Time)
begin their route within 5 minutes of
schedule.

QTN bus and ferry
services begin their route
within 5 minutes of
schedule.

34.6 per cent30 per cent30 per cent of planned transport
expenditure is on new road
construction.

Allocation of funds
through the Land
Transport Programme

Lead
implementation
of the Auckland
Regional Land reflects ARLTS allocations

25 per cent32 per cent32 per cent of planned transport
expenditure is on roadmaintenance and
road safety.

(cumulative values from
06/07).

Transport
Strategy.

37.2 per cent34 per cent34 per cent of planned transport
expenditure is on passenger transport.

3.2 per cent4 per cent4 per cent of planned transport
expenditure is on Travel Demand
Management.
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3.2.4.2 Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH)

ARH’s objectives are set by legislation through the
Local Government (Auckland) Amendment Act 2004.
ARH’s objectives are to:

act in the long-term interests and for the
benefit of the Auckland region, and
without limiting the above, to manage its
assets prudently.

In addition to this objective, the ARC has, through
its governance arrangements with ARH, put in place
a number of policies and objectives that relate to the
ownership and control of ARH.

These arrangements include specific objectives and
performance targets incorporated within the ARH
Statement of Intent 2008-11. ARH’s performance in
respect of these targets is summarised below. Full
details of ARH’s assessment of its performance are
contained in ARH’s Annual Report 2008/09.

Nature and scope of activities of ARH

ARH was established by statute with effect from 1
July 2004 and at that time received the assets and
liabilities of Infrastructure Auckland.

ARH’s functions under the ARC are to:

Own directly or indirectly and manage assets
(including funds) in the long-term interests of
the Auckland region
Provide funds to ARC in accordancewith ARH’s
long term funding plan
Make land transport assets available to assist
ARTA to achieve its objective, and
Undertake such other functions as are given
to it by its statement of intent.

ARH has the following subsidiaries:

America’s Cup Village Limited (ACVL) - wound
up 23 May 2009
Ports of Auckland Limited (POAL)
Sea+City Projects Limited (SCPL), previously
known as Northern Disposal Systems Limited.

ARH also holds a managed portfolio of treasury
investments, and 18.5 hectares of land in the
Wynyard Quarter area.

The ARC has agreed the following five objectives

for ARH:

1. ARH manages its investment portfolio to
maximise ARH’s long-run disbursements to
the ARC, without compromising the
achievement of the ARC’s other objectives.

2. ARH contributes to the ARC’s waterfront
objectives.

3. ARH, through its ownership and governance
of POAL, ensures that POAL continues to
operate as a successful business contributing
to the region’s economic well-being.

4. ARH takes a sustainable development
approach, consistent with its principles and the
principles of the ARC.

5. With respect to best practice governance, that:
ARH and its subsidiaries meet, and assist
the ARC to meet, best practice
governance standards;
ARH ensures that the ARC is
well-informed;
ARH meets its statutory requirements,
and assists the ARC to meet the ARC’s
statutory monitoring functions; and ARH
adopts common branding and
communication protocols.
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Performance objectives and results (ARH)

ResultStrategic challenge

ARH’s financial performance fell below the forecast in ARH’s
2008-18 Long term Funding Plan, primarily due to the impact

Ensure that ARH’s financial performance for the 2008/09
financial year will meet or exceed the forecast in ARH’s
2008-2018 Long-Term Funding Plan. of the global economic downturn on ARH’s investment

portfolio, and the reduction in the value of ARH’s investment
property.

The impact on ARH’s investments of the global economic
downturn, coupled with the continued distributions to the
ARC, is leading ARH to review its investment policies.

ARH ensures that the management of its investment
portfolio is consistent with the investment strategy and
investment and treasury management policy and liability
management policy in its Long-Term Funding Plan.

ARH has consulted the ARC on the Wynyard Precinct, and in
particular, on Precinct Plan 1 for the Wynyard Quarter.

ARH adheres to the Master Planning Process for the
redevelopment of Wynyard Precinct.
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3.3 Organisational performance

3.3.1 Improving the sustainability of council
operations

The ARC is committed to ensuring that all aspects
of its operations, service delivery and
decision-making processes are aligned to the
principles of sustainability.

The ARC has two sustainability objectives for

2008/09, which are to:

1. Measure, manage andmitigate the greenhouse
gas emissions arising from ARC operations.

2. Continue to improve the sustainability of
Council operations

To achieve these objectives, the ARC has developed
an integrated action plan (including objectives,
targets and actions), which enables us to measure,
manage, improve and report on our sustainability
performance.

The ARC Action Plan outlines our commitment to
responsible energymanagement in order tominimise
pollution, particularly CO2 emissions, and to,
wherever possible, reduce dependence on fossil
fuels through the use of renewable energy sources.
ARC aims to make sustainable use of natural
resources and will conserve non-renewable
resources through efficient use and careful planning.

The ARC has continued tomake progress in 2008/09
in the development and implementation of a
council-wide programme of action which will deliver
upon commitments stated in the Annual Plan
2008/09. This programme, with revised objectives,
targets and action, is driven by clear policy and
priority action areas, and informed by government
policy, current performance and best practice.

The key purposes of this programme are:

To strengthen our organisational capacity and
commitment to take a sustainable development
approach in all that we do.
Tomanage andmitigate Council’s impacts and
greenhouse gas (ghg) emissions.
To drive continuous improvement in the internal
sustainability performance of the organisation.
To provide regional leadership as a working
example of a sustainable organisation.

Key achievements in 2008/09:

ARC awardedMilestone IV of the Communities
for Climate Protection programme (CCP).
ARC ghg emissions (excluding farming
operations) decreased by 13 per cent per fte
from the previous financial year.
A 34 per cent decrease in ghg emissions in air
travel from the previous financial year.

Energy use at Head Office has reduced by 3.09 per
cent (KWh/m2) in 2008/09 compared with the
previous financial year. We have implemented an
energymanagement programme, video-conferencing
facilities and have undertaken a full lighting upgrade
of head office in 2008/09 with an estimated saving
of 561,222 kWh per annum.

The following table shows the measures, targets
and performance of the ARC during 2008/09.
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3.3.2 Our organisational performance

The following tables show the main issues that ARC is addressing to put sustainability into practice and the
progress we have made to date.

Wellbeing: Environmental

Objective >> To take positive action to minimise the adverse impacts we have on the environment.

StatusResultsTargetMeasure

Ongoing- On
target for
2009/10

A 13 per cent decrease in greenhouse gas
emissions (CO2/fte) in 2008/09 as compared
with 2007/08.

To reduce green house gas
emissions for ARC operations
(excluding farming) by 20 per
cent (CO2/fte) by 2009/10.

Greenhouse gas
emissions

A 11 per cent decrease in greenhouse gas
emissions (CO2/fte) from 2005/06 baseline.(Based on 2005/06 baseline).

Ongoing- On
target for
2009/10

Fuel efficiency has reduced to 10.4 l/100km
from 10.96 in 2007/08. Overall it is
estimated a 31 per cent reduction in fuel

To improve fleet fuel efficiency
by 20 per cent (L/100km) by
2009/10.

Fleet fuel efficiency

consumption for the nine vehicles replaced
(Based on 2005/06 baseline). in 2008/09 with an average consumption of

7.9 l/100km. This is aligned with the target
of 7.65 l/100km in our Annual Plan 2009/10.

Ongoing - On
target for
2009/10

There has been a less than 1 per cent
(kWh/m2) increase in energy use at head
office from the 2005/06 baseline. However,

To reduce energy use at Head
Office by 20 per cent (kWh/m2)
by 2009/10.

Energy use

energy use per fte (kWh/fte) has reduced
(Based on 2005/06 baseline). by 13.37 per cent (3,709 kWh/fte in 2005/06

compared with 3,213 kWh/fte in 2008/09)
from the 2005/06 baseline.

AchievedProcurement policy incorporating
sustainability has been developed and
implemented.

Develop and implement a
sustainable procurement policy
and supporting practices.

Procurement

AchievedWe are working with ARTA to encourage
those staff that make single occupant car
trips to car share, use public transport, walk
or cycle.

Implement a travel plan, which
is a customised package of
measures for the ARC that
promotes alternative travel
choices and reduces reliance on
single occupancy vehicles.

Travel Plan

Ongoing- On
target for 2012

Total number of consents reviewed for
compliance = 85

Ensure 100 per cent of all
consents relating to ARC
activities are in compliance with
consent conditions by 2012.

Compliance

99 per cent of all consents relating to ARC
activities are currently in compliance *

(*Category 1- full compliance plus Category
2a - minor noncompliance).

fte = full time equivalent
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Wellbeing: Social

Objective >> To be recognised as a socially responsible organisation that cares about its people and community

StatusResultsTargetMeasure

Not achieved1 serious harm accidentNo (0) serious workplace
accidents.

Workplace health and
safety

Not achieved13 per cent (81 injuries)Less than 10 per cent non-serious
workplace accidents.

Achieved2.1 per cent (13 near misses)Less than 20 per cent near miss
workplace accidents of staff
numbers. The ARC retained tertiary level

accreditation (maximum level available)
under the ACC Partnership Programme
further to a review in April 09.

Not AchievedThe overall Performance Index from the
annual staff satisfaction survey 2008 was
66.9 per cent.

Staff treated fair and equitably as
measured by a level of
satisfaction above 75 per cent in
the staff satisfaction survey.

Staff satisfaction

AchievedStaff turnover to 30 June 2009 was 12 per
cent, compared to 20.8 per cent in
2007/08.

17 per cent or less annual staff
turnover.

The current turnover reflects the economic
climate the ARC operates in. A number of
initiatives were successfully implemented
to improve the quality and efficiency of
recruitment, resulting in substantial
savings in this portfolio.

N/APlease note that the criteria for the index
was changed in 2008 and the data is
therefore incomplete.

Staff achieve their full potential,
as measured by the valuing
people index of above 74 per cent
in the staff satisfaction survey.

The overall staff satisfaction survey
engagement level for 2008 was 94 per
cent.
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Wellbeing: Cultural

Objective >> To be culturally strong, embracing diversity and celebrating the unique heritage and holistic values of the
organisation.

StatusResultsTargetMeasure

Not achievedSeven cultural awareness training
sessions were provided for staff with
100 attending. The sessions focused on

50 percent of staff attend at least
one cultural awareness training
programme (e.g. Treaty of
Waitangi, Mäori language and
marae protocol)

Cultural Awareness
training programme

“critical incidents” and case studies
provided by staff as well as scenario
planning, ethnic specific
customs/protocols awareness.

AchievedFive intercultural awareness and
communication training sessions were
facilitated with council staff from across
the region, including ARC. 78 people
attended this externally-funded training

To implement at least two
initiatives to improve staff
understanding and awareness of
cultural heritage of the ARC.

Not achievedAn EEO policy was created, as part of
the general review of HR policies. The
ARC is a member of the EEO Employers
Group, an EEO Trust recognised scheme.

ARC addresses EEO in a positive
way, as measured by a level of
satisfaction above 75 per cent in
the staff satisfaction survey.

ARC as an Equal
Opportunity Employer
(EEO)

For the question relating to EEO, in the
2008 ARC staff survey, the score was
72.5 percent compared to 69.5 per cent
in 2007.

Wellbeing: Economic

Objective >> To deliver public value for money by operating in an economically efficient and responsible way.

StatusResultsTargetMeasure

AchievedThe cost of occupancy at ARC offices in Pitt
Street has reduced by 10 per cent per fte
in 2008/09 compared to previous year.

Minimising the cost of
operations and support per fte.

ARC Operations

AchievedThe cost of running the fleet increased
slightly from $0.56 per km in 2007/08 to
$0.58 per km in 2008/09 (Total costs/Total
kms). However, it is still below our target
of $0.62 per km.

Minimise the cost of ARC
vehicle fleet per km travelled.

AchievedPlanned overall expenditure for 2008/09
was $299.3 m.

Operating within 2 per cent of
annual budget.

Annual Budget

The actual expenditure was $291.0 m
representing 97.2 percent of plan.

For further details please refer to results in
section 1.5 Financial Overview.

AchievedThe return on external Investment Income
was 6.64 per cent.

To exceed the official cash rate
(OCR) on funds by greater than
OCR average (5.2 per cent).
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Chapter 4: Financial
performance

This chapter contains the financial statements of the Auckland Regional Council and Group for the year ended
30 June 2009.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
Act 2002 They also comply with NZ GAAP and NZ IFRS. Costs of Services statements are also provided which
financially measure the effectiveness of each activity area of the Council. Financial performance targets reported
against were set in the ARC’s ten year plan, Long-Term Council Community Plan 2006-16.
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4.1 Statement of compliance and responsibility

Compliance

The Council and management of the Auckland Regional Council confirm that all the statutory requirements of
Section 98 and 99, and part 3 Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002 regarding financial management
and borrowing has been complied with.

Responsibility

The Council and management of the Auckland Regional Council accept responsibility for the preparation of the
annual financial statements and the judgements used in them.

The Council and management of the Auckland Regional Council accept responsibility for establishing and
maintaining a system of internal control designed to provide reasonable assurance as to integrity and reliability
of the financial reporting.

In opinion of the Council and management of the Auckland Regional Council, the annual financial statements
and statements of service performance for the year ended 30 June 2009, fairly reflect the financial position of
the Auckland Regional Council.

Signed on 21 October 2009:

Brian Monk

Chief Operating Officer
Peter Winder

Chief Executive
Mike Lee

Chairman
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4.2 Audit report

To the readers of Auckland Regional Council and

Group's financial statements and performance

information for the year ended 30 June 2009

The Auditor General is the auditor of Auckland
Regional Council (the Regional Council) and group.
The Auditor General has appointed me, D Walker,
using the staff and resources of Audit New Zealand,
to carry out the audit. The audit covers the Regional
Council’s compliance with the requirements of
Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002 that
apply to the annual report of the Regional Council
and group for the year ended 30 June 2009, including
the financial statements.

Unqualified Opinion

In our opinion:

The financial statements of the Regional
Council and Group, on pages 118 to 213, that
are prepared on a dissolution basis:

comply with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand; and
fairly reflect :

the Regional Council and group’s
financial position as at 30 June
2009; and
the results of operations and cash
flows for the year ended on that
date.

The service provision information of the
Regional Council and group, on pages 15 to 88,
fairly reflects the levels of service provision as
measured against the intended levels of service
provision adopted, as well as the reasons for
any significant variances, for the year ended
on that date; and
The Council has complied with the other
requirements of Schedule 10 of the Local
Government Act 2002 that apply to the annual
report (the “other requirements”).

The audit was completed on 21 October 2009, and
is the date at which our opinion is expressed.

The basis of our opinion is explained below and
refers to the financial statements being appropriately
prepared on a dissolution basis and the transition to
a new local government structure for the Auckland

region on 1 November 2010. In addition, we outline
the responsibilities of the Council and the Auditor,
and explain our independence.

Basis of Opinion

We carried out the audit in accordance with the
Auditor General’s Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the New Zealand Auditing Standards.

We planned and performed the audit to obtain all
the information and explanations we considered
necessary in order to obtain reasonable assurance
that the financial statements, performance
information and the other requirements did not have
material misstatements, whether caused by fraud
or error.

Material misstatements are differences or omissions
of amounts and disclosures that would affect a
reader’s overall understanding of the financial
statements, performance information and the other
requirements. If we had found material
misstatements that were not corrected, we would
have referred to them in our opinion.

The audit involved performing procedures to test the
information presented in the financial statements,
performance information and the other requirements.
We assessed the results of those procedures in
forming our opinion.

Audit procedures generally include:

determining whether significant financial and
management controls are working and can be
relied on to produce complete and accurate
data;
verifying samples of transactions and account
balances;
performing analyses to identify anomalies in
the reported data;
reviewing significant estimates and judgements
made by the Council;
confirming year-end balances;
determining whether accounting policies are
appropriate and consistently applied; and
determining whether all required disclosures
are adequate.
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We did not examine every transaction, nor do we
guarantee complete accuracy of the financial
statements, performance information and the other
requirements.

We evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial
statements, performance information and the other
requirements. We obtained all the information and
explanations we required to support our opinion
above.

The financial statements are appropriately

prepared on a dissolution basis and refer to the

new local government structure for the Auckland

region

In forming our opinion, we considered:

the accounting policy on page 125 about the
financial statements being prepared on a
dissolution basis; and
the disclosures in note 46 on page 195 about
the Government’s decision to dissolve the
Regional Council and, as a consequence, the
group, and establish a new local government
structure for the Auckland region.

The Government’s decision includes the dissolution
of the Regional Council and other existing local
authorities in the Auckland region after 31 October
2010. As a consequence of the dissolution of the
Regional Council the group structure in its current
form will also cease to exist. In accordance with the
Local Government (TamakiMakaurau Reorganisation)
Act 2009, the functions, duties and powers of the
Regional Council will become the functions, duties
and powers of a single unitary authority (the
Auckland Council) that will be responsible for
governing the entire Auckland region from 1
November 2010.

Decisions are yet to be made on the Auckland
Council’s structure and operations including how the
systems, plans, policies, assets and liabilities of the
Regional Council, including its subsidiaries and the
other existing local authorities will be vested and
integrated. Nevertheless, the Regional Council and
group expects the services currently delivered to
continue to be delivered by the organisational
structure put in place by the Auckland Council, and
therefore the assets and liabilities of the Regional
Council and group will be relevant to the Auckland
Council. For that reason, no adjustments have been
made to the financial statements because of the
dissolution basis of preparation. We consider the
basis of preparation of the financial statements and
the related disclosures to be appropriate to the
Regional Council and group’s circumstances.

Responsibilities of the Council and the Auditor

The Council is responsible for preparing financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand. The financial
statements must fairly reflect the financial position
of the Regional Council and group as at 30 June
2009. They must also fairly reflect the results of
operations and cash flows and the levels of service
provision for the year ended on that date. The
Council is also responsible for meeting the other
requirements of Schedule 10 and including that
information in the annual report. The Council’s
responsibilities arise from Section 98 and Schedule
10 of the Local Government Act 2002.

We are responsible for expressing an independent
opinion on the financial statements, performance
information and the other requirements and reporting
that opinion to you. This responsibility arises from
section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001 and section
99 of the Local Government Act 2002.

Independence

When carrying out the audit we followed the
independence requirements of the Auditor General,
which incorporate the independence requirements
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New
Zealand.

Other than the audit and in conducting the audit of
the Long Term Council Community Plan and enquiry
into the LA Galaxy event, we have no relationship
with or interests in the Regional Council or any of
its subsidiaries.

David Walker

Audit New Zealand
On behalf of the Auditor-General
Auckland, New Zealand

Chapter 4: . Financial performance

117

A
uckland

R
egionalC

ouncil|A
nnualR

eport
09



4.3 Statement of financial performance

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000Note$000$000

Income

146,313148,441148,3933Rates revenue137,285137,170
109,66294,390-4ARH income106,563-

2,3862,250-5Net investment income3,88834,279
9959739737Farming sales984984

32,65028,923340,3528Other income27,217395,237
-9619619Other gains502815

292,006275,938490,679Total income276,439568,485

Expenditure

--87,8675Net investment loss--
81535027,1656Net finance costs12529,610
3109199197Value of livestock sold883883

-4346239Other losses--
181,728164,202178,28610Grant expenditure141,592154,404
48,86850,379119,97711Employee benefit expenses46,318111,623
7,6427,58648,96312Depreciation and amortisation expense7,23538,863
59,97367,129152,51613Other operating expenses56,489144,724
299,336290,999616,316Total operating expenditure252,642480,107

(7,330)(15,061)(125,637)Operating (deficit)/surplus for the year
before tax23,79788,378

--1,76924Share of associate and joint venture
surplus-3,376

(7,330)(15,061)(123,868)(Deficit)/surplus for the year before tax23,79791,754

--10,99514Total income tax expense-9,270
(7,330)(15,061)(134,863)(Deficit)/surplus for the year23,79782,484

Understanding the Council’s reported net deficit

The reason for the deficit is mainly due to the significant increase in the landfill aftercare provision amounting
to $8m. Excluding the $8mmovement in the landfill aftercare provision, the actual net deficit for the year would
have been $7.1m, which is slightly lower then plan.

Refer to note 50 for the explanation of variances against plan.

The accompanying notes and accounting policies should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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4.4 Statement of changes in equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000Note$000$000

1,019,8441,025,2021,560,115Balance at 1 July1,001,3881,405,495

Amounts recognised directly in equity

--(10,076)37Cash flow hedge (net of tax)-(3,186)
--1,12437Available-for-sale financial assets (net of tax)*17(3,917)
--(2,534)36Net loss from fair value adjustment on

grants
-(2,757)

--(50,419)37Property, plant and equipment revaluation
(net of tax)

-81,996

--(61,905)Net income recognised directly in equity1772,136

(7,330)(15,061)(134,863)36Net surplus/(deficit) for the year23,79782,484
1,012,5141,010,1411,363,347Balance at 30 June1,025,2021,560,115

* Available-for-sale financial assets

To comply with NZ IFRS, ARH's equity investments held by subsidiary companies have been categorised as
"available-for-sale financial assets" by default. However, ARH has no intention of selling these investments.

The accompanying notes and accounting policies should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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4.5 Statement of financial position

AS AT 30 JUNE 2009

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000Note$000$000

Assets

Current assets

2502739,91115Cash and cash equivalents10,28320,149
--114Tax receivable-1,989

13,05614,42842,43116Trade debtors and other receivables13,49940,534
-6661,141Prepayments5191,181

17,02831,370-17Related party receivables45,570-
--116,55018Other financial assets-160,063
--4,67919Derivative financial instruments-408
--3,81120Rental expense in advance-3,801
--9,47821Inventories145,107
--19,09922Non-current assets held for sale--

30,33446,737207,101Total current assets69,885233,232

Non-current assets

4,21917,423-17Related party receivables17,512-
815,680815,696286,52518Other financial assets815,696382,461

--5,20119Derivative financial instruments-3,893
--16,08120Rental expense in advance-19,902

1,0711,0311,03123Biological assets820820
--16,91824Investments accounted for using the

equity method
-5,998

--180,66925Investment properties-244,256
--46,00626Goodwill-46,006

255,627252,1951,170,75827Property, plant and equipment246,0341,191,657
4,5003,95132,65928Intangible assets3,21928,347

1,081,0971,090,2961,755,848Total non-current assets1,083,2811,923,340

1,111,4311,137,0331,962,949Total assets1,153,1662,156,572

Continued next page...

The accompanying notes and accounting policies should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Statement of financial position - continued

AS AT 30 JUNE 2009

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000Note$000$000

Liabilities

Current liabilities

--1,30514Tax payable-29
--1,08419Derivative financial instruments-4,583
--7620Rental income in advance-153

15,88116,41978,55729Trade creditors and other payables15,09679,214
34,60948,794-30Related party payables57,359-
4,13713,45533,27431Other financial liabilities26,93145,733

29,25510,806111,30632Borrowings128568
5,0005,50413,04433Employee benefit liabilities4,86212,104
8161,1151,11534Provisions8643,366

89,69896,093239,761Total current liabilities105,240145,750

Non-current liabilities

--15,46619Derivative financial instruments--
---20Rental income in advance-76
-1,152-30Related party payables9,148-

4,21916,27117,42331Other financial liabilities8,36416,834
-344250,34432Borrowings-355,375

1,0001,1092,96533Employee benefit liabilities1,0752,738
4,00011,92327,42334Provisions4,13718,037

--46,22035Deferred tax liability-57,647
9,21930,799359,841Total non-current liabilities22,724450,707

98,917126,892599,602Total liabilities127,964596,457

1,012,5141,010,1411,363,347Net assets1,025,2021,560,115

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000Note$000$000

Equity

1,012,514989,9871,057,80736Retained earnings1,001,3001,248,051
-19,98519,98537Restricted reserves23,73323,733
-169285,55537Other reserves169288,331

1,012,5141,010,1411,363,347Total equity1,025,2021,560,115

The accompanying notes and accounting policies should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.

Chapter 4: . Financial performance

121

A
uckland

R
egionalC

ouncil|A
nnualR

eport
09



4.6 Statement of cash flows

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000Note$000$000

Cash flows from operating activities

146,048146,590146,542Rates revenue136,839136,724
--198,031Receipts from customers (inclusive of GST)-208,515
--18,625Rail fare revenue-16,573
--4,436Bus fare revenue-3,322
--1,998Ferry wharf revenue-1,471

27,11727,13223,519Service and facilities revenue25,92022,419
109,66293,566-ARH income - general distributions received108,873-
27,35416,145-ARH income - distribution for ex IA grants

received
32,161-

--109,207New Zealand Transport Agency - grants
received

-90,430

5,2381,5942,944Other grants and subsidies received1,9313,262
1,0202,5022,570Other operating income2,0812,231
2,0692,2503,3105Interest received3,8885,160

--11Income tax received--
--3,918Dividends received-5,427

(62,635)(58,693)(400,010)Payments to suppliers (inclusive of GST)(44,305)(351,579)
(48,860)(49,703)(62,427)Payments to employees(46,064)(56,585)
(27,354)(14,404)(15,935)Payments for grant expenditure - distribution

for ex IA grants
(33,312)(33,018)

(181,728)(173,784)-Payments for grant expenditure - general
distributions

(141,592)(2,006)

-(118)(26,312)Interest paid(43)(28,573)
--(10,336)Income tax paid-(4,515)

(2,069)(6,923)9138Net cash flows from operating activities46,37719,258

Continued on next page...

The accompanying notes and accounting policies should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000Note$000$000

Cash flows from investing activities

--107,100Withdrawal from portfolio investments-337,700
--1,027Proceeds from derecognition of

available-for-sale asset
--

--250Repayments of loans and advances-1,250
1921,0011,819Sale of property, plant and equipment7411,869
9959739737Sale of livestock and harvest984984

---Sale of investment property-59,800
---Deposits to portfolio investments-(299,299)
--(11,622)Loan advanced to joint venture--

(18,293)(14,260)(102,478)Purchase of property, plant and equipment(42,372)(110,853)
-(1,654)(6,996)Purchase of intangible assets(2,463)(3,291)

(310)(169)(169)Purchase of livestock(196)(196)
---Purchase of investment property-(650)
---Purchase of investment in associate-(478)
---Transaction costs for purchase of

DFA investments
-(701)

--(5,815)Capitalised investment property costs-(3,687)
(17,416)(14,109)(15,911)Net cash flows from investing activities(43,973)(7,552)

Cash flows from financing activities

19,48511,15016,150Loan funding-10,000
--(10,000)Repayment of loans-(17,000)
-(128)(128)Repayment of finance leases(262)(262)

19,48511,0226,022Net cash flows from financing activities(262)(7,262)

-(10,010)(9,798)Net increase in cash, cash equivalents

and bank overdraft
2,1424,444

25010,28319,709Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts
at the beginning of the year8,14115,265

2502739,911
15Cash, cash equivalents and bank

overdrafts at the end of the year
10,28319,709

The GST (net) component of operating expenses reflects the net GST paid and received with the Inland Revenue
Department. The GST (net) component has been presented on a net basis, as the gross amounts do not provide
meaningful information for financial statement purposes.

The accompanying notes and accounting policies should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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4.7 Notes to the financial statements

Page:Note:

125Statement of accounting policies1.

140Summary cost of services2.

141Rates revenue3.

142Auckland Regional Holdings income4.

143Net investment income/(loss)5.

143Net finance costs6.

144Net farming income7.

144Other income8.

145Other gains/(losses)9.

145Grant expenditure10.

145Employee benefit expenses11.

146Depreciation and amortisation expense12.

147Other operating expenses13.

148Taxation14.

150Cash and cash equivalents15.

151Trade debtors and other receivables16.

154Related party receivables17.

155Other financial assets18.

157Derivative financial instruments19.

159Rental expense / income in advance20.

160Inventories21.

160Non-current assets held for sale22.

161Biological assets23.

163Investments accounted for using the equity
method24.

165Investment property25.

166Goodwill26.

167Property, plant and equipment27.

170Intangible assets28.

171Trade creditors and other payables29.

171Related party payables30.

172Other financial liabilities31.

173Borrowings32.

174Employee benefit liabilities33.

175Provisions34.

177Deferred tax liability35.

178Retained earnings36.

179Reserves37.

Page:Note:

185Reconciliation of net surplus/(deficit) after tax
to net cash flow from operating activities38.

186Capital commitments and operating leases39.

188Contingencies40.

189Related party transactions41.

191Remuneration42.

192Investment in subsidiaries43.

194Severance payments44.

194Events after the balance date45.

195Potential impact of Auckland Government
reorganisation46.

195Business combinations47.

196Financial risk management48.

204Capital management49.

205Major variances against plan50.
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Note 1: Statement of accounting policies for the year ended 30 June 2009

1. REPORTING ENTITY

The Auckland Regional Council (ARC or “the
Council”) is a regional local authority governed by
the Local Government Act 2002 and is domiciled in
New Zealand.

The Group consists of Auckland Regional Council
and its Council Controlled Organisations (CCO),
Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH) and Auckland
Regional Transport Authority (ARTA). ARH and ARTA
were established on 1 July 2004 by the Local
Government (Auckland) Amendment Act 2004
(LGAAA or “the Act”). The Act defines the ARC as
the sole share holder of ARH and ARTA. Subsidiary
companies of ARH include Ports of Auckland Limited
(POAL) and Sea+City Projects Limited (SCPL). All
ARC CCO are 100 % owned and domiciled in New
Zealand.

The primary objective of the ARC is to enable
democratic local decision-making and action by, and
on behalf of, communities; and promote the social,
economic, environmental and cultural well-being of
communities, in the present and for the future.

For the purposes of New Zealand equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS),
ARC and ARTA are designated as public benefit
entities and Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH) a
profit-orientated statutory investment management
entity.

Financial statements of the Council and Group are
presented for the year ended 30 June 2009. The
financial statements were authorised for issue by
the Council on 21 October 2009.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Council and Group
have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Act 2002,
which includes the requirement to comply with New
Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (NZ
GAAP). They comply with NZ IFRS, and other
applicable Financial Reporting Standards.

Auckland reorganisation

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau
Reorganisation) Act 2009 that was enacted 23 May
2009 provides for the dissolution of the Auckland
Regional Council and local authorities in the Auckland
Region on 31 October 2010 (refer to note 46 for

further details). As a consequence of the dissolution
of the Council, the Group structure in its current form
will also cease to exist. Accordingly, the financial
statements have been prepared on a dissolution
basis.

The Council expects the services it currently delivers
to continue to be delivered by the new organisational
structure, Auckland Council, put in place under the
new Act. Consequently all assets and liabilities of
the Council and Group will be relevant to that new
structure; therefore no adjustments have beenmade
to the financial statements for the dissolution basis
of preparation.

Measurement base

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, modified by the revaluation of
certain land and buildings, investment property,
biological assets and financial instruments (including
derivative instruments).

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in New
Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand dollars ($000). The functional
currency of the Group and Council is New Zealand
dollars.

Transactions in currencies other than the entities
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At each reporting date, any
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses,
resulting from the settlement of such transactions,
and from the translation at year end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies, are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Standards, amendments and interpretations

issued that are not yet adopted

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been published which are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or later periods,
but which the Group has not early adopted for the
year ended 30 June 2009. The following are the new
standards, interpretations and amendments
applicable to the Group that are not yet effective.

Chapter 4: . Financial performance

125

A
uckland

R
egionalC

ouncil|A
nnualR

eport
09



NZ IAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of
Financial Statements effective for reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.
The revised NZ IAS 1 requires an entity to
present all owner changes in equity separate
from non-owner changes in equity in a
Statement of Changes in Equity. All non-owner
changes in equity (i.e. comprehensive income)
are required to be presented in one Statement
of Comprehensive Income or in two
statements (an Income Statement and a
Statement of Comprehensive Income).
Components of comprehensive income are not
permitted to be presented in the Statement of
Changes in Equity. The Group intends to adopt
this standard for the year ending 30 June 2010,
and is yet to decide whether it will prepare a
single Statement of Comprehensive Income
or a separate Income Statement followed by
a Statement of Comprehensive Income. This
is not expected to have a material impact on
the Group.
NZ IAS 23 (Amendment) Borrowing Costs
effective for reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009. The revised standard
requires an entity to capitalise borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
(one that takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for use or sale) as part of the cost of
that asset. The option of immediately
expensing those borrowing costs will be
removed. The Group intends to adopt this
standard for the year ending 30 June 2010.
NZ IAS 23 is not expected to have a material
impact on the Group as the Group is already
capitalising borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset.
NZ IFRS 3 (revised 2008) Business
Combinations and NZ IAS 27 (revised 2008)
Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements are effective for reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009. These
changes are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group.
NZ IFRS 8 Operating Segments is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009. NZ IFRS 8 makes compliance with the
standard mandatory for non-qualifying
profit-oriented entities and changes how
operating segments are defined and their
results disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. The Group intends to adopt this
standard for the year ending 30 June 2010.
Compliance with the standard will require
additional disclosures for the Group.
NZ IAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement – Eligible

Hedged items Segments is effective for
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009. These changes are not expected to have
a material impact on the Group.
NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instrument: Disclosures is
effective for reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009. These changes are not
expected to have a material impact on the
Group.
Improvements to NZ IFRS 2008 and 2009.
These standards are a result of the IASB’s
annual improvements process, and include
amendments to certain recognition,
measurements and presentation requirements
of NZ IFRS. These changes are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group.
Omnibus Amendments to Existing Standards
effective for reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009. These changes are not
expected to have a material impact on the
Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting polices are selected and applied in a
manner which ensures that the resulting financial
information satisfies the concepts of relevance and
reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the
underlying transactions or other events is reported.

The significant accounting policies that materially
affect the measurement of net surplus and the
financial position are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The purchase method is used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements, which involves
adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity,
income and expenses on a line-by-line basis. All
significant intragroup balances, transactions, income
and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
consolidated financial statements to bring accounting
policies used by members of the Group into line.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are consolidated in the group financial
statements. Subsidiaries are all entities over which
the Group has the capacity to control their financial
and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from
the activities of the entity. This power exists where
the Group controls themajority voting power on the
governing board or where such policies have been
irreversibly predetermined by the Council/Group or
where the determination of such policies is unable
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to materially impact the level of potential ownership
benefits that arise from the activities of the
subsidiary.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred and are de-consolidated
from the date on which control ceases.

The purchase method is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries. The assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary are measured
at their fair value at the date of acquisition,
irrespective of any minority interest. Any excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recognised as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition
is less than the fair value of the Group's share of the
net assets acquired, the difference is recognised
immediately in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the period of acquisition.

Investments in its subsidiaries are carried at cost in
the Council’s own “parent entity” financial
statements.

POAL Associates

Associates are entities in which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
evidenced by a holding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting,
after initially being recognised at cost. The Group's
investments in associates include goodwill identified
on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements adjust
the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends
receivable from an associate reduce the carrying
amount of the investment in the consolidated
statements.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associate. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provided evidence of an impairment of the asset

transferred. Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

POAL Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby
two or more parties undertake an economic activity
that is subject to joint control.

The interest in a jointly controlled entity is accounted
for in the consolidated statements using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the share of the
profits or losses of the jointly controlled entity is
recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance, and the share of movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves in the Statement
of Financial Position.

Profits or losses on transactions establishing the
jointly controlled entity and transactions with the
joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s ownership interest until such time as they
are realised by the jointly controlled entity on
consumption or sale, unless they relate to an
unrealised loss that provides evidence of the
impairment of an asset transferred.

Income

Income is measured at the fair value of consideration
received

Provision of services

Income from the rendering of services is
recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the transaction at balance date.
The stage of completion is based on the actual
service provided as a percentage of the total
services to be provided.

Vested assets

Where a physical asset is acquired for nil or
nominal consideration the fair value of the
asset received is recognised as income.
Assets vested in the Group are recognised as
incomewhen control of the asset is obtained.

Sales of goods

Income from sales of goods is recognised
when a product is sold to the customer. The
recorded revenue is the gross amount of the
sale, including credit card fees payable for the
transaction.
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Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable.

Fare revenue

ARTA receives fare box revenue from certain
bus and ferry services and all rail services.
This revenue is recognised when the ticket is
purchased.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the right to receive payment
has been established.

Rates revenue

Rates are set annually by a resolution from
Council and relate to a financial year. All
ratepayers are invoiced within the financial
year to which the rates have been set. Rates
revenue is recognised when levied. Penalties
and discounts relating to rates are recognised
when conditions are met.

ARH grant distributions

The LGAAA provides the Council with a
method to obtain contributions from ARH to
fund transport and stormwater. General grant
distributions from ARH are recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match
them with the costs for which they are
intended to compensate, on a systematic
basis or, for expenses already incurred or for
the purposes of giving immediate financial
support, they are recognised in the period in
which they become receivable.

New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA) grants

ARTA receives government grants fromNZTA,
which subsidies administration, operational
and capital expenditure. Grant distributions
from NZTA are recognised as income when
the expenditure they cover is incurred i.e. on
an accruals basis. Sometimes the income has
conditions associated with it in terms of
delivery. NZTA perform a biannual audit on

the ARTA’s processes. If an anomaly is found
then ARTAmay be obliged to pay the relevant
funds back.

Farming revenue

Revenue from farming is recognised when
livestock and wool have been sold and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Development and financial contributions

Development and financial contributions are
recognised as income when the Group
provides, or is able to provide, the service for
which the contribution was charged. In cases
where the contributions are collected in
advance, the contribution is initially recognised
as income in advance.

Development and financial contributions are
classified as part of “other income”.

5. BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred, except for
costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying
asset which are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount
of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted
average interest rate applicable to the entity's
outstanding borrowings during the year.

6. GRANT EXPENDITURE

Non-discretionary grants are those grants that are
awarded if the grant application meets the specified
criteria and are recognised as expenditure when an
application that meets the specified criteria for the
grant has been received.

Discretionary grants are those grants where the
Group has no obligation to award on receipt of the
grant application and are recognised as expenditure
when a successful applicant has been notified of the
Group’s decision.

7. INCOME TAX

ARTA, ARC and ARH are generally exempt from
paying income tax in New Zealand; however ARH's
subsidiaries are standard tax-payers. Group
exemption from income tax does not include any
income derived from port-related commercial
undertakings.
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The income tax expense for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate. This is then
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements,
and by unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for
temporary differences at the tax rates expected to
apply when the assets are recovered or liabilities are
settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted
or substantively enacted. The relevant tax rates are
applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and
taxable temporary differences to measure the
deferred tax asset or liability. An exception is made
for certain temporary differences arising form initial
recognition of an asset or a liability. No deferred tax
asset or liability is recognised in relation to these
temporary differences if they arose in a transaction,
other than a business combination, that at the time
of the transaction did not affect either accounting
profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to
amounts recognised directly in equity are also
recognised directly in equity.

8. LEASES

Finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers to the lessee
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset, whether or not title is
eventually transferred.

Group as lessee

At the commencement of the lease term, the
Group recognises finance leases as assets
and liabilities in the Statement of Financial
Position at the lower of their fair value of the
leased item or the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

The finance charge is charged over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

The amount recognised as an asset is
depreciated over its useful life. If there is no
certainty as to whether the Group will obtain

ownership at the end of the lease term, the
asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and its useful life.

Operating leases

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset.

Group as lessee

Lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) under an operating
lease are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as lessor

Assets leased to third parties under operating
leases are includedwithin investment property
and property, plant and equipment in the
Statement of Financial Position. Leased
property, plant and equipment is depreciated
over its expected useful life on a basis
consistent with non-leased property, plant and
equipment. Rental income (net of any
incentives given to lessees) is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, and
other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are classified within "borrowings" in
the Statement of Financial Position.

10. TRADEDEBTORSANDOTHERRECEIVABLES

Trade debtors and other receivables are initially
measured at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, less any provision for impairment.

The ability to collect trade receivables is reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be
uncollectible are written off. Trade receivables that
are over 180 days overdue are considered potentially
uncollectible and where there is evidence a trade
receivable is in receivership or liquidation this would
be recognised as uncollectible. A provision for
impairment of receivables is establishedwhere there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
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into bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default
or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days
overdue) are considered indicators that a trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying value
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted using the effective interest rate method.
The loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance in “other operating expenses”. When
a trade receivable for which the provision for
impairments has been recognised becomes
uncollectible in a subsequent period, it is written off
against the provision for impairment of receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previouslywritten
off are credited against “other operating expenses”
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

11. INVENTORIES

Inventories held for distribution or consumption in
the provision of services that are not supplied on a
commercial basis are measured at cost, adjusted
where applicable, for any loss of service potential.
Where inventories are acquired at no cost or for
nominal consideration, the cost is the current
replacement cost at the date of acquisition.

Inventories held for use in the production of goods
and services on a commercial basis are valued at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis
of weighted average costs.

The amount of any write down for the loss of service
potential or from cost to net realisable value is
recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the period of the write down.

12. INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group classifies its investments and other
financial assets in the following four categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments,
and available-for-sale financial assets (financial assets
at fair value through equity). The classification
depends on the nature and purpose for which the
investments and other financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification
at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation
at each reporting date, where appropriate.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value
plus transaction costs unless they are carried at fair
value through profit and loss in which case the
transaction costs are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised
at trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publically traded derivates, and
trading and some available-for-sale securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price; the
appropriate quotedmarket price for financial liabilities
is the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments for which there
is no active market is determined using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at each balance date. Quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments are used for long-term debt instruments
held. Other techniques, such as estimated
discounted future cash flows, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial instruments.
The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as
the present value of the estimated cash flows. The
fair value of forward exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchangemarket rates at
balance date.

The nominal value less credit adjustments of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date management assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. Any impairment losses are recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance.

The categories of financial assets are:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL)

This category has two sub-categories: financial
assets held for trading, and those designated
at fair value through profit and loss on initial
recognition. A financial asset is classified as
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held for trading if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short-term or if it is
part of a portfolio of financial instruments that
the Groupmanages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit taking or if
so designated by management. The Group's
policy is to designate a financial asset in this
category if the asset is subject to frequent
changes in fair value and the performance of
the asset is evaluated on a fair value basis in
accordance with a documented investment
strategy. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated
and effective as a hedging instrument. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets
if they are either held for trading or are
expected to be realised within 12 months of
the balance date, otherwise they are classified
as non-current assets.

After initial recognition they are measured at
their fair values. Realised and unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are included
in the Statement of Financial Performance in
the period in which they arise.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor
with no intention of selling the receivable.
They are classified as current assets, except
for those with maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date, which
are classified as non-current assets.

After initial recognition they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method.

Loans and receivables are classifies as “trade
and other receivables” in the Statement of
Financial Position.

(c) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. They are classified
as current assets, except for those with
maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date, which are classified as
non-current assets.

After initial recognition they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method.

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets (financial
assets at fair value through equity)

Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivative financial assets that are either
designated in this category or are not
classified in any of the other categories. They
are included in non-current assets unless the
Group intends to dispose of the financial asset
within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

After initial recognition they are measured at
their fair values.

Equity shares held by the Group, which are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are stated at fair value after adjustment for
impairment, if any. Unrealised gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the equity securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in equity in
the available-for-sale financial assets
revaluation reserve. Where this results in a
negative balance, which is not expected to
reverse because there is objective evidence
that it is impaired, the cumulative net loss is
charged to the Statement of Financial
Performance as an expense. Where equity
securities classified as available-for-sale are
sold or otherwise derecognised, the
accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in this reserve are transferred to
the Statement of Financial Performance.

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise
investments in listed and unlisted equity
securities. The Council’s investment in its
subsidiaries is not included in this category as
it is held at cost (as allowed by NZ IAS 27 and
28) whereas this category is to be measured
at fair value.

(e) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial

Chapter 4: . Financial performance

131

A
uckland

R
egionalC

ouncil|A
nnualR

eport
09



asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets designated at FVTPL.

13. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to
reduce its exposure to interest rate risks arising from
financing activities. In accordance with its Treasury
Management Policy, the Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value at
balance date. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument,
and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

POAL

POAL designates certain derivatives as either hedges
of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or
a firm commitment (fair value hedge); or hedges of
highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow
hedge). At the inception of the transaction, POAL
documents the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. POAL also documents
its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions have been and will
continue to be highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. POAL
only applies fair value hedge accounting for hedging
fixed interest risk on borrowings.

Fair value hedge

Change in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recorded in the Statement of Financial Performance,
together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset of liability that are attributable to the
hedged risk.

The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of
the interest rate swaps that hedge fixed interest rate
borrowings is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance within “investment costs”.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance within “gains” or “losses”. Changes
in the fair value of the hedge fixed rate borrowings

attributable to interest rate risk are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance within
“investment costs”.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount
of a hedged item for which the effective interest
method is used is amortised to the Statement of
Financial Performance over the period to maturity.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges is recognised in equity in the cash flow
hedge reserve. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

Accounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the
Statement of Financial Performance in the periods
when the hedged item will affect the profit or loss
(for instance when the interest payment that is
hedged takes place). The gain or loss relating to the
effective portion of the interest rate swap that hedge
variable interest rate borrowings is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance within finance
costs when the related interest expense is
recognised. When a forecast transaction that is
hedged results in the recognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the gains and losses
previously deferred in equity are transferred from
equity and included in the measurement of the initial
cost of the item of property, plant and equipment.
The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance when the
item of plant, property, and equipment is
depreciated.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold or
terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain
or loss existing in equity at the time remains in equity
and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the Statement of Financial
Performance.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge

accounting

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the Statement of Financial
Performance.
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14. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. The condition is regarded as met
only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. The Group must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
recorded at the lower of the carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Fair value less costs to
sell is based on an independent valuer’s report.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale.

15. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Livestock

Livestock are independently revalued annually at fair
value less estimated point-of-sale costs. The fair
value is determined based on the present value of
expected net cash flows at a current market
determined pre-tax rate.

Gains or losses arising on initial recognition of
livestock at fair value less estimated point-of-sale
costs and from a change in fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance.

Wool is initially measured at its fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs at the time of shearing.
The fair value of wool is determined based onmarket
prices in the local area.

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consists of:

Operational assets - These include land and
improvements, buildings, plant and
equipment, motor vehicles, rolling stock,
railway stations, wharves, pavements,
furniture and fittings, roads and civil
structures.

Restricted assets – These are parks and
reserves (including improvements and
buildings) owned by the Group which provide
a benefit or service to the community and
cannot be disposed of because of legal or
other restrictions.

Those asset classes that are revalued are valued on
a regular basis as described below. All other asset
classes are carried at depreciated historical cost.

Depreciation of these assets commences when
these assets are ready for use.

Fair value

The fair value of an asset is the amount for which
the asset could be exchanged between willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction, based on
current prices in an active market for the same asset
or a similar asset in the same location and condition.
Where the fair value is not able to be determined in
this manner, the most common and accepted
methods for assessing the current market value are
the capitalisation of estimated rental approach and
the discounted cash flow approach. Where the fair
value of the asset is not able to be reliably
determined using any of the above market based
evidence, depreciated replacement cost is
considered to be the most appropriate basis. This
situation arises where assets are of a specialised
nature, and where the asset is rarely sold, except as
part of a continuing business.

ARH Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Land, buildings and wharves (except for investment
properties) are shown at fair value, based on periodic
valuations by external independent valuers (carried
out at least triennially), less subsequent depreciation
for buildings and wharves. Any accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and
the net amount is restated to the revalued amount
of the asset. Pavements are stated at deemed cost
based on a valuation performed as at 30 June 2005.
Land, buildings, wharves and pavements were all
revalued at 30 June 2009 by external independent
valuers, Barrat-Boyes Jefferies Limited.

Council PPE

Council owned land and buildings are not revalued.
Where an asset was owned prior to 30 June 1990,
it is recorded at independent valuation as at that
date. Subsequent additions are recorded at cost.

Other PPE

All other PPE is stated at historical cost less
depreciation less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include
transfers of any gains or losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of PPE.
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The cost of assets constructed by the Group includes
the costs of all materials used in construction,
associated borrowing costs, direct labour on the
project and an appropriate portion of variable and
fixed overheads. The Group capitalises borrowing
costs where they are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset. A qualifying asset is deemed as having
significant expenditure and takes a substantial period,
greater than six months, to complete and prepare
the asset for its intended use. Costs cease to be
capitalised as soon as the asset is ready for its
productive use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the itemwill flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs andmaintenance
are charged to the Statement of Financial
Performance during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Additions

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable
that future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

In most instances, an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised at its cost. Where an asset
is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is
recognised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
of the asset. Gains and losses on disposals are
included in the Statement of Financial Performance.
When revalued assets are sold, the Group’s policy
is to transfer the amounts included in asset
revaluation reserves in respect of those assets to
retained earnings.

Depreciation

Land and all capital projects in progress are not
depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is provided
using the straight-line method at rates that will
allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives.
The useful lives and associated depreciation rates
of major classes of assets have been estimated as
follows:

Depreciation
rate
(%):

Expected
useful life
(years):Asset classes:

Rolling stock:

16.676ADK Carriage
1010ADL Carriage
6.6715SA/SD Carriage - Exterior
13.337.5SA/SD Carriage - Interior
16.7 - 502 - 6SX Carriages
6.6715Locomotives (Leasehold

Improvements)

Railway stations and

associated assets:

2 - 520 - 50Structures
10 - 333 - 10Signage
6.67 - 502 - 15Fencing

Plant, machinery and other

equipment:

5 - 205 - 20Plant and machinery
5 - 1001 - 20Other equipment
205Cycle Lockers
6.415.5Fibre Optic Cable

502Landfill aftercare

1001Low value assets

Buildings:

2 - 3.3330 - 50Freehold Buildings
1 - 1010 – 100Other buildings

250Roads

Civil structures

250Dams, bridges and
structures

205Vehicles

Wharves, piers and

associated assets:

1 - 1010 - 100Wharves
2 - 1010 - 50Piers
10 - 333 - 10Signage
6.7 - 502 - 15Fencing

1.2 - 425 - 85Pavements

5 - 502 - 20Furniture, fixtures and

other equipment

The residual value and estimated useful life of an
asset is reviewed, and adjusted if applicable, at each
financial year end.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease.
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Accounting for revaluations

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of land, buildings and wharves are
credited to an asset revaluation reserve for that class
of asset in equity. To the extent that the increases
reverses a decrease previously recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance, the increase is
first recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance. Decreases that reverse previous
increases of the same asset are first charged against
asset revaluation reserves directly in equity to the
extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the
asset; all other decreases are charged to the
Statement of Financial Performance.

Work in progress (WIP)

All capital projects in progress are designated WIP.
The total cost of a project is transferred to the
relevant asset class on its completion and
depreciation commences.

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary or associate or joint venture at the date
of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries
is shown separately on the Statement of Financial
Position. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is
included in “investments in associates”. Goodwill
on acquisitions of joint ventures is included in
“investments in joint ventures”. Goodwill acquired
in business combinations is not amortised. Instead
goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. Each of those cash
generating units represents the Group’s investment
in the operation by each primary reporting segment.

Computer software acquisition and development

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

Costs that are directly associated with the
development of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group and that will
probably contribute to future economic benefits
beyond one year are capitalised. Capital costs include
external direct costs of materials and services, payroll
and direct-payroll related costs for employee’s
(including contractors) time spent on the project.
These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.

Costs associated with maintaining computer
software are recognised as an expense when
incurred.

Operating leases – land

The operating leases on land are donated assets.
They are recognised in the financial accounts at fair
value and are amortised over the life of the
underlying leases.

Amortisation

The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite
life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful
life. Amortisation begins when the asset is available
for use and ceases at the date it is derecognised.

The amortisation charge for each period is
recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance. The useful lives and associated
amortisation rates of major classes of intangible
assets have been estimated as follows:

Depreciation

rate

(%):

Expected

useful life

(years):Asset classes:

20 - 1001 - 5Computer software
1.663Operating Lease- Land

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation. They are not used
in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administration purposes and are not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Investment
properties are carried at fair value representing open
market value determined annually by independent
valuers.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the Statement
of Financial Performance. Investment properties are
not depreciated for financial accounting purposes.
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19. IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that have a finite
useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating units to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the Statement of Financial
Performance, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of the
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
impairment is recognised immediately in the
Statement of Financial Performance, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase.

20. TRADE CREDITORS AND OTHER PAYABLES

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days
of recognition.

21. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Other financial liabilities, including interest bearing
liabilities, are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred.

Interest bearing liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance over the period of the interest bearing
liabilities using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance date.

22. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries accrued up to
balance date, (including non-monetary benefits),
annual leave earned to, but not yet taken at balance
date, long service leave entitlements expected to
be settled within 12 months of balance sheet date,
and sick leave are recognised as current employee
benefit liabilities. They are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are
recognised when the leave is taken and measured
at the rates paid or payable.

The Council recognises a liability for sick leave to the
extent that absences in the coming year are
expected to be greater than the sick leave
entitlements earned in the coming year. The amount
is calculated based on the unused sick leave
entitlement that can be carried forward at balance
date, to the extent that the Council anticipates it will
be used by staff to cover those future absences.

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses where it is contractually obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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Long-term employee entitlements

Liabilities for long service leave and gratuities (retiring
leave) that are payable beyond 12 months are
recognised as non-current employee benefits.

The liability is measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting
date using the projected credit method.
Consideration is given to the expected future wage
and salary levels, experience of employee departures
and periods of service. Expected future payments
are discounted using market yields at the reporting
date on national government bonds with terms and
currency that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.

23. SUPERANNUATION SCHEMES

Defined benefit schemes

The Council belongs to the Defined Benefit Plan
Contributors Scheme (the scheme), which is
managed by the Board of Trustees of the National
Provident Fund. The scheme is a multi-employer
defined benefit scheme.

Insufficient information is available to use defined
benefit accounting, as it is not possible to determine
from the terms of the scheme, the extent to which
the surplus/deficit will affect future contributions by
individual employers, as there is no prescribed basis
for allocation. The scheme is therefore accounted
for as a defined contribution scheme.

Defined contribution schemes

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
superannuation schemes are recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Financial Performance
when employees have rendered service entitling
them to contributions.

24. PROVISIONS

The Group recognises a provision for future
expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when:
the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past events; it is
probable that expenditures will be required to settle
the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as an interest expense and is included
in “finance costs”.

25. BORROWINGS

Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value.
After initial recognition, all borrowings are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

26. EQUITY

Equity is the community’s interest in the Group and
is measured as the difference between total assets
and total liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and
classified into a number of components.

The components of equity are:

retained earnings;
restricted reserves; and
other reserves

Restricted and council created reserves

Reserves are a component of equity generally
representing a particular use to which various parts
of equity have been assigned. Reserves may be
legally restricted or created by the Council, i.e.
special funds.

Restricted reserves are those subject to specific
conditions accepted as binding by the Council and
which may not be revised by the Council without
reference to the Courts or a third party. Transfers
from these reserves may be made only for certain
specified purposes or when certain specified
conditions are met.

Also included in "restricted reserves" are special
funds restricted by Council decision. Special fund
reserves are designated for a particular project or
planned commitment. The designation has an
administrative purpose only, and does not legally
restrict the Council’s discretion to apply the funds.

Other reserves

This will include the following reserves:

property, plant and equipment revaluation
reserve,
available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve, and
cash flow hedge reserve.
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Revaluation reserves arise when the value of an
asset becomes greater than the value at which it
was previously carried on the Statement of Financial
Position.

27. GOODS AND SERVICE TAX (GST)

All items in the financial statements are stated
exclusive of GST, except for receivables and
payables, which are stated on a GST inclusive basis,
(unless not applicable).Where GST is not recoverable
as input tax then it is recognised as part of the asset
or expense.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the Inland Revenue Department, is included as
part of receivables or payables in the Statement of
Financial Position

The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD,
including the GST relating to investing and financing
activities, is classified as an operating cash flow in
the Statement of Cash Flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed
exclusive of GST.

28. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. The following terms
are used in the Statement of Cash Flows:

Operating activities are the principal income
producing activities of the Group and other activities
that are not investing or financing activities.

Investing activities are the acquisition and disposal
of long-term assets and other investments not
included in cash equivalents.

Financing activities are activities that result in
changes in the size and composition of the
contributed equity and borrowings of the entity.

29. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative figures are, where appropriate,
reclassified so as to be consistent with the figures
presented for the current year.

30. PLAN FIGURES

The plan figures, or budget figures, are those
approved by the Council at the beginning of the year
in the Annual Plan (“the Plan”) or Long-Term Council
Community Plan (LTCCP). The Plan figures have
been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP, using

accounting policies that are consistent with those
adopted by the Council for the preparation of the
financial statements.

31. COST ALLOCATION

The Council has derived the cost of service for each
significant activity of the ARC using the cost
allocation system outlined below.

Direct costs are those costs directly attributable to
a significant activity. Indirect costs are those costs,
which cannot be identified in an economically
feasible manner, with a specific significant activity.

Direct costs are charged directly to significant
activities. Indirect costs are charged to significant
activities using appropriate cost drivers such as
actual usage, staff numbers and floor area.

32. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

ASSUMPTIONS

In preparing these financial statements the Group
has made estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. These estimates and assumptions may
differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The estimates, judgements and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year have been
included below.

Fair value of financial instruments

As described in note 18, the Group has used its
judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in an
active market. The estimation of fair value of unlisted
shares includes some assumptions not supported
by observable market prices or rates. Details of the
assumptions used and of the results of analysis are
provided in note 48.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

(PPE)

As described in the accounting policy for PPE, the
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property,
plant and equipment at the end of each annual
reporting period. The determination of the estimated
useful lives has a significant impact on depreciation
expense.

Chapter 4: . Financial performance

138

A
uc
kl
an
d
R
eg
io
na
lC

ou
nc
il
|A

nn
ua
lR

ep
or
t
09



Landfill aftercare provision

Note 34 presents an analysis of the exposure of the
Group in relation to the estimates and uncertainties
surrounding the landfill aftercare provision.

Rolling Stock Assets

There are a number of assumptions and estimates
used when performing an impairment review over
rolling stock. These include: the physical
deterioration and condition of an asset. This risk is
minimised by ARTA (or its agent) performing a
combination of physical inspections and condition
modelling assessments; estimating any
obsolescence or surplus capacity of an asset; and
estimates aremadewhen determining the remaining
useful lives over which the asset will be depreciated.
If useful lives do not reflect the actual consumption
of the benefits of the asset, then ARTA could be
over or under estimating the annual depreciation
charge recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Financial Performance. Tominimise this risk asset
inspections, deterioration and condition modelling
are carried out regularly as part of ARTA’s asset
management planning activities, which gives ARTA
further assurance over its useful life estimates.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

with indefinite useful lives

The Group determines whether goodwill and
intangibles with indefinite useful lives are impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill and
intangibles with indefinite useful lives are allocated.

Fair value of property, plant and equipment and

investment property

The ARH Group revalues investment property
annually and property, plant and equipment
(specifically land, buildings and wharves) every three
years. The valuations are performed by independent
registered valuers. The revaluation exercise requires
an estimation of the amount for which these assets
could be exchanged between willing parties in an
arm's length transaction. The determination of value
has a significant impact on the total asset value
reported for these assets and on the depreciation
expense for property, plant and equipment.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is
determined by valuation experts using various
valuation techniques. The fair value of interest rate
swaps is calculated as the present value of estimated
future cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts is determined using forward

foreign exchange market rates at the balance date.
Interest rate caps are valued using an option pricing
model and assumptions based onmarket conditions
existing at balance date.

Fair value of investments in subsidiaries

The fair value of ARH's investment in POAL is
determined by valuation experts using valuation
techniques, being principally based on discounted
cash flow methodology. This is based on
assumptions that may change. The key assumptions
driving the valuation of POAL include container price,
volumes, operating costs, capital expenditure
programmes and the discount rate.

Classification of Wynyard Precinct land

Management has used its judgement in classifying
the intercompany purchase of the land at the
Wynyard Precinct as Property, Plant and Equipment.
Management considers this property as Property,
Plant and Equipment as it will ultimately be classified
as a restricted asset upon ultimate transfer.

33. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

There have been no changes in accounting policies
since 30 June 2008.
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Note 2: Summary cost of services

CouncilGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

Operating income

110,20895,737Transport82,48175,599
1,0231,092Built environment8,9499,489
23,22521,853Natural environment and heritage23,02220,301
1,514937Economic development8791,027
2,6351,795Regional leadership and community development2,4052,341
12,0229,941Regional parks10,45833,288
1,9922,525Safety2,0061,956

152,619133,880Total operating income130,200144,001

(6,926)(6,383)Less internal operating income(5,811)(4,847)
146,313148,441Add rates revenue135,869137,285
292,006275,938Total external operating income260,258276,439

Operating expenditure

186,823170,287Transport158,551148,750
7,1575,002Built environment7,0746,333
52,40664,897Natural environment and heritage50,86250,923
5,5194,786Economic development4,4843,695
15,27212,879Regional leadership and community development14,33213,771
35,15735,328Regional parks31,30930,567
3,9284,203Safety3,7403,450

306,262297,382Total operating expenditure270,352257,489

(6,926)(6,383)Less internal operating expenditure(5,811)(4,847)
299,336290,999Total external operating expenditure264,541252,642

299,336290,999
(7,330)(15,061)Operating surplus/(deficit)(4,283)23,797

Summarised as:

(153,643)(163,502)Net cost of services(140,152)(113,488)
146,313148,441Rates revenue135,869137,285
(7,330)(15,061)Operating surplus/(deficit)(4,283)23,797

Each significant activity is stated gross of internal costs and revenues, and includes targeted rates attributable to activities
(refer note 3 - Rates revenue). In order to fairly reflect the total external operations for the Council in the Statement of
Financial Performance, these transactions are eliminated as shown above.

Refer to section 4.8 for detailed cost of services statements for each activity.
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Note 3: Rates revenue

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

77,96679,24979,201General rates72,61172,496

Targeted rates attributable to activities:

5,2225,2605,260Biosecurity5,0665,066
5,7325,7935,793Parkland purchase5,0075,007
57,03657,78757,787Passenger transport54,62754,627

454646Possum control--
(133)(133)(133)Rates remissions(120)(120)

(2,308)(2,315)(2,315)Rates discounts(2,323)(2,323)
2,7532,7542,754Rates penalties2,4172,417

146,313148,441148,393Total rates revenue net of remissions137,285137,170

The general rate is used to fund (or part-fund) a range of Council Activities, including: regional growth strategy, stormwater
management, pollution response, coastal management, land management, natural heritage conservation, cultural heritage
conservation, planning for the future, resource consent management and compliance, economic development, democracy services,
Maori relations, sustainable schools and communities, managing regional parks, visitor services, hazards management, civil
defence and the Harbourmaster.

The Council has set targeted rates for biosecurity, possum control in South Kaipara, possum control in Awhitu, parkland purchases
and transport.

The biosecurity rate will fund activities including plant and animal pest control programmes, providing information, surveillance
and enforcement of pest control provisions.
The possum control rate will be used to fund possum eradication programmes in South Kaipara and Awhitu.
The parkland purchase rate will fund the repayment of existing parkland purchase loans (capital and interest repayments
relating to existing land purchases).
The transport rate will be used for funding most of Auckland Regional Transport Authority's (ARTA's) transport activities.

Any below Plan expenditure funded from a Targeted Rate is "ring-fenced" into a specific reserve to be used to fund future
expenditure for that activity alone, (refer note 37 - Reserves).

The Council's rates revenue policies are as specified in the ARC's Long-Term Council Community Plan (LTCCP) 2006-16.

Rates remissions

Rates revenue is shown net of rates remissions. Council's rates remission policy allows ARC to remit rates on: sporting and other
groups providing services to communities, Maori Freehold Land, properties subject to QEII Open Space Covenants and penalties
where late payment of rates resulted from circumstances outside the ratepayer's control and where it is just and equitable to
remit the penalty.

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

146,446148,574148,526Total gross rates revenue137,405137,290

Rates remissions

120120120Land used for community, sporting and other
organisations providing community services

109109

555Land held as Maori Freehold Land44
888Land subject to QEII Open Space Covenants77

133133133Total rates remissions120120

146,313148,441148,393Total rates revenue net of remissions137,285137,170

Non-rateable land
Under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 certain properties cannot be rated for general rates. These properties include
schools, places of religious worship, public gardens and reserves. Non-rateable land does not constitute a remission under ARC's
rate remission policy.
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Note 4: Auckland Regional Holdings income

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH) general

distributions to fund:

18,80018,800-Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA)
operating expenditure

10,492-

83,44969,508-Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA)
capital expenditure

57,222-

1,4651,408-Council Controlled Organisation (CCO) Unit costs1,094-
5,8984,674-Stormwater grants4,255-

50--Other33,500-
109,66294,390-Total Auckland Regional Holdings income106,563-

One of ARH's statutory functions is to provide funds to the ARC in accordance with ARH's long-term funding plan.

As per the Local Government (Auckland) Amendment Act 2004 (LGAAA) section 34, the Council must apply at least 85% of the
funds received from ARH to: (a) ARTA for the purposes of land transport in the Auckland Region; or (b) for stormwater purposes
in the Auckland Region.

At 30 June 2009 a balance was accrued for ARTA capex $824k (2008: $nil), this was paid by ARH in July 2009.
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Note 5: Net investment income/(loss)

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Investment income and costs from financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss:

Designated on initial recognition
2,386-15,071- Interest-33,844

---- Dividends-2,851
--7,679- Realised net gains-8,010
--(22,926)- Unrealised losses-(9,191)

Classified as held for trading
--(22,718)- Realised net (losses)/gains-273
--6,188- Unrealised net gains/(losses)-(4,583)

Other investment income and costs:
---Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges ineffective

portion
275

---Amount capitalised (2009: 6.16%, 2008: 9.09%).661
--1,900Dividend income - available-for-sale financial assets-2,027

2,2503,338Other interest income3,8881,285
--(69,453)Net loss on fair value adjustment(refer note 25 -

Investment property)
-(1,173)

--(6,727)Transfer from available-for-sale financial assets
revaluation reserve(refer note 37- Reserves)

--

--(219)Loss on derecognition of subsidiary(refer note 18 -
Financial assets and note 43 - Investment in
subsidiaries)

--

2,3862,250(87,867)Total net investment income/(loss)3,88834,279

Note 6: Net finance costs

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

81512826,225Interest and finance charges paid / payable4329,365
-222222Interest on landfill upwind8282
--681Interest on rate swaps - cash flow hedges

ineffective portion
--

--177Interest on rate swaps - fair value hedges-163
--(140)Amount capitalised (2009: 6.16%, 2008: 9.09%).--

81535027,165Total net finance costs12529,610

Group finance costs (excluding Council) relate to
POAL borrowings.
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Note 7: Net farming income

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Farming sales

460479479Sale of cattle447447
435438438Sale of sheep436436
1005656Harvesting of wool101101
995973973Total farming sales984984

Further detail on the farming operation can be
found in note 23 - Biological assets

Value of livestock sold

1,060820820Opening stock - cattle and sheep1,0241,024
321169169plus purchases196196

-961961plus gains483483
(1,071)(1,031)(1,031)less closing stock(820)(820)

310919919Total value of livestock sold883883

6855454Net farming income101101

Note 8: Other income

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

15,20916,41212,799Service fees revenue14,55111,050
11,9099,3439,343Facilities revenue8,6008,600

--18,281Rail fare revenue-16,778
--4,482Bus fare revenue-3,420
--2,009Ferry wharf revenue-1,568
--162,682Provision of services-168,126
--11,472Leasing of investment property-11,364
--109,158New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA)

operating expenditure grants
-90,222

--4,373New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA)
capital expenditure grants

-5,735

4,5181,5943,968Grants and subsidies1,9313,251
161139139Merchandising income160160

---Donated assets-72,829
8531,4351,646Other operating income1,9752,134

32,65028,923340,352Total other income27,217395,237
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Note 9: Other gains/(losses)

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

-961961Gain on livestock revaluation(refer note 7 - Net
farming income, and note 23 - Biological assets).

483483

-(434)(623)Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

19332

-527338Total gains/(losses)502815

Note 10: Grant expenditure

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

2,3631,4511,541Integrated Catchment Management Plan (ICMP)1,9401,940
-8080Other stormwater grants6666
--176,665Transport grants and subsidies-152,398

95,91693,163-ARTA operating expenditure83,474-
83,44969,508-ARTA capital expenditure56,112-

181,728164,202178,286Total grant expenditure141,592154,404

Note 11: Employee benefit expenses

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

48,81850,109117,553Salaries and wages46,266109,336
502702,424Employer contributions to superannuation522,287

48,86850,379119,977Total employee benefit expenses46,318111,623

Employer contributions to superannuation include
contributions to KiwiSaver and other defined
contribution plans.
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Note12: Depreciation and amortisation expense

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) (refer note
27)

Operational assets

-11Land and improvements11
431,469Buildings31,050

9001,01216,393Plant machinery and other equipment80513,547
700546546Vehicles677677

2,8502,9035,122Furniture, fixtures and equipment2,8295,017
260128128Furniture, fittings and equipment - finance leases262262
240307307Roads240240
151111Dams1111
909797Bridges and structures8383
--13,713Rolling stock-10,342
--1,091Railway stations and associated assets-495
--3,262Wharves, piers and associated assets-2,704
--1,132Pavements-1,095

1838080Low value assets9393

Restricted assets

5005412,277Land and improvements482482
1,1001,0351,035Buildings1,0201,020
6,8426,66446,664Total depreciation6,50637,119

Intangible assets (refer note 28 )
8009221,942Computer software7291,476

--357Operating lease - Land-268
8009222,299Total amortisation7291,744

7,6427,58648,963Total depreciation and amortisation expense7,23538,863
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Note 13: Other operating expenses

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Auditor remuneration

Fees to principal auditor:
144144243audit fees for financial statement audit120223

-8585audit fees for LTCCP amendment4848
104184184audit fees for LTCCP--

---audit fees for NZ IFRS transition1717
--8audit fees for assurance and related services(a)1133

Fees to other auditors:
--253audit fees for financial statement audit-259
--2audit fees for other services-46

Impairment (refer note 16 - Trade debtors and
other receivables)

-73150Bad debts written-off52136
-43154Change in provision for impairment of trade

debtors
356329

-1414Change in provision for impairment of rate
receivables

--

--183Impairment charge for property, plant and
equipment (PPE),(refer note 27 - PPE)

-131

35,00034,12563,119Professional Services31,50059,593

Occupancy costs

4,5004,38710,472Operating lease rentals4,13311,851
3,0003,0824,667Other occupancy costs2,5913,852

General

--1,309Directors fees-1,178
---Capital expenditure grants to third parties2,0007,012
-30240Net foreign exchange losses--
-1621Donations/Koha1751

5,5005,1785,178Maintenance and repairs4,4314,431
5,0004,8025,567Information systems3,5974,308

-5102,524Marketing and advertising8582,767
4,0003,72931,380Administration3,63828,771

2,72510,72726,763Other operating expenses3,12019,688
59,97367,129152,516Total other operating expenses56,489144,724

The auditor completed assurance engagements
over ARTA's tender and consultation processes.

(a)

For items that are material their nature and amount
has been disclosed separately.
For comparative purposes last years figures have
been split out accordingly.
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Note 14: Taxation

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Income tax recognised in profit or loss(a)

Tax expense/(benefit) comprises:
--12,922Current tax expense-9,734
--(2,561)Deferred tax benefit(refer note 35 - Deferred tax

liability)
-(48)

--634Adjustments to current tax in prior years-(416)
--10,995Total income tax expense-9,270

Deferred income tax revenue included in the
income tax expense comprises:

--(2,561)(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities-500
---Impact of tax rate change from 33% to 30%-(548)
--(2,561)Deferred tax benefit-(48)

Relationship between tax expense and

accounting surplus/(deficit):

(7,330)(15,061)(123,868)Surplus / (deficit) before taxation23,79791,754

(2,199)(4,518)(37,160)Tax at 30% (2008: 33%)7,85330,279

Plus/(less) tax effect of:
---Impact of tax rate change from 33% to 30%-(550)

2,1994,51839,405Non-taxable (surplus)/deficit(7,853)(24,487)
--7,073Non-deductible expenditure-4,323
--164Depreciation and amortisation-(145)
--(531)Share of net surplus from associates-(1,114)
--1,045Sundry items-918
--440Deferred tax income relating to previous

unrecognised temporary differences
-(89)

--560Under provision of income tax in prior years-135
--10,995Total income tax expense-9,270

The Group is generally exempt from paying income
tax. However, the Group is not exempt from
paying income tax on its income derived from
port-related commercial undertakings (PRCU).

The Council has not recognised a deferred tax
asset in relation to unrecognised tax losses
amounting to $21k.
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Note 14: Taxation continued

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Income tax recognised directly in equity(b)

The following current and deferred amounts were
charged/(credited) to equity during the period(refer
note 37 - Reserves):

--(4,695)Cash flow hedge reserve-(1,268)
--482Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation

reserve
-(1,689)

--(4,653)Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve-6,333
--(8,866)Total-3,376

Imputation credit memorandum account (ICA)(c)

--77,560Balance at 1 July-75,801
--(1,180)Prior period adjustment-(501)
--1,293Attached to dividends received-1,769
--9,252Income tax paid (net of refunds)-491
--(8,508)Imputation credits extinguished on liquidation

of ACVL
--

--78,417Balance at 30 June-77,560

The imputation credits are subject to confirmation
by the Inland Revenue Department and satisfaction
of the shareholder continuity test. These
imputation credits relate to credits available in
subsidiary companies; local authorities are not
permitted to maintain an ICA.

Current tax assets and liabilities(d)

--1Excess of tax paid for current period over
amount due

-1,989

--1Tax receivable-1,989

--1,305Shortage of tax paid for current period over amount
due

-29

--1,305Tax payable-29
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Note 15: Cash and cash equivalents

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

2502737,509Cash at bank and on hand28310,149
--2,402Bank deposits with maturities less than 3 months10,00010,000

2502739,911Total cash and cash equivalents10,28320,149

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents
(with maturities less than three months) equals
their fair value.

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include
the following for the purposes of the statement
of cash flows:

2502737,509Cash at bank and on hand28310,149
--2,402Bank deposits with maturities less than 3 months10,00010,000
---Bank overdraft-(440)

2502739,911Balance per Statement of Cash Flows10,28319,709
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Note 16: Trade debtors and other receivables

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

3,0563,30618,697Trade debtors2,19319,582
-(669)(1,062)less provision for impairment of trade debtors(626)(908)

3,0562,63717,635Net trade debtors1,56718,674

6,0007,2277,227Rates receivable5,8725,872
-(14)(14)less provision for impairment of rates receivable--

6,0007,2137,213Net rates receivable5,8725,872

Other receivables:
2,0001,42713,938Accrued income1,98111,909
2,0003,1513,645Other4,0794,079
13,05614,42842,431Total trade and other receivables13,49940,534

Trade debtors and other receivables are
non-interest bearing and receipt is normally on
30-day terms, therefore the carrying value of trade
debtors and other receivables approximates fair
value.

There is no concentration of credit risk with
receivables as the Council and Group have a large
number of customers.

CouncilGroup

2008200920082009Movement in the provision for impairment of receivables

- trade debtors and rates receivable: ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000
270626579908Balance at 1 July

43357504337Additional provisions recognised during the year
--(16)(127)Provisions reversed during the year

43357488210Impairment charge for receivables

(77)-(159)(42)Receivables written-off during the year
6266839081,076Balance at 30 June

The creation and release of the provision of impairment of receivables has been included in "other expenses" in the Statement
of Financial Performance.

Amounts charged to the provision for impairment of receivables are generally written-off when there is no expectation of
recovery.

The other classes within trade debtors and other receivables do not contain impaired or past due assets.
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Note 16: Trade debtors and other receivables - continued

The status of receivables as at 30 June are detailed below:

Impaired receivables - Trade debtors(a)
As at 30 June 2009, trade debtors of the Group with a nominal value of $1,062k (2008: $908k) were impaired;
Council $669k (2008: $626k).

The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to those customers experiencing significant financial difficulties.

The ageing of these individually impaired trade debtors are as follows:

CouncilGroup

2008200920082009
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

-9-120Past due 1-90 days
-19-301Past due 91-120 days

626641908641Past due > 120 days
6266699081,062Total individually impaired debtors

Impaired receivables - Rates(b)
As at 30 June 2009, Council rates of $14k (2008:$nil) were impaired.

The Council has various powers under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover as a debt rates unpaid.
These include the right to commence proceedings in a court to recover rates that remain unpaid; to recover rates
that remain unpaid as a debt from the first mortgagee of a rating unit; if payment is not made following a Court's
judgement, the right to apply to the Registrar of the High Court to have the judgement enforced by sale or lease
of the rating unit.

There is a limitation of time for recovery of rates of 6 years from the date on which the last payment became due.
CouncilGroup

2008200920082009
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

-14-14Past due > 6 years
-14-14Total individually impaired rates receivable
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Note 16: Trade debtors and other receivables - continued

Past due but not impaired - Rates receivable(c)
As at 30 June 2009, Council rate receivables of $7,227k (2008: $5,872k) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent rate payers for whom there is no recent history of default.

The ageing analysis of these rates receivable are as follows:
CouncilGroup

2008200920082009
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

46104610Arrears from 2003/2004
87478747Arrears from 2004/2005

204102204102Arrears from 2005/2006
594242594242Arrears from 2006/2007

-732-732Arrears from 2007/2008
9311,1339311,133Total rates receivable past due but not impaired

This reconciles as:
9311,1339311,133Total rates receivable past due but not impaired

4,9416,0804,9416,080Total current rates receivable
-14-14Total impaired rates receivable

5,8727,2275,8727,227Total rates receivable

Ratepayers can apply for payment plan options in special circumstances. Where such repayment plans are in place,
debts are discounted to their present value of future payments if the impact of discounting is material.

The carrying amount of receivables that would otherwise be past due or impaired, whose payment terms have
been renegotiated is $30,337 (2008: $16,575).

Past due but not impaired - Trade debtors(d)
As at 30 June 2009, trade debtors of the Group with a nominal value of $5,094k (2008: $7,816k) were past due
but not impaired; Council $736k (2008: $545k). These relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default.

The ageing of these trade debtors is as follows:
CouncilGroup

2008200920082009
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

4255047,3854,749Past due 1-90 days
50102334214Past due 91-120 days
7013097131Past due > 120 days

5457367,8165,094Total trade debtors past due but not impaired

This reconciles as:
5457367,8165,094Total trade debtors past due but not impaired

1,0221,90110,85812,541Total current trade debtors
6266699081,062Total impaired trade debtors

2,1933,30619,58218,697Total trade debtors
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Note 17: Related party receivables

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Distributions for grants relate to the ARH Board's
commitment in the year ended 30 June 2005 to
provide ongoing funding to the ARC for grants
made by the former Infrastructure Auckland, which
are primarily to local councils. Under the Local
Government (Auckland) Amendment Act 2004,
the liabilities for these grants were vested in ARC
and ARTA.

Current portion

10,00017,967-Transport grants18,802-
7,02813,403-Stormwater grants26,768-
17,02831,370-Total current receivables45,570-

Non-current portion

1,0001,152-Transport grants9,880-
3,21916,271-Stormwater grants9,488-

---Present value revaluation(1,856)-
4,21917,423-Total non-current receivables17,512-

21,24748,793-
Total related party receivables - ARH owing

to ARC
63,082-

The carrying amounts of current grants receivable
approximates their fair value. In the prior year, the
fair value of non-current grants receivable in a time
frame of greater than one year were determined
using cash flows discounted at a rate based on
The Treasury 2008 discount default rate of 8.00%,
(2009: 6.40%).

This year non-current grants receivable are not fair
valued but are stated at the amount receivable, as
the difference between fair value and amount
receivable is immaterial.
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Note 18: Other financial assets

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Financial assets at fair value through profit

and loss (FVTPL)

(i)

Current portion

--116,550New Zealand short-term cash portfolio
investments

-160,063

--116,550Total current financial assets at FVTPL-160,063

Non-current portion

--3,505New Zealand short-term cash portfolio
investments

-55,114

-265,379Diversified financial assets portfolio investments-303,339
--268,884Total non-current financial assets at FVTPL-358,453

--385,434
Total financial assets at fair value through

profit and loss
-518,516

Financial asset portfolios:

The Group has two financial asset portfolios. The investments in both portfolios are managed by external fund managers
and overseen by an external custodian.

The New Zealand short-term cash portfolio invests in bank deposits and registered certificates of deposit held with major
NZ banks.

The investments have a maturity of 12 months or less and can be either held-to-maturity or traded.

The diversified financial assets portfolio (DFA) consists of investments in New Zealand cash, global equities and global
bonds. The global equities and global bonds investments are pooled in unlisted trust units. Due to the nature of these
investments they do not have maturity dates.
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Note 18: Other financial assets - continued

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Available-for-sale financial assets(ii)
The investments categorised as available-for-sale
by default represent investments in equity
instruments that offer the Group the opportunity
for return through dividend income and fair value
gains.

Non-current assets

--17,424Listed equity securities in Northland Port
Corporation (NZ) Ltd

-23,791

201217217Unlisted shares in NZ Local Government Insurance
Corporation Limited (LGIC)

217217

815,479815,479-Investment in subsidiaries815,479-
815,680815,69617,641Total available-for-sale financial assets815,69624,008

Listed equity securities
POAL holds 19.9% of the listed equity securities
in Northland Port Corporation (NZ) Ltd. The fair
value of these securities is based on quoted
market prices. During the financial year, Northland
Port Corporation (NZ) Limited proceeded with its
intention to buy back approximately 5% of the
issued capital at market prices. POAL sold 5% of
its investment holding for $1,126k to maintain its
19.9% shareholding and incurred a loss on disposal
of the shares of $219k.

Unlisted shares
LGIC is an unlisted company, and accordingly there
are no published price quotations to determine the
fair value of this investment. The fair value of
unlisted shares of LGIC have been calculated as
the net asset backing of the shares. At 31
December 2008 the net asset backing of the
6,390,790 shares in LGIC was $3.01 per share
(2008: $3.00).

Investments in subsidiaries
The Council has two Council Controlled
Organisations (CCO) created under the Local
Government (Auckland) Amendment Act 2004. As
statutory bodies, neither CCO has any share
capital. The CCO are carried at cost in the parent
entity's financial statements, (refer note 43,
investment in subsidiaries).

815,680815,696403,075Total other financial assets815,696542,524

Presented as:

--116,550Other financial assets - current-160,063
815,680815,696286,525Other financial assets - non-current815,696382,461
815,680815,696403,075815,696542,524

Impairment

There was no impairment provision for other financial assets (2008:$nil).
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Note 19: Derivative financial instruments

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Current asset portion

Used for hedging
---Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges-408

Fair value through profit or loss
--4,679Forward foreign currency contracts--
--4,679Total current asset portion-408

Non-current asset portion

Used for hedging
--5,201Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges-3,893
--5,201Total non-current asset portion-3,893

--9,880Total derivative financial instrument assets-4,301

Current liability portion

Used for hedging
--1,084Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges--

Fair value through profit or loss
---Forward foreign currency contracts-4,583
--1,084Total current liability portion-4,583

Non-current liability portion

Used for hedging
--15,466Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges--
--15,466Total current liability portion--

--16,550Total derivative financial instrument liability-4,583

--(6,670)Net derivative financial instruments-(282)

Interest rate swap contracts:

POAL

POAL is party to interest rate swap contracts in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposures to fluctuations
in interest rates in accordance with its financial risk management policies. POAL designates all its interest rate swap
contracts as hedging instruments. Bank loans of POAL bore an average variable interest rate of 3.32% (2008: 9.20%). It
is policy to protect part of the loans from exposure to increasing interest rates. Accordingly POAL has entered into interest
rate swap contracts under which it is obliged to receive interest at variable rates and to pay at fixed rates.

Swaps currently in place cover approximately 77% (2008: 75%) of the loan principal outstanding and are timed to expire
as interest and loan repayments fall due. The fixed interest rates range between 5.28% and 6.94% (2008: 5.70% and
7.95%) and the maturity dates range between 16 November 2009 to 28 November 2016. During the financial year several
new interest rate swap contracts were put in place with forward start dates. These new interest rate swaps equate to
39% of the total national principal amount ($447m).

The contracts require settlement of net interest receivable or payable on a quarterly basis. The settlement dates coincide
with the dates on which interest is payable on the underlying debt. The contracts are settled on a net basis. The gain or
loss from remeasuring the hedging instruments at fair value is deferred in equity in the cash flow hedge reserve, to the
extent that the hedge is effective, and re-classified into profit and loss when the hedged interest expense is recognised.
The ineffective portion is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance immediately. In the year ended 30 June
2009 an ineffective portion expense of $681k (2008: $275k credit) was transferred to the Statement of Financial Performance.
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Note 19: Derivative financial instruments - continued

At 30 June, the notional principal amounts and periods of expiry of the interest rate swap contracts were as follows:

Group
20082009
ActualActual
$000$000

80,00055,000Less than 1 year
70,00010,0001-2 years
10,000145,0002-3 years
45,00060,0003-4 years
10,00052,0004-5 years
52,000125,000Greater then 5 years
267,000447,000

Forward exchange contracts:

ARH

ARH is party to forward exchange contracts in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposures to fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates in accordance with its financial risk management policies. Within its diversified financial assets
portfolio, ARH has investments in unlisted unit trusts that are denominated in foreign currencies, AUD, USD and Euro. As
these are held for trading in the normal course of business they are designated as financial assets or liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Fluctuations in the fair value of these contracts are recognised immediately in the Statement of
Financial Performance. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance during the year was a net loss
of $16.5m (2008: net loss of $4.3m).

POAL

POAL is party to forward exchange contracts in order to manage foreign exchange risk. POAL's risk management policy
is to hedge for major items of plant and equipment purchased in foreign currencies only. These contracts are hedging
highly probable forecasted purchases for the ensuing financial year. The contracts are timed to mature when the payment
for the purchase of major component parts fall due. At 30 June 2009 POAL had no outstanding forward exchange contracts
(30 June 2008: $nil). During the current financial year POAL entered into USD forward exchange contracts to buy the
equivalent of NZ$10,888k for the loan advanced to a joint venture company Seafuels Limited. During the prior financial
year POAL entered into Euro forward exchange contracts to buy the equivalent of NZ$10,441k for the purchase of additional
items of plant and equipment (straddles).

Where forward exchange contracts have been designated and tested as an effective hedge, the portion of the gain or loss
on the hedged instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised directly in equity. When the cash
flows occur, POAL adjusts the initial measurement of the component recognised in the Statement of Financial Position
by the related amount deferred in equity. The ineffective portion is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
immediately. At balance date these contracts had a fair value of $nil (2008: $nil). Where forward exchange contracts are
not designated and tested as an effective hedge, the gain or loss on the forward exchange contract is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance as Investment Income.
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Note 20: Rental expense / income in advance

As disclosed in prior year financial statements, ARH entered into a series of arrangements in June 2007 for property transactions
with the Auckland City Council (ACC) and the ARC to enable the redevelopment of the Auckland Central Business District waterfront
area known as Wynyard Precinct. The property sales and purchases were completed in July and August 2007.

The total value of the properties sold by ARH, net of properties purchased, during 2007was $117.6m. The agreed net compensation
amount received was $74.3m. The value of rental paid in advance, net of rental received in advance, was $43.3m.

In accordance with the agreed arrangements, the day-to-day operational management of the properties sold to ACC and ARC,
including the termination of existing lessees, are to be managed by ARH until the properties transfer to ACC and ARC over the
period from 2009 to 2025 as they become vacant. ARH continues to collect rental receipts, however the degree of control that
ARH has over the properties is limited to managing the existing tenants off the sites and is not that of a natural owner.

Accounting treatment

ARH transferred the equitable interest in the properties on the completion dates, these dates being when the cash proceeds
were received for the property sales.

Due to the transfer dates for the properties being later than the completion dates, the property sales have been treated as a Sale
and Leaseback arrangement under NZ IAS 17. ARH has derecognised the particular investment properties and is leasing the
properties back until the tranfer dates.

The cash proceeds received represent the net amount of the fair value for the properties, less prepaid rental. The prepaid rental
will be amortised on an annual basis with a notional rental expense for the public space and a notional rental income for the
stopped roads (roads that in future will no longer be roads) being recognised in ARH's Statement of Financial Performance.

Intercompany balances are eliminated on consolidation, therefore the portion relating to ACC only is shown in the Group figures
below.

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Property transactions with the Auckland City

Council (ACC)

--82,422Current value of properties sold-82,422
--(54,918)Cash compensation amount received-(54,918)
--27,504Effective rental paid in advance-27,504

--(3,801)Previously amortised as notional rental expense-(3,801)
-(3,811)Amortised as notional rental expense for 12 months

to 30 June 2009
-

--19,892Asset of rental expense in advance-23,703

--(4,558)Current value of properties purchased-(4,558)
--4,118Cash compensation amount paid-4,118
--(440)Effective rental received in advance-(440)

211Previously amortised as notional rental income211
--153Amortised as notional rental income for the 12

months to 30 June 2009
--

--(76)Liability of rental income in advance-(229)

Presented as:

--3,811Rental expense in advance - current-3,801
--16,081Rental expense in advance - non-current-19,902
--19,892-23,703

--(76)Rental income in advance - current-(153)
---Rental income in advance - non-current-(76)
--(76)-(229)
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Note 21: Inventories

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

---Visitor centre stock1414
--5,126Rolling stock spare parts-3,096
--4,352POAL inventories-1,997
--9,478Total inventories145,107

Rolling stock spare parts
Inventory comprises spare parts for ARTA's rolling stock; it is held and managed by KiwiRail on ARTA's behalf. The carrying
amount of the inventories is measured at cost adjusted where applicable for the loss of service potential. The cost of
inventories recognised as an expense during the year is $3,454k. There have been no write-downs of inventory or reversals
of write-downs.

POAL inventories
Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value recognised as an expense during the year amounted to $64k (2008:
642k). This was offset by $2,070k due to reversal of write-downs. The net recovery has been included in "other expenses".

Note 22: Non-current assets held for sale

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

--1,292Buildings--
--259Other property, plant and equipment--
--17,548Wharves--
--19,099Total non-current assets held for sale--

Queens Wharf and associated assets have been reclassified as held for sale by POAL as at 30 June 2009 as it was highly
probable that these assets would be disposed of. The accumulated property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
relating to the non-current assets classified as held for sale is $3,828k.

Refer to note 45, events after balance date, for information regarding the sale of the assets.
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Note 23: Biological assets

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Livestock

Consolidated farm operation

1,060820820Balance at 1 July1,0241,024
321169169Increases due to purchases196196

-264264Natural increases350350

Gains/(losses) arising from changes in fair value
less estimated point of sale costs attributable to:

-211211- physical changes172172
-522522- price changes--
-733733Net gains172172

(310)(919)(919)Value of goods sold(883)(883)
-(36)(36)Natural decreases(39)(39)

1,0711,0311,031Balance at 30 June820820

The Auckland Regional Council manages approximately 41,000 hectares of parkland in the Auckland region. Approximately,
1,300 hectares of this area is farmed and managed at 18 park locations by the Regional Parks Farm Business Unit (FBU).

The FBU operates a traditional sheep and beef farming operation (breeding/finishing) for the purpose of producing meat
and wool. The farming year commenced with 8,277 sheep and 903 cattle giving a total of 12,700 stock units farmed on
1,300 hectares. The cattle number includes 120 dairy grazers.

The farmed areas range in size from 20 hectares to 330 hectares. Sheep and beef cattle are managed on these areas and
their geographic location, land type, soil type, climatic variations and more specifically public visitation influences whether
a farm is used for breeding or finishing.

Production

92,366 kg lamb and mutton (2008:135,827 kg)
39,256 kg wool (2008: 39,400 kg)
116,930 kg beef (2008: 124,865 kg)

All products are marketed for domestic and international processing.

Valuation assumptions

The following valuation assumptions have been adopted in determining the fair value of livestock:
fair value is determined through price movements, natural increases and the age of the herd and flock,
fair value reflects the trade price available in the market place,
the main market indicator is the price quoted for livestock around balance date,
movements in the market value of livestock are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance
and determined as the difference between the fair value of livestock recognised at the beginning of the year and
the fair value of livestock recognised at reporting date.

The total farm working expenses excluding salaries is $38.95 per stock unit (2008: $44.80).

Chapter 4: . Financial performance

161

A
uckland

R
egionalC

ouncil|A
nnualR

eport
09



Note 23: Biological assets - continued

Financial risks

Moving schedule prices for lamb, beef and wool.
Global demand for commodity products especially wool.
Confidence within the dairy sector to pay for the grazing of dairy heifers.
High currency exchange rates.
Increased competition and higher supplies putting downward pressure on market prices.

ARC is a long-term farmer and does not expect livestock prices to decline significantly in the foreseeable future, therefore,
has not taken any measures to manage the risks of a decline in livestock prices.

Strategies

Soil fertility and pasture quality have an impact on livestock performance and farm profitability
The cost of conventional fertiliser has remained high and unaffordable. This was offset by applying maintenance
applications of lime to some parks.
Consideration should be given to investigating what product provides the maximum cost return of this input for the
network farms.
The ongoing cost of shearing may force farming operations to consider alternative shearing policies (compared to
the existing second shear policy) and wool marketing opportunities.
Shearing costs this year have exceeded revenue from wool. However, 12,000 kg of wool was withheld from sale
due to low process at the farm gate.
The ongoing cost of shearing sheep is approximately 85% of the wool income before the added cost of other farm
inputs.
Wool Partners International and Elders have negotiated wool contracts with manufacturers and retailers in the USA
and these contracts may benefit wool growers in the later half of the 2010 financial year.
Contracts for grazing dairy heifers have been renewed, and the income from these contracts will provide a steady
cash flow to buffer the seasonal price variations received from meat and wool.
This strategy reduces the cost of purchasing trading stock and saves animal health expenditure as owners are
responsible for meeting some of these costs.
The increasing costs of maintaining farm assets and infrastructure to park standard have impacted on working
expenses this year, 30% of working expenses, but these have been offset by decreased expenditure in animal
health, fertiliser and cartage.

Other risks

ARC livestock is also exposed to seasonal impacts such as drought, extreme wet and severe winters and disease
outbreaks. These impact on farm profitability.
Farm operations are constrained by farming within a public park setting and this compromises potential stocking
rates, livestock policy, grazing management, marketing strategies and farming revenue.
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Note 24: Investments accounted for using the equity method

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

--3,879POAL investment in associate (United Containers
Limited)

-3,828

--1,626POAL investment in joint venture (North Tugz Limited)-2,170
11,413POAL investment in joint venture (Seafuels Limited)-

--16,918Total investments accounted for using the equity

method

-5,998

--421Share of associate's surplus for the year-608
--1,348Share of joint venture's surplus for the year-2,768
--1,769Total share of surplus of associate and joint

venture

-3,376

Movement for the Year

POAL investment in associate

--3,828Carrying value at 1 July (including goodwill of $593k)-3,958
--421Share of surplus after income tax-608
---Additions--
--(370)Dividends received-(738)
--3,879Carrying value at 30 June (including goodwill of $593k)-3,828

Company: United Containers Limited
Principal Activity: Container depot
Ownership Interest: POAL 27.5% (2008: 27.5%)
Country of Incorporation: New Zealand
Balance Date: 30 June

POAL investment in joint venture

--2,170Carrying value at 1 July-3,307
--1,348Share of surplus after income tax-2,768
--11,413Loan advanced to Seafuels Limited--
--(250)Loan repayments-(1,250)
--(1,642)Dividends received-(2,655)
--13,039Carrying value at 30 June-2,170

Company: North Tugz Limited
Principal activity: Marine towage
Ownership interest: POAL 50% (2008: 50%)
Country of Incorporation: New Zealand
Balance Date: 30 June

Company: Seafuels Limited
Principal activity: Tanker for re-fuelling ships
Ownership interest: POAL 50% (2008: 0%)
Country of Incorporation: New Zealand
Balance Date: 31 December
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Note 24: Investments accounted for using the equity method - continued

The joint ventures are not controlled entities due to the provisions of the shareholder agreements.

POAL's Portion*Aggregate Balances

Share of joint venture's and associate's assets and liabilities 2008200920082009
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

2,1342,9806,3768,253Current assets
19,15730,06744,34466,128Non-current assets
21,29133,04750,72074,381Total assets

1,6933,7694,6268,827Current liabilities
9,53519,63421,19041,628Non-current liabilities
11,22823,40325,81650,455Total liabilities

10,0639,64424,90423,926Net assets

* POAL owns 50% of the joint ventures and 27.5% of the associate

POAL's Portion*Aggregate Balances

Share of joint venture's and associate's revenue, expenses

and surplus

2008200920082009
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

11,51311,82634,65035,656Revenue
(8,185)(9,616)(26,422)(30,302)Expenses
3,3282,2108,2285,354Surplus before income tax

* POAL owns 50% of the joint ventures and 27.5% of the associate.
The associate and joint ventures had no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2009 (2008: $nil)
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Note 25: Investment property

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

--244,256Balance at 1 July-280,544
--5,866Capitalised expenditure-3,416
--(69,453)Net loss on fair value adjustment(refer note 5 - Net

investment income)
-(1,173)

---Acquisitions-5,207
---Disposals-(43,734)
---Other-(4)
--180,669Balance at 30 June-244,256

Valuation Basis (refer note 1 - Accounting policies):

ARH investment properties

ARH's investment properties were valued at 30 June 2009 by Seagar and Partners (Auckland) Limited and Barratt-Boyes Jefferies
Limited, independent registered valuers and associates of the New Zealand Institute of Valuers. They have recent experience in
the location and category of the investment property being valued. The basis of the valuation of the investment properties is fair
value being the amounts for which the properties could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length
transaction at the operative date. The determination of fair value is based on discounted cash flows because of the nature of the
property and lack of comparable market factors.

POAL investment properties

POAL's investment properties were valued at 8 May 2009 by Barratt-Boyes Jefferies Limited and Colliers International NZ Limited
as at 30 June 2009, independent registered valuers and associates of the New Zealand Institute of Valuers. The valuers have
recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued. The basis of valuation of the investment
properties is fair value being the amounts for which the properties could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties
in an arm's length transaction at the operative date, based on current prices in an active market for similar properties in the same
location and condition and subject to similar leases.
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Note 26: Goodwill

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

--46,006Goodwill (on acquisition of POAL)-46,006
--46,006Total goodwill-46,006

Goodwill has arisen on consolidation due to the difference between the consideration paid by ARH ($169.6m) and the net asset
value ($124.8m) of the 20% additional shareholding in Ports of Auckland Limited (POAL) acquired over a series of step acquisitions
from June 2005 to August 2005, concluding with 100% shareholding on 5 August 2005. Acquisition costs of $1.2mwere capitalised
and also form part of goodwill.

In accordance with NZ IFRS goodwill is tested annually for impairment. No impairment losses have been recognised. Goodwill
will continue to remain on the Statement of Financial Position in the future unless there are impairment losses. The recoverable
value has been determined on the basis of fair value less costs to sell. Themethodology used in determining fair value is discounted
cash flow as determined by an independent valuation.

The key assumptions during the valuation of POAL include container price, volumes, operating costs, capital expenditure programmes
and the discount rate. The approach in determining the value assigned to each assumption has been on the basis of past experience
and planned changes in operations. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which
POAL's recoverable amount is based would not cause POAL's carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.
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Note 27: Property, plant and equipment

CarryingAccumulatedCostDepreciationNetWIPAdditionsCarryingAccumulatedCost

Council 2008
AmountdepreciationDisposalstransfersamountdepreciation
30 June

2008
30 June

2008
30 June

2008
01 July
2007

01 July
2007

01 July
2007

$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000

Operational assets

5491---639Land and improvements
5048983-19-344579Buildings

8,34911,45819,807805-473858,72210,73119,453Plant, machinery and other equipment
1,3573,4414,79867755-142,0752,7764,851Vehicles
9,17521,58930,7642,829-1551,49110,35818,76029,118Furniture, fixtures and equipment
128820948262---390558948Finance leases

6,5722,3918,963240---6,8122,1518,963Roads
14111625711---152105257Dams

1,2185371,75583-22101,2694541,723Bridges and structures
-55955993--93-466466Low value assets

10,174-10,174-20(548)5,4075,335-5,335Work in progress - buildings
37,16940,96378,1325,00475(305)7,40035,15336,04971,202Total operational assets

Restricted assets

163,3327,265170,597482-23234,992128,5906,783135,373Land and improvements
45,53312,26857,8011,020-73-46,48011,24857,728Buildings
208,86519,533228,3981,502-30534,992175,07018,031193,101Total restricted assets

246,03460,496306,5306,50675-42,392210,22354,080264,303
Total Council property, plant

and equipment

CostDate
Significant asset acquisitions: $000acquired

25,00001.09.2007Wynyard Precinct land
8,50030.04.2008Onehunga land

CarryingAccumulatedCostDepreciationNetWIPAdditionsCarryingAccumulatedCost

Council 2009
AmountdepreciationDisposalstransfersamountdepreciation
30 June

2009
30 June

2009
30 June

2009
01 July
2008

01 July
2008

01 July
2008

$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000

Operational assets

4591---549Land and improvements
4751983---504898Buildings

9,55211,95521,5071,012761,1821,1098,34911,45819,807Plant, machinery and other equipment
1,5073,3134,820546446161241,3573,4414,798Vehicles
9,12523,51232,6372,90331,3651,4919,17521,58930,764Furniture, fixtures and equipment

-948948128---128820948Finance leases
7,7152,69810,413307-1,1293216,5722,3918,963Roads
13012725711---141116257Dams

1,6806342,31497-473861,2185371,755Bridges and structures
-63963980--80-559559Low value assets

4,034-4,034--(9,243)3,10310,174-10,174Work in progress - buildings
33,79443,88277,6765,088123(4,478)6,31437,16940,96378,132Total operational assets

Restricted assets

169,9736,546176,5195411,2081,5336,857163,3327,265170,597Land and improvements
48,42813,13161,5591,0351042,9451,08945,53312,26857,801Buildings
218,40119,677238,0781,5761,3124,4787,946208,86519,533228,398Total restricted assets

252,19563,559315,7546,6641,435-14,260246,03460,496306,530
Total Council property, plant

and equipment

CostDate
Significant asset acquisitions: $000acquired

4,76931.07.2008Te Arai Point Land
1,06930.06.2009Tapapakanga property

Valuation

No classes of property, plant and equipment were revalued during the financial year (2008: $nil).

Impairment

No impairment losses have been recognised during the financial year (2008: $nil).

Restricted Assets

All ARC land is subject to the Local Government Act 2002 and the Local Government Amendment Act 2006, which set out procedures for the sale
or exchange of ARC land and, in some circumstances, how the proceeds of sale are to be applied.

Land which was taken or otherwise acquired under the Public Works Act 1981, and is no longer required for public works, is subject to the rights
of the former owners of that land under sections 40 and 42 of that Act.

Regional Parks and Reserves are also subject, in some cases, to the provisions of the Reserves Act 1977. All parkland is classified as restricted.

Mt Smart Stadium is governed by The Mt Smart Regional Recreation Centre Act 1985.
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Note 27: Property, plant and equipment - continued

CarryingAccumulatedCost/ImpairmentDepreciationRevaluationExchangeReclass-NetAdditionsCarryingAccumulatedCost/

Group 2008

AmountdepreciationValuationand
(reversals)

SurplusDifferenceificationsDisposalsamountdepreciationValuation

30 June
2008

30 June
2008

30 June
2008

01 July
2007

01 July
2007

01 July
2007

$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000

Operational assets

328,7854328,789-167,126-14050760260,8103260,813Land and improvements
15,050-15,050------15,050---Land - finance lease**
43,6373,31346,9501311,0508,516-(1,223)103(70)37,6982,26339,961Buildings
133,37685,047218,423-13,547-778(6,945)14434,327118,90791,880210,787Plant, machinery and other equipment

1,3563,4414,797-677---55132,0752,7764,851Vehicles
20,85446,54467,398-5,017--2,010173,71320,16541,83562,000Furniture, fixtures and equipment

128820948-262-----390558948Finance leases
6,5722,3918,963-240-----6,8122,1518,963Roads
141116257-11-----152105257Dams

1,2185371,755-83----321,2694541,723Bridges and structures
66,50826,21892,726-10,342---2784,13572,99315,87688,869Rolling stock
21,89850222,400-495----18,5033,89073,897Railway stations and associated

assets
195,2896,211201,500(46)2,70412,687-(927)-22,543163,6443,507167,151Wharves, piers and associated assets
63,3233,10866,431-1,095----4,26660,1522,01362,165Pavements

-559559-93----93-466466Low value assets
8,792-8,792-----6,84513,4902,147-2,147Work in progress - railway stations
36,531-36,531-----4,13535,1875,479-5,479Work in progress - rolling stock
12,622-12,622----6,9452,4337,646464-464Work in progress - plant, machinery

and other equipment
1,997-1,997------1,997---Work in progress - wharves
10,215-10,215------4,8805,335-5,335Work in progress - buildings
968,292178,8111,147,1038535,61788,329778-14,060166,565762,382164,894926,276Total operational assets

Restricted assets

177,8327,265185,097-482--14,500-35,224128,5906,783135,373Land and improvements
45,53312,26857,801-1,020----7346,48011,24857,728Buildings
223,36519,533242,898-1,502--14,500-35,297175,07018,031193,101Total restricted assets

1,191,657198,3441,390,0018537,11988,32977814,50014,060201,862937,452182,9251,119,377
Total Group property, plant and

equipment

CarryingAccumulatedCost/ImpairmentDepreciationRevaluationExchangeReclass-NetWIPAdditionsCarryingAccumulatedCost/

Group 2009

AmountdepreciationValuationand
(reversals)

SurplusDifferenceificationsDisposalstransfersamountdepreciation
Valuation

30 June
2009

30 June
2009

30 June
2009

01 July
2008

01 July
2008

01 July
2008

$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000

Operational assets

278,9715278,97653143,040-6,720--328,7854328,789Land and improvements
15,050-15,050--------15,050-15,050Land - finance lease**
39,2815139,3321301,4695,3251,292(3,662)--19843,6374843,685Buildings
118,15198,909217,060-16,393--202829(1,929)4,128133,37685,047218,423Plant machinery and other equipment
1,5063,3134,819-546---446161241,3563,4414,797Vehicles
20,23250,03270,264-5,122-259(202)231,3653,19520,87446,54467,418Furniture, fixtures and equipment

-948948-128------128820948Finance leases
7,7152,69810,413-307----1,1293216,5722,3918,963Roads
130127257-11------141116257Dams

1,6806342,314-97----473861,2185371,755Bridges and structures
89,26239,931129,193-13,713----36,467-66,50826,21892,726Rolling stock
26,7571,56528,322-1,091---2546,204-21,89850222,400Railway stations and associated

assets
168,8111,316170,127-3,2626,70717,548932-1,89675195,289555195,844Wharves, piers and associated assets
76,9554,24081,195-1,132--(3,990)--10,77463,3233,10866,431Pavements

-638638-80-----80-559559Low value assets
28,581-28,581------(6,204)25,9938,792-8,792Work in progress - railway stations
38,851-38,851------(36,467)38,78736,531-36,531Work in progress - rolling stock
19,283-19,283-----3,1113,52912,643-12,643Work in progress - plant, machinery

and other equipment
4,342-4,342------(1,896)4,2411,997-1,997Work in progress - wharves
4,034-4,034------(9,243)3,10310,174-10,174Work in progress - buildings

939,593204,4071,144,00018343,35255,07219,099-1,150(4,478)94,635968,292169,8901,138,182Total operational assets

Restricted assets

182,7378,282191,019-2,277---1,2081,5336,857177,8327,265185,097Land and improvements
48,42813,13161,559-1,035---1042,9451,08945,53312,26857,801Buildings
231,16521,413252,578-3,312---1,3124,4787,946223,36519,533242,898Total restricted assets

1,170,758225,8201,396,57818346,66455,07219,099-2,462-102,5811,191,657*189,423*1,381,080
Total Group property, plant and

equipment
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Note 27: Property, plant and equipment - continued

* The opening cost and accumulated depreciation figures as at 1 July 2008 for the Group 2009 figures are $8,921k lower than
those stated previously. This has no impact on the carrying amount of the relevant assets and therefore no impact on the financial
results.

Wynyard Precinct land

In the financial year ended 30 June 2008, the amount of $16.23 million was added to the cost of the Wynyard Precinct land (in
Group land and improvements) on consolidation. As described in the accounting treatment in note 20 - Rent, this represents the
notional rental paid in advance and will be depreciated over future periods until 2025.

39,730Current value of properties sold by ARH to ARC
23,500Cash compensation amount paid by ARC to ARH

16,230Effective rental paid in advance

1,730Depreciated as notional rental expense for 12 months to 30 June 2008

14,500Total asset of rental expense in advance as at 30 June 2008 (included in the value of the land on

consolidation)

1,736Depreciated as notional rental expense for 12 months to 30 June 2009

12,764Total asset of rental expense in advance as at 30 June 2009 (included in the value of the land on

consolidation)

**Land - finance lease

The finance leases over the downtown ferry terminal water space and land are for an indefinite lease term until such time as
ARTA does not comply with the required and permitted use clauses in the finance leases. The land subject to these leases is
therefore recognised at its fair value until such time as the leases are not to be renewed in perpetuity. The net carrying amount
of land held under finance leases is $15,050k (2008: $15,050k).

Valuation of land, building and wharves

All POAL port operations land, buildings and wharves were revalued to fair value as 30 June 2009. These assets were revalued
to fair value at 30 June 2008, however due to the global economic downturn it was prudent to obtain another valuation. The
valuation basis is fair value, being the amounts for which the assets could be exchanged between willing parties in an arms length
transaction, based on current prices in an active market for similar properties in the same location and condition. The value was
determined as at 8 May 2009 by independent registered valuers, Barratt-Boyes Jefferies Limited, associates of the New Zealand
Institute of Valuers. The revaluation changes net of applicable deferred income taxes were charged to the property, plant and
equipment reserve in equity (refer to note 37, reserves).

No other classes of property, plant and equipment were revalued during the financial year (2008:$nil).

Impairment

Impairment losses of $183k (2008: $131k) have been recognised during the financial year on land and buildings.

No impairment losses have been recognised for rolling stock, however, Government announcements regarding a possible transfer
of ownership may give rise to an external indicator of potential impairment. It is too early to accurately judge the impact this will
have on ARTA.

Restricted Assets

All ARC land is subject to the Local Government Act 2002 and the Local Government Amendment Act 2006, which set out
procedures for the sale or exchange of ARC land and, in some circumstances, how the proceeds of sale are to be applied.

Land which was taken or otherwise acquired under the Public Works Act 1981, and is no longer required for public works, is
subject to the rights of the former owners of that land under sections 40 and 42 of that Act.

Regional Parks and Reserves are also subject, in some cases, to the provisions of the Reserves Act 1977. All parkland is classified
as restricted.

Mt Smart Stadium is governed by The Mt Smart Regional Recreation Centre Act 1985.
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Note 28: Intangible assets

Movements for each class of intangible asset are as follows:

CarryingAccumulatedCostAmortisationWIPAdditionsCarryingAccumulatedCost

Council 2008
amountamortisationchargetransfersamountamortisation
30 June

2008
30 June

2008
30 June

2008
1 July
2007

1 July
2007

1 July
2007

$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000

1,8605,1807,0407292468581,4854,4515,936Computer software
1,359-1,359-(246)1,605---Work in progress - computer software

3,2195,1808,399729-2,4631,4854,4515,936Total Council intangible assets

CarryingAccumulatedCostAmortisationWIPAdditionsCarryingAccumulatedCost

Council 2009
amountamortisationchargetransfersamountamortisation
30 June

2009
30 June

2009
30 June

2009
1 July
2008

1 July
2008

1 July
2008

$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000

3,9276,10210,0299221,5291,4601,8605,1807,040Computer software
24-24-(1,529)1941,359-1,359Work in progress - computer software

3,9516,10210,053922-1,6543,2195,1808,399Total Council intangible assets

There are no restrictions over the title of ARC's intangible assets, nor are any intangible assets pledged as security for liabilities.

Impairment

No impairment losses have been recognised during the financial year (2008 $nil).

CarryingAccumulatedCostAmortisationDisposalsDevelopmenAdditionsCarryingAccumulatedCost

Group 2008
Amountamortisationchargecosts*amountamortisation
30 June

2008
30 June

2008
30 June

2008
1 July
2007

1 July
2007

1 July
2007

$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000

4,73412,66117,3951,476-2322,0143,96411,18515,149Computer software
1,359-1,359-321-1,469211-211Work in progress - computer software

22,25426822,522268--22,522---Operating lease - Land

28,34712,92941,2761,74432123226,0054,17511,18515,360Total Group intangible assets

CarryingAccumulatedCostAmortisationDisposalsDevelopmentWIPAdditionsCarryingAccumulatedCost

Group 2009
amountamortisationchargecosts*Transfersamountamortisation

30 June
2009

30 June
2009

30 June
2009

1 July
2008

1 July
2008

1 July
2008

$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000

10,70214,60325,3051,94225141,6765,7224,73412,66117,395Computer software
60-60---(1,676)3771,359-1,359Work in progress - computer software

21,89762522,522357----22,25426822,522Operating lease - Land

32,65915,22847,8872,2992514-6,09928,34712,92941,276Total Group Intangible Assets

* Capitalised development costs are an internally generated asset.

Operating lease - Land

The operating lease intangible has been recognised at its fair value on acquisition and is being amortised over the period of the underlying
lease (63 years).

This lease is for the land at each of the railway station sites along the Auckland passenger rail network.

Impairment

No impairment losses have been recognised during the financial year (2008 $nil).

There are no restrictions over the title of intangible assets, nor are any intangible assets pledged as security for liabilities.
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Note 29: Trade creditors and other payables

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

8,7318,47524,069Trade creditors7,26623,560
150198198Deposits and bonds186186

3,5003,36545,348Accrued expenses3,91147,689
-2,7482,748Rates received in advance3,245

3,5001,4791,625Income received in advance2886,625
--2,122Restructuring provision--
-1542,447Other payables2001,154

15,88116,41978,557Total trade creditors and other payables15,09679,214

Trade creditors and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms, therefore the carrying
value of trade creditors and other payables approximates their fair value.

Note 30: Related party payables

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

ARC provides funding to ARTA for operating
activities. ARC also provides funding to ARTA in
order for ARTA to fulfil its responsibilities under
the grants assumed from ex Infrastructure
Auckland as at 1 July 2004.

Current portion

23,26028,975-ARTA operating expenses38,557-
11,34919,819-Transport grants18,802-
34,60948,794-Total current payables57,359-

Non-current portion

-1,152-Transport grants9,880-
---Present value revaluation(732)-
-1,152-Total non-current payables9,148-

34,60949,946-
Total related party payables - ARC owing

to ARTA
66,507-

The carrying amounts of current grants payable approximates their fair value.

In the prior year the fair value of non-current grants payable in a time frame of greater than one year was determined using
cash flows discounted at a rate based on The Treasury 2008 discount default rate of 8.00%, (2009: 6.40%).

This year non-current grants payable are not fair valued but are stated at the amount payable as the difference between
fair value and amount payable is immaterial.
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Note 31: Other financial liabilities

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Current portion

--19,819Transport grants-18,802
4,13713,45513,455Stormwater grants26,93126,931
4,13713,45533,274Total current financial liabilities26,93145,733

Non-current portion

--1,152Transport grants-8,470
4,21916,27116,271Stormwater grants9,4889,488

---Present value revaluation(1,124)(1,124)
4,21916,27117,423Total non-current financial liabilities8,36416,834

8,35629,72650,697Total other financial liabilities35,29562,567

The carrying amounts of current grants payable approximates their fair value.

In the prior year the fair value of non-current grants payable in a time frame of greater than one year was determined using
cash flows discounted at a rate based on The Treasury 2008 discount default rate of 8.00%, (2009: 6.40%).

This year non-current grants payable are not fair valued but are stated at the amount payable as the difference between
fair value and amount payable is immaterial.
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Note 32: Borrowings

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Current

--Bank overdrafts-440
29,09810,700111,200Interest bearing liabilities--

---Finance leases128128
157106106Non-interest loan

29,25510,806111,306Total current borrowings128568

Non-current

-344344Non-interest loan--
---Term and revolving advances facility - set up

transaction costs
-(125)

--100,000$100 million rolling seven year non-amortising term
loan

-100,000

--150,000$150million rolling five year non-amortising term loan-150,000
---$250 million rolling three year revolving credit facility-105,500
-344250,344Total non-current borrowings-355,375

29,25511,150361,650Total borrowings128355,943

Council Policy

All borrowings, investments and incidental financial arrangements are entered into in accordance with the Local Government Act 2002,
(LGA), including but not limited to sections 101 and 122. Borrowings are approved by Council under the Treasury Management Policy. All
ARC's external borrowings and interest-rate risk management instruments are generally secured under the ARC's Debenture Trust Deed
by way of a charge over ARC's rates revenue, including deemed rates under section 115 of the LGA. There were no changes to the
Treasury Management Policy during the financial year.

ARTA Policy

ARTA outsources its treasury management under a shared services agreement with the ARC. ARTA is funded by ARC on an as needed
basis.

ARH Policy

Borrowings for ARH are managed in accordance with its Long-Term Funding Plan and its Statement of Investment Policies, Standards
and Procedures.

Finance leases

The Council had entered into finance leases for various items on equipment. These leases expired at the end of the previous financial
year.

Non-interest bearing liabilities

On 18 June 2008 Council approved a proposal to significantly reduce energy consumption by replacing the existing lighting system with
ultra efficient fittings coupled with intelligent sensors and energy saving controls. The capital cost of the project was funded by an interest
free loan from the Electricity Efficiency and Conservation Authority (EECA) of $529,951. The agreement was signed on the 31 July 2008.

Interest bearing liabilities

At balance date, ARC had borrowings of $10.7m (2008: $nil). $5.7m was for the benefit of the Bank of New Zealand, and related to two
treasury loans, $2.3m @ 3.21% and $3.4m @ 3.35%. $5.0m was for the benefit of the ANZ National Bank Limited and related to two loan
accounts, $2.3m @ 3.12% and $2.7m @ 3.22%.

At balance date, POAL had unsecured borrowings of $350.5m (2008: $355.5m) under a term and revolving advances facility put in place
on 19 December 2005. The facility consisted of a $250m rolling three year revolving advances facility (Facility A), a $150m rolling five year
non-amortising term loan (Facility B), and a $100m rolling seven year non-amortising term loan (Facility C). As at 30 June 2009, the undrawn
amount under facility A was $149.5m (2008: $144.5m). The $500m (2008: $500m) term and revolving advances facility is subject to a
negative pledge deed dated 17 July 1995 and amended by way of Deed of Variation and Restatement dated 19 December 2005 and
Variation Deed relating to the negative pledge deed poll dated 18 May 2007. This is for the benefit of Westpac Banking Corporation, Bank
of New Zealand and Commonwealth Bank of Australia.

The fair value of interest bearing liabilities is based upon market prices where a market exists or by discounting the expected future cash
flows by the current interest rates for liabilities with similar risk profiles. The carrying amounts of other current and non-current borrowings
approximate their fair values.
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Note 33: Employee benefit liabilities

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Current portion

5,0005,50413,044Employee benefit liabilities4,86212,104
5,0005,50413,044Total current employee entitlements4,86212,104

Non-current portion

1,0001,1092,965Employee benefit liabilities1,0752,738
1,0001,1092,965Total non-current employee entitlements1,0752,738

6,0006,61316,009Total employee benefit liabilities5,93714,842

The employee benefit liability is the Group's future obligation for accrued pay, annual leave, sick leave, long service leave,
bonus leave, days in lieu and gratuities.

The carrying amounts of current employee benefit liabilities payable within one year approximates their fair value.

The fair value of non-current employee benefits payable in a time frame of greater than one year have been determined
using cash flows discounted at a rate based on The Treasury 2009 discount default rate of 6.40% (2008: 8.00%).
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Note 34: Provisions

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Existing provisions are represented by:

Current portion

8161,1151,115Provision for landfill aftercare costs864864
---Other provisions-2,502

8161,1151,115Total current provisions8643,366

Non-current portion

4,00011,92311,923Provision for landfill aftercare costs4,1374,137
--15,500Provision for remediation-13,900

4,00011,92327,423Total non-current provisions4,13718,037

4,81613,03828,538Total provisions5,00121,403

Movements for each class of provision are as

follows:

Provision for landfill aftercare costs (summary)(a)
4,6525,0015,001Balance at 1 July4,9194,919
164222222Interest upwind8282

-(940)(923)Expenditure for the year--
-8,7558,738Change in estimate--

4,81613,03813,038Balance at 30 June5,0015,001

The provision for landfill aftercare relates to the
following four landfills:

(i) Greenmount Landfill

1,5991,599Balance at 1 July1,5241,524
5858Interest upwind7575

(449)(449)Expenditure for the year--
3,6793,679Change in estimate--
4,8874,887Balance at 30 June1,5991,599

(ii) Rosedale Landfill

1,5921,592Balance at 1 July1,6561,656
7171Interest upwind(64)(64)

(344)(344)Expenditure for the year--
3,1653,165Change in estimate--
4,4844,484Balance at 30 June1,5921,592

(iii) Pikes Point Landfill

886886Balance at 1 July896896
4848Interest upwind(10)(10)

(62)(62)Expenditure for the year--
1,1751,175Change in estimate--
2,0472,047Balance at 30 June886886

(iv) Devonport Landfill

924924Balance at 1 July843843
4545Interest upwind8181

(85)(68)Expenditure for the year--
736719Change in estimate--

1,6201,620Balance at 30 June924924
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Note 34: Provisions continued

ARC has responsibility under the resource consent of the landfill and in terms of an agreement, to provide ongoing
maintenance and monitoring of the landfill after the site is closed.

The cash outflows for landfill post-closure are expected to occur in one to ninety-six years time (or between 2010 and
2106). The long-term nature of the liability means there are inherent uncertainties in estimating costs that will be incurred.

The provision has been based on existing knowledge.

The following major assumptions have been made in calculating the provision:

The estimated remaining years of landfill aftercare are as follows:
Greenmount 97 years,
Rosedale 94 years,
Pikes Point 85 years, and
Devonport 85 years.

This estimate is based on information provided by ARC landfill consultants. This extends beyond the original resource
consent period. A discount rate of 6.40% (2008: 7.00%) and an inflation factor of 2.0% have been used in the NPV
calculations.

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

Other provisions(b)
--2,502Balance at 1 July-2,720
---Additional provision recognised--
--(2,406)Unused amounts reversed--
--(96)Amounts incurred and charged-(218)
---Balance at 30 June-2,502

"Other provisions" includes provision for POAL's
environmental liabilities related to contamination
which were utilised during the year.

Provision for remediation(c)
--13,900Balance at 1 July-13,000
--1,600Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in

the discount rate
-900

---Amounts incurred and charged--
--15,500Balance at 30 June-13,900

4,81613,03828,538Total provisions5,00121,403

The remediation provision is ARH's future
obligation to remediate its investment properties
over the long-term. The provision is expected to
be utilised from 2009 to 2016.
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Note 35: Deferred tax liability

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

The balance comprises temporary differences
attributable to:

--(60)Inventories-(738)
--(3,581)Provisions and prepayments-(4,255)
--43,141Depreciation / amortisation / revaluations -

property, plant and equipment
-41,850

--248Depreciation / amortisation / revaluations -
investment property

-6,404

--2,796Deferred income-2,815
--(8)Other temporary differences-(11)
---Impact of future tax rate changes from 33% to

30%
-(554)

--42,536Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance

-45,511

--7,089Revaluation of property, plant and equipment-11,328
---Available-for-sale financial assets-(482)
--(3,405)Cash flow hedges-1,290
--3,684Amount recognised directly in equity-12,136

--46,220Total deferred tax liability-57,647

Movement in deferred tax

--57,647Balance at 1 July-49,191
--(2,561)Charged / (credited) to the Statement of Financial

Performance(refer to note 14 - Taxation)
-500

---Impact of future tax rate changes from 33% to
30% charged/(credited) to the Statement of
Financial Performance(refer note 14 - Taxation)

-(548)

---Business acquisition-5,128
--(8,866)Charged / (credited) to equity(refer note 14 -

Taxation)
-3,376

--46,220Balance 30 June-57,647
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Note 36: Retained earnings

CouncilCouncilGroupCouncilGroup
20092009200920082008
PlanActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000

1,019,8441,001,3001,248,051Balance at 1 July*985,9571,298,731

(1,505)(58,100)Net transfers to restricted reserves(see note 37 -
Reserves)

(8,964)(130,917)

-5,2535,253Net transfers from restricted reserves(see note
37 - Reserves)

**510510

--(2,534)Net loss from fair value adjustment on grants-(2,757)
(7,330)(15,061)(134,863)Net surplus/(deficit) for the year23,79782,484

1,012,514989,9871,057,807Balance at 30 June1,001,3001,248,051

The reclassification of retained earnings to the
available-for-sale financial assets reserve has led

*

to a prior period adjustment of $133k against
opening retained earnings. There is no effect on
the balance sheet; it is a reclassification within
equity only.

TheMt Smart Stadium restricted reserve has been
reclassified to retained earnings in the current year.

**

For comparative purposes the previous years
figures have been reclassified. This is reflected as
a $4,401k decrease in "net transfers from restricted
reserves". There is no effect on the balance sheet;
it is a reclassification within equity only.
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Note 37: Reserves

CouncilGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

Restricted reserves(a)

(i) Business Unit Reserves

Farming Reserve

404404Balance at 1 July--
419419Net transfer from retained earnings404404
823823Balance at 30 June404404

In the Annual Report 2008 a separate "business unit
reserve" was shown for Mt Smart Stadium. This
balance of this has been included in retained
earnings(see note 36 - Retained earnings).

823823Total business unit reserves404404

(ii) Specific Activity Reserves

Transport Ring Fence Reserve

6,8326,832Balance at 1 July--
(4,883)(4,883)Net transfer from/(to) retained earnings6,8326,832
1,9491,949Balance at 30 June6,8326,832

Parkland Purchases Reserve

1,2121,212Balance at 1 July331331
466466Net transfer from retained earnings881881

1,6781,678Balance at 30 June1,2121,212

Biosecurity Reserve

11Balance at 1 July1111
(1)(1)Net transfer to retained earnings(10)(10)
--Balance at 30 June11

3,6273,627Total specific activity reserves8,0458,045

(iii) Trust and Bequest Reserves

Parks Reserve

2929Balance at 1 July2929
2929Balance at 30 June2929

2929Total trust and bequest reserves2929
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Note 37: Reserves - continued

CouncilGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

(iv) Special Fund Reserves - Non-interest bearing

EIF Reserve

9494Balance at 1 July2727
137137Net transfer from retained earnings6767
231231Balance at 30 June9494

Civil Defence Reserve

338338Balance at 1 July--
33Net transfer from retained earnings338338

341341Balance at 30 June338338

572572Total special fund reserves - non-interest bearing432432

(v) Special Fund Reserves - Interest bearing

Muriwai Reserve

--Balance at 1 July6464

--Interest33
--Transfer to retained earnings(67)(67)
--Net transfer to retained earnings(64)(64)

--Balance at 30 June--

Greenmount Reserve

2,5592,559Balance at 1 July2,3552,355

151151Interest204204
151151Net transfer from retained earnings204204

2,7102,710Balance at 30 June2,5592,559

Elections Reserve

145145Balance at 1 July393393

99Interest3434
210210Transfer from/(to) retained earnings(282)(282)
219219Net transfer from/(to) retained earnings(248)(248)

364364Balance at 30 June145145
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Note 37: Reserves - continued

CouncilGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

Landfill Reserves*

11,78911,789Balance at 1 July11,55111,551

699699Interest upwind1,0011,001
(857)(857)Transfer to retained earnings(763)(763)
(158)(158)Net transfer from/(to) retained earnings238238

11,63111,631Balance at 30 June11,78911,789

In terms of a consent granted under the Resource
Management Act 1991, the ARCmaintains separate
aftercare accounts for the Greenmount, Rosedale
and Pikes Point landfills. The Devonport landfill
aftercare account had been completely utilised by
the end of the financial year. The accounts were
created through levies and other monies received
on account of each landfill. Actual expenses are
deducted as incurred. Interest is calculated and
added at the end of each month.

The closing balance represents the cash reserve
left for anticipated future costs. Any excess of future
costs will be required to be funded from retained
earnings.

Refer to note 34, provisions, which accounts for the
present value of the future landfill aftercare cost.

As part of its obligation the ARC is required to
disclose the transactions relating to each landfill in
its annual accounts.

Included in landfill reserves:

(i) Greenmount Landfill

10,15810,158Balance at 1 July9,8589,858
602602Interest upwind711711
(450)(450)Expenditure for the year(411)(411)

10,31010,310Balance at 30 June10,15810,158

(ii) Rosedale Landfill

1,0651,065Balance at 1 July1,1211,121
6363Interest upwind162162

(345)(345)Expenditure for the year(218)(218)
783783Balance at 30 June1,0651,065

(iii) Pikes Point Landfill

566566Balance at 1 July572572
3434Interest upwind128128

(62)(62)Expenditure for the year(134)(134)
538538Balance at 30 June566566
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Note 37: Reserves - continued

CouncilGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

Watercare Riparian Projects

--Balance at 1 July--

1010Interest--
100100Transfer from retained earnings--
110110Net transfer from retained earnings--

110110Balance at 30 June--

Seabed Licence Fee (SBLF) Reserve

330330Balance at 1 July518518

1919Interest4444
(230)(230)Transfer to retained earnings(232)(232)
(211)(211)Net transfer to retained earnings(188)(188)

119119Balance at 30 June330330

14,93414,934Total special fund reserves - interest bearing14,82314,823

19,98519,985Total restricted reserves23,73323,733

Nature and purpose of restricted reserves

The Council has created the following reserves:

(i) Business unit reserves
The reserve reflects the cumulative surplus (or deficit) achieved by the business unit. Generally the release of these funds
can only be approved by Council.

(ii) Specific activity reserves
Reserves for different areas of benefit are used where there is a discrete set of rates or levies as distinct from a general
rate. Any cumulative surplus (or deficit) relating to these separate activities is applied to the specific reserve.

(iii) Trust and bequest reserves
Trust and bequest reserves are set up where Council has been donated funds that are restricted to particular purposes.
Deductions are made when funds are required for that specific purpose.

(iv) Special fund reserves - non-interest bearing
Special fund reserves are funded from general rates and are made available for specific events or purposes.

(v) Special fund reserves - interest bearing
Special fund reserves are funded from general rates and are made available for specific events or purposes. Interest is
calculated and added at the end of each month.
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Note 37: Reserves - continued

CouncilGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

Other reserves(b)

(i) Cash flow hedge reserve

-2,280Balance at 1 July-5,466

-(16,986)Revaluation losses-(524)
-2,215Transfers to the Statement of Financial Performance(refer

note 6 - Net finance costs)
-(4,708)

--Transfers to property, plant and equipment-778
-4,695Deferred tax(refer note 14 - Taxation)-1,268
-(10,076)Total movements-(3,186)

-(7,796)Balance at 30 June-2,280

This reserve relates to gains and losses on hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges that are recognised
directly in equity as described in the accounting policy
(refer note 1 - Accounting policy). Amounts are recognised
in the Statement of Financial Performance when the
associated hedged transaction affects the surplus or
deficit, or as part of the asset when the associated
hedged transaction affects the Statement of Financial
Position.

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation

reserve

169(1,034)Balance at 1 July*1522,883

-6,727Transfer to Statement of Financial Performance (refer
note 5, net investment income)

--

-(5,121)Revaluation losses17(5,606)
-(482)Deferred tax(refer note 14 - Taxation)-1,689
-1,124Total movements17(3,917)

16990Balance at 30 June169(1,034)

This reserve relates to the unrealised movement in the
fair value of investments and other financial assets,
classified by default as available-for-sale to comply with
NZ IFRS. Fair value movements are recorded in this
reserve as described in the accounting policies.(Refer
note 1 - Accounting policies).

In the Annual Report 2008 the Council opening balance
at 1 July was $19k. A prior year reclassification from

*

retained earnings of $133k has led to an increased value
of $152k. There is no effect on the balance sheet; it is a
reclassification within equity only.

The "transfer to the Statement of Financial Performance"
for the Group for the year ended 30 June 2009 relates to
POAL's shareholding in Northland Port Corporation (NZ)
Limited. There was a significant decline in the market
price of this listed equity security. This resulted in the
portion of the revaluation reserve relating to POAL having
a deficit which has been transferred to the Statement of
Financial Performance.
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Note 37: Reserves - continued

CouncilGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

(iii) Property, plant and equipment revaluation

reserve

-81,996Balance at 1 July--

-(55,072)Revaluation gains / (loss) (refer note 27, property,
plant and equipment)

-88,329

-4,653Deferred tax (refer note 14, taxation)-(6,333)
-(50,419)Total movements-81,996

-31,577Balance at 30 June-81,996

The property, plant and equipment revaluation
reserve is used to record increments and
decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets
as described in the accounting policies (refer note
1, accounting policies).

(iv) Capital Grants Reserve

-205,089Balance at 1 July-83,136
-56,595Net transfer from retained earnings-121,953
-261,684Balance at 30 June-205,089

The capital grants reserve represents capital
expenditure grants that have not yet been offset by
an associated depreciation charge.

169285,555Total other reserves169288,331
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Note 38: Reconciliation of net surplus/(deficit) after tax to net cash flow from operating

activities

CouncilGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

(15,061)(134,863)Surplus/(deficit) after tax23,79782,484

Add/(less) non-cash items:

7,58648,954Depreciation and amortisation expense7,23538,863
--Donated assets-(77,957)
-16,706Capitalised income on portfolio investments-(27,315)

(961)(961)(Gains) in fair value of livestock(483)(483)
-69,453(Gains)/losses in fair value of investment property-1,173
-(1,575)(Gains)/losses in fair value of grants(187)(187)
--(Gains)/losses in fair value of shares(17)(17)
--(Gains)/losses in fair value of employee

entitlements/provisions
336483

-5,546Notional rental expense-5,531
-(153)Notional rental income-(211)

30240Realised foreign exchange losses--
-6,727Transfer from available-for-sale financial assets revaluation

reserve
--

-184Impairment of property, plant and equipment-85
5757Impairment of receivables433488
--Bad debts(77)(159)
-13Portfolio transaction and management fees deducted at

source
-8

Items classified as investing or financing activities:

-250Capital items included in working capital movements522,327
-243Movements in associates and joint ventures-17
-125Movements in borrowings allocated to interest paid-219

(54)(54)(Gains) on disposal of livestock(101)(101)
434670(Gains)/losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment(19)(332)

-172(Gains)/losses on disposal of non-current assets--
-878Fair value movements in derivatives-(957)
--Transaction fee for purchase of diversified financial asset

investments
-701

Add/(less) movements in working capital items:

(986)(2,930)Trade debtors and other receivables(2,023)(2,485)
(147)(147)Prepayments(182)(305)

16,145824Related party receivables32,161-
14(4,371)Inventories(3)(3,014)

1,293(327)Trade creditors and other payables1,71623,842
(14,404)(14,404)Other financial liabilities(33,312)(33,312)
(9,582)5Related party payables17,051-

-3,264Current tax liability-4,792
659975Employee benefits--

8,0547,151Provisions--
-(2,561)Deferred tax-5,080

(6,923)91Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities46,37719,258

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice prevents the netting off of monies paid and received except in the case where there is an agency
relationship. Receipts and payments representing monies paid and received on behalf of the territorial authorities (TA), from New Zealand
Transport Agency for roading and bus shelter claims have been netted off in the cash flows from operating activities, as such these
amounts reflect the activities of the TA not ARTA. The amount netted off relating to TA activities for 2009 was $171.0m (2008: $178.6m).

Categories in the reconciliation of net surplus after tax to net cash flow from operating activities have been reclassified, as stated throughout
the notes to the financial accounts, to provide meaningful information.
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Note 39: Capital commitments and operating leases

CouncilGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

Capital commitments

Commitments at the end of the period not provided for
in the financial statements

-23,371Property, plant and equipment - ARTA-16,888
-3,081Property, plant and equipment - POAL-8,257
-26,452Total capital commitments-25,145

The ARTA capital commitmentmainly relates to contracts
for purchase of trainsets $6,695k (2008: $10,334k), ferry
terminal upgrades $963k ($2,048k), station upgrades
$13,740k ($3,257k) and real time information system
equipment $1,703k (2008: $1,248k).

The POAL capital includes commitments for the Axis
FergussonWharf Expansion project and the purchase of
new straddles and cranes.

CouncilGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

Operating lease commitments as lessee

The future commitment for minimum lease payments
payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

4,4296,346Not later than one year4,1626,254
16,95316,994Later than one year and not later than five years16,55716,878
2,7962,796Later than 5 years6,5416,541
24,17826,136Total non-cancellable operating leases27,26029,673

POAL leases land under a non-cancellable operating lease
agreement. The lease reflects normal commercial
arrangements with escalation clauses and renewal rights.
On renewal the terms of the lease are renegotiated.

ARTA has an operating lease commitment representing
payments to the Crown for track access, leasing of the
Silver Fern train set and use of Britomart station.

ARC has operating lease commitments for premises and
car parks and photocopiers. The leases reflects normal
commercial arrangements with escalation clauses and
renewal rights. On renewal the terms of the lease are
renegotiated.

Lease expenditure is charged to the Statement of
Financial Performance during the period and is disclosed
in note 13, other operating expenses.
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Note 39: Capital commitments and operating leases - continued

CouncilGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

Operating lease commitments as lessor

As sub landlord, the ARC subleases Level 5, 21 Pitt Street
to Beca Holdings Limited (Subtenant). The sublease
commenced on the 1 May 2006. It was renewed on the
1 May 2008 for three years. The final expiry date is 30
April 2011.

The future commitment for minimum lease payments
to be collected under non-cancellable operating leases
are as follows:

179-Not later than one year179179
149-Later than one year and not later than five years328328

--Later than 5 years--
328-Total non-cancellable operating leases507507

Counci lGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

Operating commitments - Rail Contracts

-2,400Not later than one year-2,347
--Later than one year and not later than five years-1,760
--Later than 5 years--
-2,400Total non-cancellable operating commitments-4,107

The non-cancellable contract is for management of the
rail service.
Rail contracts have been extended to March 2010 only,
with annual renewals available until 2014.

CouncilGroupCouncilGroup
2009200920082008
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

Operating commitments - (Including other transport

contracts)

-117,469Not later than one year-98,948
-28,677Later than one year and not later than five years-37,652
-2,275Later than 5 years--
-148,421Total non-cancellable operating commitments-136,600

Other non-cancellable contracts represent the cost today
of the provision of bus and ferry services in the Auckland
region for the duration of their contracts.
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Note 40: Contingencies

CouncilGroup

Contingent liabilities

2008200920082009
ActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000

4,0004,0004,0004,000Auckland Regional Transport Network Limited
1,1931,1931,1931,193Rodney District Council
5,1935,1935,1935,193Total contingent liabilities

Auckland Regional Transport Network Limited (ARTNL)

The ARC, along with Auckland Regional Transport Network Limited's (ARTNL's) shareholders, has agreed to be responsible for
any liabilities incurred by ARTNL, where those liabilities relate to ARTNL's rail and ferry assets and functions (other than the
Britomart Rail Station), the liabilities arise in the period prior to the transfer of those assets to ARTA, and the liabilities cannot be
met out of ARTNL's surplus funds. The contingent liability remains for a period of 6 years from the date of transfer of the assets,1
October 2007, and has a maximum liability for the ARC of $4m (2008: $4m).

Rodney District Council

On 20 October 2006 the ARC gave a guarantee to the Bank of New Zealand (BNZ) on behalf of the Rodney District Council. This
was in the nature of a performance bond for $1,192,600 (2008: $1,192,600). The bond is for an extensive programme of re-vegetation
which was a condition of subdivision of the land.

Mt Smart Stadium

As at 30 June 2009 there is a claim against ARC in relation to a seating installation contract at Mt Smart Stadium. The amount
has not been provided for as the claim is being defended by ARC and the amount payable by ARC (if any) is not quantifiable at
this time.

Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH) and America's Cup Village Limited (ACVL)

As recorded in the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2008, ARH and ACVL had been joined as the 8th and
9th defendants respectively, in an action brought by Mr Christopher Hook (the plaintiff) against various companies and individuals
associated with the development of Gulf Harbour, relating to events that occurred in 1997 and 1998. Also as disclosed in the
annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2008, two other related actions had been brought by Mr Richard Phillips
and Lochmara Ventures. In September 2008, with no admission of liability, the parties reached full resolution of all the issues and
the contingent liability no longer exists.

Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA)

As at 30 June 2008 there were claims against ARTA for damages relating to a contractual dispute. This dispute was resolved by
ARTA in the current year.

Apart from those stated, there are no other contingent liabilities at 30 June 2009 (2008: $nil).

Contingent assets

There are no contingent assets at 30 June 2009 (2008: $nil).
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Note 41: Related party transactions

Auckland Regional Council (ARC) is the ultimate parent of the Group. The ARC has two Council Controlled Organisations,
Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) and Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH).

By virtue of the Local Government (Auckland ) Amendment Act 2004, the ARC has certain control responsibilities defined
by NZ IAS 27 and therefore consolidates the ARH Group and ARTA into its financial statements. Intercompany balances
are eliminated on consolidation.

Related party information between ARH and its subsidiaries have not been included.

Related party transactions with CCOs are as follows:

Council
20082009
ActualActual
$000$000

ARH

Payable to ARC
27,95019,119- transport grants* (refer note 17 - Related party receivables)
35,13229,674- stormwater grants* (refer note 17)

Payable to ARC
-824- general distributions(refer note 4 - ARH income)

Paid to ARC
25,3949,563- transport grants (refer note 17)
6,7676,582- stormwater grants (refer note 17)

108,87393,566- general distributions (refer note 4)
7777- occupancy costs : lease of office premises and car parks
2826: building operating expenses

Paid by ARC
23,500-- Purchase of Wynyard Precinct land

* These relate to the ARH Board's commitment as at 1 July 2004 to provide ongoing funding to the ARC for grants made
by the former Infrastructure Auckland (IA). Under the Local Government (Auckland) Amendment Act 2004, the liabilities
for these grants were vested in the ARC and ARTA. Grants are primarily made to local authorities. Funds are only drawn
down as per the contract to fund ex IA grantees for stormwater and/or transport projects as originally stated.

Council
20082009
ActualActual
$000$000

ARTA

Payable by ARC
38,55728,975- operating expenses (refer note 30 - Related party payables)

Payable by ARC
27,95020,971- transport grants (refer note 30)

Paid by ARC
26,5457,711- transport grants (refer note 30)

Paid by ARC, general distributions:
83,47493,163- ARTA opex (refer note 10 - Grant expenditure)
56,11269,508- ARTA capex (refer note 10)

Paid to ARC, shared services:
2,2142,685- information technology, treasury management, financial processing

and facilities services
2,7792,706- Contact Centre
1,182825- other services: copy centre, catering, information services, vehicles,

information technology, taxi, etc.

ARC provides funding to ARTA for operating activities and for capital expenditure.

ARTA purchases shared services from the ARC under a shared services agreement. This agreement is subject to annual
review.
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Note 41: Related party transactions - continued

Transactions with key management personnel:

Key management personnel includes the Councillors, Chief Executive and senior management personnel.

During the year key management personnel, as part of a normal customer relationship, were involved in minor transactions
with the Council, (such as payments of rates, hiring of campsites and bachs etc).

During the year ARC purchased services from Auckland Regional Chamber of Commerce and Industry, in which Councillor
Michael Barnett is a Director. These services cost $53,282 (2008: $12,399) and were supplied on normal commercial terms.

Two elected Councillors of the ARC, Mrs J Bassett and Mr P Walbran, are also directors of ARH. (Refer note 42,
remuneration).

No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised for impairment of receivables for any loans or other receivables
to related parties (2008: $nil).
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Note 42: Remuneration

CouncilTotal remuneration paid by the Council to key management personnel
was as follows: 20082009

ActualActual
$$

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)(a)

340,034356,642Salary
8,9668,966Car allowance
3,4007,133Other long-term benefits

352,400372,741Total CEO remuneration

General management(b)

Classified as:
1,553,9551,861,222Salaries and other short-term employee benefits

15,54037,224Other long-term benefits
1,569,4951,898,446Total GM remuneration

CouncilGroup
2008200920082009
ActualActualActualActual

$$$$
Elected representatives - Councillors(c)

45,22759,24045,22759,240Barnett, Michael
38,83748,45298,162107,777Bassett, Judith
62,37894,94462,37894,944Burrill, William
27,21146,83027,21146,830Carter, Clive **
53,08952,79853,08952,798Cayford, Joel
68,13176,65268,13176,652Coney, Sandra
92,791120,08292,791120,082Glenn, Dianne
10,173-10,173-Hay, David *
20,710-20,710-Hoadley, Wyn *
10,783-10,783-Hughes, Robyn *
154,191156,398154,191156,398Lee, Michael (Chairman)
11,703-11,703-Little, Craig *
33,70566,48733,70566,487Morrisey, Brent **
25,74340,00925,74340,009Rankin, Christine **
79,78698,52979,78698,529Rose, Christine
41,81669,37141,81669,371Sinclair, Janis **
63,80386,36598,803155,923Walbran, William

840,0771,016,158934,4021,145,041Total Councillor remuneration

* Term ended October 2007; ** Term commenced October 2007

Councillor remuneration is made up of several components: monthly honarium, meeting attendance fees, consent hearings
and mileage. Expenses for reimbursement of costs have not been included.

Group remuneration for Councillor Basset includes fees of $59,325 (2008: $59,325) as Chair of the ARH Board.
Group remuneration for Councillor Walbran includes fees of $35,000 (2008: $35,000) as a Director of ARH and fees for
$34,558 (2008: $nil) as a Director of ARH subsidiary Sea+City Projects Limited.

2,761,9723,287,345Total remuneration for CEO, generalmanagement and Councillors
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Note 43: Investment in subsidiaries

% InterestPrincipal Activity

ARC investment in subsidiaries:

100Investment CompanyAuckland Regional Holdings

100Transport planning and deliveryAuckland Regional Transport Authority

ARH investment in subsidiary companies:

100Port OperatorPorts of Auckland Limited

100Corporate Trustee for the POAL
Superannuation Scheme and ESOP -
Non-trading

Ports of Auckland Nominees Limited

100Investment Company Non-TradingPorts of Auckland Investments Limited

100Non-tradingAxis Intermodal Limited

100Non-tradingAxis International Limited

100Non-tradingFreemans Bay Properties Limited

100Non-tradingWest Tugz Limited

100Property Manager and Property
Redevelopment Facilitator

Sea+City Projects Limited

(formerly Northern Disposal Systems Limited)

All subsidiary companies have balance dates of 30 June.

America's Cup Village Limited (ACVL)

ACVL was placed into voluntary liquidation on 18 December 2008, following the transfer of ACVL's residual property of
$36m to ARH on September 2008. As ARH ceased to have control over ACVL, the subsidiary was deconsolidated from
that date. The company was struck-off the Companies register on 22 May 2009.

The difference between the carrying value of ACVL and the funds received was $131k and this has been recognised in
"net investment income" as a loss on derecognition of an available-for-sale financial asset. The revaluation reserve relating
to ACVL was $24k and the balance has been recognised in "net investment income".

Value as at 30 JuneValue as at 30 June

Fair value of Subsidiary Company Investments:

20082009
$000$000

495,700506,200Ports of Auckland Investments Limited
360478Sea + City Projects Limited

22,185-Americas Cup Village Limited

An independent valuation of ARH's equity investment in POAL was completed by PricewaterhouseCoopers at 30 June
2009. The methodology used in determining fair value is discounted cash flow as determined by an independent valuation.
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Note 43: Investment in subsidiaries - continued

*EliminationsSCPL** ACVLPOALARHARTAARCGroup
Significant operating statements of

ARC and its subsidiaries

20092009200920092009200920092009
ActualActualActualActualActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000For the year ended 30 June 2009

(569,773)1,608630163,74510,386298,966242,831148,393Revenue
(2,250)-----2,250-Net investment Income

306,734--108-4,58730,857342,286Other Income
(265,289)1,608630163,85310,386303,553275,938490,679Total Income

6,598(3)(167)8,07473,365--87,867Net investment loss
(170,225)1,440(168)117,42614,747247,415290,649501,284Other expenses

(370)-37026,815--35027,165Net finance costs
(163,997)1,43735152,31588,122247,415290,999616,316Total Expenditure

(101,292)17159511,538(77,726)56,138(15,061)(125,637)Operating surplus/(deficit) before tax

---1,769---1,769Share of associate and joint venture surplus
(101,292)17159513,307(77,726)56,138(15,061)(123,868)Surplus/(deficit) before tax

-531787,9022,422440-10,995Income tax expense
(101,292)1184175,405(80,148)55,698(15,061)(134,863)Surplus/(deficit) after tax

(1,276,975)478-336,9501,026,803265,9501,010,1411,363,347Net assets

* This represents the elimination, on consolidation of the Group, of transactions that occurred between the entities.
** The income and expenditure for ACVL is principally for the period 1 July 2008 to 19 December 2008.

*EliminationsSCPLACVLPOALARHARTAARCGroup
Significant operating statements of

ARC and its subsidiaries

20082008200820082009200820082008
ActualActualActualActualActualActualActualActual
$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000For the year ended 30 June 2008

(549,852)1,7822,522169,36810,618258,884243,848137,170Revenue
62,653-2251,146(33,633)-3,88834,279Net investment income
293,571--4362574,30128,703397,036Other Income

(193,628)1,7822,747170,950(22,990)333,185276,439568,485Total Income

(148,143)1,356112116,54816,525211,582252,517450,497Other expenses
(497)-1,43328,549--12529,610Net finance costs

(148,640)1,3561,545145,09716,525211,582252,642480,107Total Expenditure

-

(44,988)4261,20225,853(39,515)121,60323,79788,378Operating surplus/(deficit) before tax

---3,376---3,376Share of associate and joint venture surplus
(44,988)4261,20229,229(39,515)121,60323,79791,754Surplus/(deficit) before tax

-137(103)8,1141,315(193)-9,270Income tax expense/(benefit)
(44,988)2891,30521,115(40,830)121,79623,79782,484Surplus/(deficit) after tax

(1,286,759)36022,185398,1061,190,769210,2521,025,2021,560,115Net assets

* This represents the elimination, on consolidation of the Group, of transactions that occurred between the entities.
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Note 44: Severance payments

For the year ended June 2009, ARC made no (2008: 2) severance payments to employees totalling
$nil (2008: $26,112).

Note 45: Events after the balance date

Events occurring after balance date that have a material effect on the financial statements:

Queens Wharf (refer note 22 - Non-current assets for sale)

On 7 August 2009, POAL entered into a sale and purchase agreement with the ARC and New Zealand Government for a
wharf and buildings located at Queens Wharf for a sale price of $40 million plus GST. The ARC's $20 million half share of
this purchase was funded by a distribution from ARH. Ownership of the wharf and buildings will transfer on 1 April 2010.
The proceeds were received by POAL on 18 August 2009. QueensWharf will be opened up for public access and developed
into a premier cruise ship terminal.

Wynyard Precinct

Sea+City Property Ltd, on behalf of ARH, has commenced the development at Wynyard Precinct.

POAL

ARH agreed to invest additional capital in POAL as follows:

On September 2009, POAL issued 50,000,000 new ordinary shares to ARH at an issue price of $1 per share with
$40m paid in cash on 3 September 2009 and the remaining 10,000,000 shares issued unpaid; and
ARH is to provide a loan of up to $20m repayable within three years. $10m is expected to be drawn down in October
2009 with the remaining $10m available to be drawn down.
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Note 46: Potential impact of Auckland Government reorganisation

The Local Government (TamakiMakaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009was enacted inMay 2009 and provides for the dissolution
of the Auckland Regional Council on 31 October 2010. As a consequence of the dissolution of the Council, the Group
structure in its current form will cease to exist. The functions, duties, and powers of the Council and Group will become
the functions, duties and powers of the single unitary authority (the Auckland Council) that will be responsible for governing
the entire Auckland region from 1 November 2010.

All property belonging to the Council and Group will be vested in the Auckland Council.

All money payable to or by the Council and Group will become payable to or by the Auckland Council.

All rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements, and engagements of the Council and Group will become the rights, liabilities,
contracts, entitlements, and engagements of the Auckland Council.

There is an Auckland Transition Agency (ATA) that will develop an organisational structure for the Auckland Council so that
it can operate efficiently and effectively on and from 1 November 2010 and it will develop a change management plan that
includes protocols and processes for managing the transition of:

i. assets from existing local government organisations to the new Auckland Council structure;
ii. staff from existing local government organisations to the new Auckland Council structure having regard to the existing

employment agreements applying to the staff.

Decisions are yet to bemade on the Auckland Council’s structure and operations including how the systems, plans, policies,
assets and liabilities of the ARC, including its Council Controlled Organisations will be vested and integrated. Nevertheless,
the ARC and Group expects that the services they currently deliver to continue to be delivered by the organisational
structure put in place by the Auckland Council, and therefore the assets and liabilities of the ARC and Group will be relevant
to the Auckland Council. For that reason, no adjustments have been made to the financial statements because of the
dissolution basis of preparation.

Note 47: Business combinations

There have been no business combinations during the year ending 30 June 2009.

On 1 October 2007, ARTA acquired, via an Order In Council (dated 24 September 2007), the assets and businesses of
ARTNL Harbour Berths Limited and ARTNL Metro Limited, wholly owned subsidiaries of the Auckland Regional Transport
Network Limited.

The assets and liabilities as of 1 October 2007 arising from the acquisition were as follows:

Fair value
$000

15,050Land subject to finance lease
40,385Property, plant and equipment
22,522Operating lease for rail station land
(5,128)Deferred tax liabilities
72,829Net assets acquired
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Note 48: Financial risk management

1. Financial instrument categories:

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below.

Total

Derivatives at
fair value

through profit
or loss

Derivatives
used for
hedging

Designated as
fair value through

profit or loss
Available-for-sale
financial assets

Loans and
Receivables

Financial Assets -

Council

$000$000$000$000$000$000

As at 30 June 2009

273----273Cash and cash equivalents

14,428----14,428
Trade debtors and other
receivables

48,793----48,793Related party receivables
217---217-Other financial assets

63,711---21763,494Total financial assets

As at 30 June 2008

10,283----10,283Cash and cash equivalents

13,499----13,499
Trade debtors and other
receivables

63,082----63,082Related party receivables
217---217-Other financial assets

87,081---21786,864Total financial assets

Total

Derivatives at
fair value

through profit
or loss

Derivatives
used for
hedging

Designated as
fair value through

profit or loss
Available-for-sale
financial assets

Loans and
Receivables

Financial Assets -

Group

$000$000$000$000$000$000

As at 30 June 2009

9,911----9,911Cash and cash equivalents

42,431----42,431
Trade debtors and other
receivables

9,8804,6795,201---Derivative financial instruments
403,075--385,43417,641-Other financial assets
465,2974,6795,201385,43417,64152,342Total financial assets

As at 30 June 2008

20,149----20,149Cash and cash equivalents

40,534----40,534
Trade debtors and other
receivables

4,301-4,301---Derivative financial instruments
542,524--518,51624,008-Other financial assets
607,508-4,301518,51624,00860,683Total financial assets
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Note 48: Financial risk management - continued

Tota l
Measured at

amortised cost

Derivatives
at fair value

through profit or
loss

Derivatives
used for hedging

Financial Liabilities -

Council

$000$000$000$000

As at 30 June 2009

16,41916,419--Trade creditors and other payables
49,94649,946--Related party payables
11,15011,150--Borrowings
29,72629,726--Other financial liabilities
107,241107,241--Total financial liabilities

As at 30 June 2008

15,09615,096--Trade creditors and other payables
66,50766,507--Related party payables

128128--Borrowings
35,29535,295--Other financial liabilities

117,026117,026--Total financial liabilities

Total
Measured at

amortised cost

Derivatives
at fair value

through profit or
loss

Derivatives
used for hedging

Financial Liabilities -

Group

$000$000$000$000

As at 30 June 2009

78,55778,557--Trade creditors and other payables
16,550--16,550Derivative financial instruments

361,650361,650--Borrowings
50,69750,697--Other financial liabilities
507,454490,904-16,550Total financial liabilities

As at 30 June 2008

79,21479,214--Trade creditors and other payables
4,583-4,583-Derivative financial instruments

355,943355,943--Borrowings
62,56762,567--Other financial liabilities
502,307497,7244,583-Total financial liabilities

2. Financial instrument risks:

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group.

Risk management for the Council is carried out by management, who evaluate andmanage financial risks under the ARC's Treasury
Management Policy, approved by Council. Risk management for ARTA is managed in accordance with its Treasury Management
Policy. Risk management for ARH is managed in accordance with its Long-Term Funding Plan and its Statement of Investment
Policies, Standards and Procedures. These policies do not allow any transactions that are speculative in nature to be entered into.
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Note 48: Financial risk management - continued

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial investment will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The primary objective of foreign exchange risk is to reduce uncertainty to foreign exchange rate movements through the fixing
of foreign exchange denominated costs. It is prudent practice to pre-hedge potential adverse foreign exchange rate movements
on foreign currency denominated expenditure from the time the expenditure budget is approved by the relevant party.

The Group's largest exposure to currency risk is in the Diversified Financial Assets portfolio (DFA), which is managed by a number
of Fund Managers. Currency risk for the DFA is managed by:
a. establishing a foreign currency hedging policy for each foreign asset class;
b. specifying the bounds within which each Fund Manager may take on currency exposures relative to their benchmark; and
c. engaging one or more currency execution agents to transact the foreign exchange transactions, including both spot and

forward transactions, at the most favourable rate.

The instruments Fund Managers may use, and the credit worthiness of the counterparties, are detailed in the investment
management agreements with respective Fund Managers. Any forward contracts entered into must be with entities that have
an appropriate credit rating as determined by an international credit rating agency for counterparty risk and appropriate contractual
arrangements (for example, an International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) agreement) must be in place between the
currency fund manager and the counterparty.

Across the Group foreign currency risk arising from contractual commitments and liabilities (that are above a specified amount)
is managed by entering into forward exchange contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk exposure. This means the Group is
able to hedge a portion of its foreign denominated financial investments back into NZD and fix the New Zealand dollar amount
payable prior to the delivery of the item from overseas.

The Group would typically enter into a foreign exchange contract for the purchase of major items such as plant and equipment
from overseas and the full amount of the purchase would be hedged.

Refer note 19 - Derivative financial instruments for ARH and POAL forward exchange contracts.

Special ARTA FX committee

A Special ARTA FX committee exists, which is a management committee comprising specific individuals of ARC and ARTA
management and the ARC's external Treasury advisor. The committee was set up tomeet on an ad-hoc basis and to report directly
to the ARTA CE. The purpose and responsibilities of this committee are to advise on the management of foreign exposure relating
to ARTA's capital program.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

Borrowings and investments issued at variable interest rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

Borrowings and investments listed at fixed rates of interest expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management is to reduce uncertainty in interest rate movements through the fixing of
funding costs.

A secondary objective is to minimise the net funding costs within acceptable risk parameters.

The Group's main interest risk arises from long-term borrowings. The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using
floating to fixed interest rate swaps. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating
rates to fixed rates that are generally lower than those available if the Group borrowed at fixed rates directly.
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Note 48: Financial risk management - continued

As at the reporting date the Group had the following variable rate borrowings and interest rate swap contracts outstanding.

30 June 200830 June 2009

BalanceWeighted
Average

Interest Rate

BalanceWeighted
Average

Interest Rate

$000%$000%

355,8159.20350,5003.30Bank overdrafts and bank loans

267,0007.10447,0006.30Interest rate swaps (notional principal amount)

Interest bearing loans are at floating interest rates and are repriced quarterly. Interest rate swaps are used to hedge the
interest on these loans and are also repriced quarterly.

An analysis by maturities is provided in note 19, derivative financial instruments, and a summary of terms and conditions
in note 32, borrowings.

As at the reporting date the Group had the following fixed rate borrowings outstanding.

30 June 200830 June 2009

BalanceWeighted
Average

Interest Rate

BalanceWeighted
Average

Interest Rate

$000%$000%

--10,7003.23Bank loans

A summary of terms and conditions is provided in note 32 - Borrowings.

The Group has the risk that the fair value of its New Zealand Short-Term Cash Portfolio and a portion of its Diversified
Financial Asset Portfolio will fluctuate because of changes in market conditions.

The following table sets out the exposure in interest rate risk, including the maturity dates of the current investments and
the effective weighted average interst rates by maturity period (refer note 18 - Other financial assets).

30 June 200830 June 2009

Maturity:

Fair valueWeighted
Average

Interest Rate

Fair valueWeighted
Average

Interest Rate

$000%$000%

28,0688.5153,7632.56Less than one month

136,9488.7663,3672.87Between one and six months

50,1618.702,9253.16Between six and twelve months

215,1778.71120,0552.74
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Note 48: Financial risk management - continued

(iii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices.

The Group is exposed to price risk on its investments which are classified as available-for-sale financial assets. The price
risk arises due to market movements in listed securities.

Additionally the Group's investments in Unlisted Unit Trusts as part of the DFA are exposed to price risk as the price of
the units can go up and down depending on the performance of the underlying investment of the Trust. This price risk is
managed by diversification of the Group's investment portfolio in accordance with the limits set out in ARH's Statement
of Investment Policies, Standards and Procedures.

The Group is exposed to price risk through its port activities and investment property. The Group is also exposed to price
risk because of the investment held in Northland Port Corporation (a listed company).

Sensitivity analysis

The following table summarises the sensitivity of the Group's and Council's financial assets and financial liabilities to interest
rate risk, foreign exchange risk and other price risk. It shows the effect on equity and profit before tax at balance date from
a movement in the relevant variables, with all other variables held constant.

A sensitivity of 100 basis points movement (1%) in interest rates, and 10%movement in foreign exchange rates and equity
price have been applied respectively. These are considered reasonable given the current level of interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices and the volatility observed both on a historical basis and market expectations for future
movement.

Other Price RiskForeign Exchange RiskInterest Rate Risk

+10%-10%+10%-10%+1%-1%

EquityProfitEquityProfitEquityProfitEquityProfitEquityProfitEquityProfit
Carrying
Amount

$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000

Group

At 30 June 2009

Financial Assets
---------27-(27)9,911Cash and cash equivalents

------------42,431
Trade debtors and other
receivables

--------3,651(2)(4,045)29,880
Derivative financial
instruments
Other financial assets

-24,228-(24,228)-10,647-(10,647)-1,999-(1,999)385,434Portfolio Investments

-1,764-(1,764)--------17,641
Available-for-sale financial
assets

Financial Liabilities

-----4(3)----78,557
Trade creditors and other
payables

-------(892)892361,650Borrowings

-------7,059(1)(7,336)116,550
Derivative financial
instruments

-----------50,697Other financial liabilities

-25,992-(25,992)-10,651-(10,650)10,7101,131(11,381)(1,131)Total sensitivity

Group

At 30 June 2008

Financial Assets
---------100-(100)20,149Cash and cash equivalents

------------40,534
Trade debtors and other
receivables

--------4,788(32)(4,494)3374,301
Derivative financial
instruments
Other financial assets

-26,702-(26,702)-20,469-(20,469)-3,527-(3,527)518,516Portfolio Investments

2,381-(2,381)---------24,008
Available-for-sale financial
assets

Financial Liabilities

-----10-(9)----79,214
Trade creditors and other
payables

---------(885)-885355,943Borrowings

-----13,960-(13,960)----4,583
Derivative financial
instruments

1-(1)---------62,567Other financial liabilities

2,38226,702(2,382)(26,702)-34,439-(34,438)4,7882,710(4,494)(2,405)Total sensitivity
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Note 48: Financial risk management - continued

Other Price RiskForeign Exchange RiskInterest Rate Risk

+10%-10%+10%-10%+1%-1%

EquityProfitEquityProfitEquityProfitEquityProfitEquityProfitEquityProfit
Carrying
Amount

$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000$000

Council

At 30 June 2009

Financial Assets
---------3-(3)273Cash and cash equivalents

------------14,428
Trade debtors and other
receivables

------------48,793Related party receivables
22-(22)---------217Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities

------------16,419
Trade creditors and other
payables

------------49,946Related party payables
(107)10711,150Borrowings

------------29,726Other financial liabilities

22-(22)------(104)-104Total sensitivity

Council

At 30 June 2008

Financial Assets
---------100-(100)10,283Cash and cash equivalents

------------13,499
Trade debtors and other
receivables

------------63,082Related party receivables
2-(2)---------217Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities

------------15,096
Trade creditors and other
payables

------------66,507Related party payables
1-(1)---------128Borrowings
------------35,295Other financial liabilities

3-(3)------100-(100)Total sensitivity

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation to the Group, causing the Group to incur a loss.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers from outstanding receivables.

Council

The Council's Treasury Management Policy limits the amount of Council's credit exposure to any one financial institution
or organisation. No simple counterparty shall exceed more than 20% of ARC's total ratepayers equity apart from the New
Zealand Government, which can be 100%. Counterparties and limits can only be approved on the basis of credit ratings
(Standard & Poor's or Moody's) being A equivalent and above for investments greater than 12 months and A2 or better
for investments less than 12 months. Non-rated Local Government borrowers are exempted from the rating requirements.
The Council has no collateral or other credit enhancements for financial instruments that give rise to credit risk. The Council
can only invest funds in accordance with its Treasury Management Policy. Trade and other receivables mainly arise from
the Council's statutory functions, thereby the credit quality of trade debtors and other receivables are not monitored or
reported with reference to internal or external credit ratings. Trade receivables are monitored on a regular basis and
impairment allowances made if risks are identified, so that the Council is not exposed to any additional default risks on
trade receivables. The Council has no significant concentrations of credit risk in relation to trade debtors and other receivables,
as it has a large number of credit customers, mainly ratepayers, and the Council has powers under the Local Government
(Rating) Act 2002 to recover outstanding debts from ratepayers.
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Note 48: Financial risk management - continued

ARTA

ARTA outsources its treasury management under a Support Services Agreement. Therefore the Council manages ARTA
credit risk in association with cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and
financial institutions.

ARH Group

Transactions are spread across a number of counterparties to avoid concentrations of credit exposure. The ARH Group
manages customer relationships on a credit basis with recognised, creditworthy third parties. Customers who wish to
complete transactions with the ARH Group on a credit basis are subject to a credit assessment, which may include a
review of their financial strengths, previous credit history with the ARH Group, payments habits with other suppliers, bank
references and credit rating agency reports. Trade receivables are also monitored on a regular basis and impairment
allowances made if risks are identified, so that the ARH Group is not exposed to any additional default risks on trade
receivables. Derivative counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high credit quality institutions. The ARH Group
has policies in place to limited the amount of cash exposure to any one financial institution.

Within the Group's Diversified Financial Assets Portfolio, credit risk is managed by requiring managers of global fixed
interest investments to:
a. ensure the average credit quality within the manager’s portfolio is within agreed guidelines;
b. that exposure to different tiers of credit (including unrated debt) are within agreed guidelines;
c. the maximum permitted exposure to any one issuer is within agreed guidelines; and
d. the long-term debt of all entities in which the manager invests is either rated by an approved recognised rating agency

or, if it is not-rated, is constrained to the maximum permitted exposure to such debt.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitments as they fall due.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the spreading of debt maturities.

The Group achieves flexibility in funding by ARC keeping committed credit lines available and by ARC maintaining a target
level of investments that must mature within the next 3 months. The ARC also has a liquidity policy which targets a
minimum level of committed funding facilities to net debt. Liquidity risk is also managed by ARH forecasting its cash
requirements and utilising flexibility in its funding facilities. The Group aims to minimise the cost of capital through effective
cash management. Liquidity risk for ARTA is managed by the ARC.

Within the Group's Diversified Financial Assets Portfolio, liquidity risk is managed by:
a. requiring managers to invest primarily in securities traded on recognised exchanges with specified maximums for

unlisted securities;
b. requiring managers, within the terms of their individual contracts, to hold diversified portfolios; and
c. limiting the credit rating of all fixed interest investments to minimum levels.

The Council has a committed cash facility with the BNZ for a maximum of $20million (2008: $20m), the ANZ for a maximum
of $5 million and Westpac for a maximum of $15 million.
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Note 48: Financial risk management - continued

Contractual maturity analysis of financial liabilities:

The table below analyses the Group's and Council's financial liabilities, net and gross settled derivative financial instruments,
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2 years to less
than 5 years

1 year to less
than 2 years

6 months to less
than 12 months

Less than
6 months

Contractual
cash flows

Carrying
amount

$000$000$000$000$000$000

Group

At 30 June 2009

---78,22278,22278,557Trade creditors and other
payables

105,112155,9124,182116,947382,153361,650Borrowings
9,7697,6549,16224,11250,69750,697Other financial liabilities
2,4394,9234,7595,15717,27816,550Derivative financial

instruments
117,320168,48918,103224,438528,350507,454Total

Group

At 30 June 2008

---79,21479,21479,214Trade creditors and other
payables

384,92027,50216,18316,960445,565355,943Borrowings
3,60213,39421,85423,71762,56762,567Other financial liabilities

---4,5834,5834,583Derivative financial
instruments

388,52240,89638,037124,474591,929502,307Total

For floating rate instruments the amounts disclosed are determined by reference to the interest rate at the last reporting date.

2 years to less
than 5 years

1 year to less
than 2 years

6 months to less
than 12 months

Less than
6 months

Contractual
cash flows

Carrying
amount

$000$000$000$000$000$000

Council

At 30 June 2009

---16,08416,08416,419Trade creditors and other
payables

-1,1525,22443,57049,94649,946Related party payables
1322125310,75311,15011,150Borrowings

9,7696,5023,9399,51629,72629,726Other financial liabilities
9,9017,8669,21679,923106,906107,241Total

Council

At 30 June 2008

---15,09615,09615,096Trade creditors and other
payables

-9,1478,84148,51966,50766,507Related party payables
---128128128Borrowings

4,2804,24713,01313,75535,29535,295Other financial liabilities
4,28013,39421,85477,498117,026117,026Total

"Other financial liabilities" relates to grant liabilities that are required to be paid out when the organisation that the grant has been
awarded to draws on the grant funds. The nature of this means that the contractual maturity date is not able to be accurately
measured. The disclosure in the table above has been based on a forecast of the dates the payments will be required as estimated
by the ARC.
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Note 49: Capital management

The Council’s capital is its equity (or ratepayers’ funds), which comprise retained earnings and reserves. Equity is represented
by net assets.

The Local Government Act 2002 (the Act) requires the Council to manage its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities,
investments, and general financial dealings prudently and in a manner that promotes the current and future interests of
the community. Ratepayer’s funds are largely managed as a by-product of managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities,
investments, and general financial dealings.

The objective of managing these items is to achieve intergenerational equity, which is a principle promoted in the Act and
applied by the Council. Intergenerational equity requires today’s ratepayers to meet the costs of utilising the Council’s
assets and not expecting them to meet the full cost of long-term assets that will benefit ratepayers in future generations.
Additionally, the Council has in place asset management plans for major classes of assets detailing renewal andmaintenance
programmes, to ensure ratepayers in future generations are not required to meet the costs of deferred renewals and
maintenance.

The Act requires the Council to make adequate and effective provision in its Long-Term Council Community Plan (LTCCP)
and in its Annual Plan (where applicable) to meet the expenditure needs identified in those plans, and the Act sets out the
factors that the Council is required to consider when determining the most appropriate sources of funding for each of its
activities. The sources and levels of funding are set out in the funding and financial policies in the Council’s LTCCP.

ARC has the following Council created reserves, (refer note 37, reserves):

specific activity reserves
business unit reserves
special fund reserves
trust and bequest reserves
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Note 50: Major variances against plan

Explanations for major variances from the Council's 2008/09 Annual Plan are as follows:

VariancePlanActual

Statement of Financial Performance

2008/092008/09
%$000$000$000

1.5%2,128146,313148,441Rates revenue
-13.9%(15,272)109,66294,390Auckland Regional Holdings income
-5.7%(136)2,3862,250Net investment Income
-8.3%(2,788)33,64530,857Other Income
-5.5%(16,068)292,006275,938Total Income

8.3%9,654116,793126,447Other expenses
-9.6%(17,526)181,728164,202Grant expenditure
-57.1%(465)815350Finance costs
-2.8%(8,337)299,336290,999Total Expenditure

105.5%(7,731)(7,330)(15,061)Deficit

Auckland Regional Holdings income

Reduced funding required from ARH for ARTA operating and capital expenditure.

Grant expenditure

Reduced funding required for ARTA operating and capital expenditure due to delay in project commencement.

Other expenses

Additional provision for landfill aftercare of $8.0m due to change in estimate.

VariancePlanActual

Statement of Financial Position

2008/092008/09
%$000$000$000

54.1%16,40330,33446,737Current assets
0.9%9,1991,081,0971,090,296Non-current assets
2.3%25,6021,111,4311,137,033Total assets

7.1%6,39589,69896,093Current liabilities
234.1%21,5809,21930,799Non-current liabilities
28.3%27,97598,917126,892Total liabilities

-0.2%(2,373)1,012,5141,010,141Equity
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Note 50: Major variances against plan - continued

Current assets

Related party receivables were significantly higher, $14.3m, reflecting slower than expected payments for ex Infrastructure
Auckland grants for stormwater and transport funding.

Non-current assets

Related party receivables were significantly higher, $13.2m, reflecting slower than expected payments for ex Infrastructure
Auckland grants for stormwater and transport funding. This was offset by a $4.0m decrease in capital expenditure.

Current liabilities

Related party payables were significantly higher, $14.2m, reflecting slower than expected payments for ex Infrastructure
Auckland grants for transport funding, $8.5m, and higher than planned operating costs for ARTA, $5.7m. Other financial
liabilities were significantly higher, $9.3m, reflecting slower than expected payments for ex Infrastructure Auckland grants
for stormwater funding. Borrowings were lower than expected, $18.4m, due to cash flow management.

Non-current liabilities

Other financial liabilities were significantly higher, $12.1m, reflecting slower than expected payments for ex Infrastructure
Auckland grants for stormwater funding. Provisions were $7.9m higher than expected due to a change in estimate of the
landfill aftercare provision of $8.0m.

Net assets

Related party receivables and related party payables balances contra in the balance sheet. Any difference is due to timing
issues i.e. accruals.

Equity

The negative variance reflects unplanned factors in both the 2007/08 and 2008/09 years mainly due to the variances as
mentioned earlier in this note.

Chapter 4: . Financial performance

206

A
uc
kl
an
d
R
eg
io
na
lC

ou
nc
il
|A

nn
ua
lR

ep
or
t
09



4.8 Cost of services statements

COST OF SERVICES STATEMENT - TRANSPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

2009
Plan
$000

2009
Actual
$000

2008
Plan
$000

2008
Actual
$000

Cost of services

2,2132,507Land transport strategy3,8763,572

184,610167,780ARTA operating and capital expenditure154,675145,178

186,823170,287Total cost of services158,551148,750

Revenue

842948Land transport strategy1,6722,293

109,36694,789ARTA operating and capital expenditure80,80973,306

110,20895,737Total revenue82,48175,599

76,61574,550Net cost of services76,07073,151

COST OF SERVICES STATEMENT - BUILT ENVIRONMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

2009
Plan
$000

2009
Actual
$000

2008
Plan
$000

2008
Actual
$000

Cost of services

7,1575,002Regional growth strategy7,0746,333

7,1575,002Total cost of services7,0746,333

Revenue

1,0231,092Regional growth strategy8,9499,489

1,0231,092Total revenue8,9499,489

6,1343,910Net cost/(revenue) of services(1,875)(3,156)
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COST OF SERVICES STATEMENT - NATURAL ENVIRONMENT AND HERITAGE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

2009
Plan
$000

2009
Actual
$000

2008
Plan
$000

2008
Actual
$000

Cost of services

12,01812,937Stormwater management14,39915,829

5,0706,235Freshwater management4,9585,868

5,0805,008Coastal management4,7844,981

11,09923,353Land management9,9158,906

6,4975,050Improving air quality5,3514,510

2,1562,249Natural environment conservation2,1212,310

6,0966,267Biosecurity6,0075,750

1,8741,916Cultural heritage conservation1,9831,673

2,5461,882Planning for the future1,2531,096

52,40664,897Total cost of services50,86250,923

Revenue

9,1877,214Stormwater management11,1968,356

2,2102,217Freshwater management2,0972,250

2,0962,116Coastal management1,8251,832

6,6637,312Land management5,2965,042

1,6121,701Improving air quality1,3201,324

299256Natural environment conservation233304

701647Biosecurity671730

247233Cultural heritage conservation254276

210156Planning for the future130187

23,22521,853Total revenue23,02220,301

29,18143,044Net cost of services27,84030,622
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COST OF SERVICES STATEMENT - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

2009
Plan
$000

2009
Actual
$000

2008
Plan
$000

2008
Actual
$000

Cost of services

5,5194,786Economic development4,4843,695

5,5194,786Total cost of services4,4843,695

Revenue

1,514937Economic development8791,027

1,514937Total revenue8791,027

4,0053,849Net cost of services3,6052,668

COST OF SERVICES STATEMENT - REGIONAL LEADERSHIP AND COMMUNITY

DEVELOPMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

2009
Plan
$000

2009
Actual
$000

2008
Plan
$000

2008
Actual
$000

Cost of services

7,3275,685Regional coordination and external relations6,1185,382

1,5302,652Democracy services2,3092,785

923910Te Hononga Maori / Maori relations1,033936

5,4923,632Sustainable schools and communities4,8724,668

15,27212,879Total cost of services14,33213,771

Revenue

952562Regional coordination and external relations738789

197172Democracy services214206

10591Te Hononga Maori / Maori relations114110

1,381969Sustainable schools and communities1,3391,237

2,6351,795Total revenue2,4052,341

12,63711,084Net cost of services11,92711,430
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COST OF SERVICES STATEMENT - REGIONAL PARKS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

2009
Plan
$000

2009
Actual
$000

2008
Plan
$000

2008
Actual
$000

Cost of services

10,35412,767Looking after our parks*7,8968,032

3,8684,125Auckland Botanic Gardens3,6373,862

5,1214,352New regional parks6,2975,368

1,0321,157Farming on regional parks1,8832,112

7,1599,317Mt Smart Stadium4,4254,862

7,6233,610Visitor Services*7,1716,331

35,15735,328Total cost of services31,30930,567

Revenue

2,5002,960Looking after our parks*2,0432,128

322222Auckland Botanic Gardens403321

2012New regional parks1,87525,020

9951,534Farming on regional parks1,8511,922

6,7014,819Mt Smart Stadium4,1523,231

1,484394Visitor Services*134666

12,0229,941Total revenue10,45833,288

23,13525,387Net cost of services20,851(2,721)

*Projects that were managed by 'Visitor services' were transferred to 'Looking after parks' in 2009.
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COST OF SERVICES STATEMENT - SAFETY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

2009
Plan
$000

2009
Actual
$000

2008
Plan
$000

2008
Actual
$000

Cost of services

1,5611,562Hazards management1,3021,242

989656Civil defence emergency management1,220721

1,3781,985Harbourmaster1,2181,487

3,9284,203Total cost of services3,7403,450

Revenue

10433Hazards management7252

1,1151,767Civil defence emergency management1,2631,287

773725Harbourmaster671617

1,9922,525Total revenue2,0061,956

1,9361,678Net cost of services1,7341,494
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4.9 Capital expenditure

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

*Variance
$000

2009
Plan
$000

2009
Actual
$000Variance

2008
Plan
$000

2008
Actual
$000

Built environment

---Land(500)8,0008,500

---Total(500)8,0008,500

Natural environment and heritage

---Land improvements438138

69504435Plant and equipment(218)470688

69504435Total(175)551726

Regional parks (excluding Mt Smart)

2,6628,5005,838Land(13,500)11,50025,000

62,5982,592Land and land improvements(1,504)1,1612,665

(52)263315Bridges, structures and dams216767551

(72)9231,004Buildings(108)1,0191,127

(84)252336Plant and equipment(39)-39

(21)678699Roads366996630

2,43913,22310,784Total(14,569)15,44330,012

Mt Smart

16123069Land improvements120120-

157440283Buildings(66)-66

4164160Plant and equipment(31)-31

---Roads(7)-7

(6)-6Furniture and equipment20255

(56)95151Software and hardware(21)-21

260929669Total15145130

Safety

---Land improvements15251

11110Bridges, structures and dams---

(24)-24Buildings(228)500728

---Plant and equipment(31)3364

(30)-30Vehicles---

18223205Vessels---

(35)234269Total(258)585843

Continued on next page...
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Capital expenditure - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

*Variance
$000

2009
Plan
$000

2009
Actual
$000Variance

2008
Plan
$000

2008
Actual
$000

Support services

2711,060789Furniture and equipment(400)135535

124528404Vehicles14520506

(270)2,2942,564Software and hardware573,4603,403

1253,8823,757Total(329)4,1154,444

2,85818,77215,914Total capital expenditure(15,816)28,83944,655

* The $2.9 million underspend in capital expenditure was primarily due to delays in parkland acquisitions which
will now occur in 2009/10.
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Chapter 5: Supplementary
information

This chapter provides additional information on the ARC’s publications, a glossary of terms and index to this
report, along with the contact details for the ARC Group.

Page
Chapter contents:

215List of ARC publicationsSupplementary
information

216Glossary of terms

217Index

218ARC contact details
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5.1 ARC Publications

The Auckland Regional Council produces a number of publications that provide extensive information on what
we do, our plans for the future, the various projects we are involved in, as well as technical publications,
newsletters, and fact sheets.

Our publications include:

Annual plans, reports and governance documents
Regional strategies and growth documents
Regional policy and plans
Management plans
Brochures and newsletters
Transport publications
Technical publications.

Some of the publications produced during the 2008/09 year included:

ARC Annual Report 2007/08
An amendment to the transport sections of the LTCCP 2006-16 and Annual Plan 2008/09
ARC Long-Term-Council Community Plan 2009-19
Business and Economy Report
Regional Parking Strategy
Climate Change Issues and Options paper
Energy Issues and Option Paper
Auckland Regional Policy Statement Review - background document (Part A)
The preparation of a new Auckland Regional Land Transport Strategy (Part B)

The Report on progress towards Auckland Regional Community Outcomes was also developed during
2008/09 and published in July 2009.

ARC’s publications can be viewed and downloaded from our website www.arc.govt.nz/plans. For more
information call the Auckland Regional Council on (09) 366 2000 or 0800 80 60 40 if outside the Auckland
free-calling area or send an email to info@arc.govt.nz
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5.2 Glossary of Terms

These are the groups of projects which contribute to achieving a group of activities
associated with ARC's role or contribution towards a community outcome.

Activity:

The Auckland Regional Council, refers to the organisation.ARC or 'the council'

Auckland Regional Economic Development Strategy.AREDS :

Auckland Regional Holdings.ARH :

Auckland Regional Transport Authority.ARTA :

Auckland Sustainability Framework.ASF :

Council–Controlled Organisation.CCO :

Refers to the ARC's elected body of 13 politicians.Council or 'the Council'

These are the statements of what you have told us we should aim for as a region,
such as ”Neighbourhoods with a sense of community”.

Community Outcomes :

International Financial Reporting Standards or New Zealand equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS or NZ IFRS

Indicators that measure the effectiveness of the activities.Key Performance Indicators (KPIs):

Statements of the intended level of service to be provided including performance
targets and other measures by which actual levels of service provision may be
meaningfully addressed .

Levels of Service:

Your Region, Your Future, the ARC’s strategy for the region, developed in
consultation with the community, covering the 2006-16 period.

Long-TermCouncil Community Plan

(LTCCP) :

References are to the strategy, covering the 2006-16 period. It reflects the funding
and cost of services for this 10 year period as projected against the community
outcomes and activities.

Long-Term Financial Strategy :

New Zealand Transport AgencyNZTA

Detailed work area that contributes to an activity.Project:

Regional Land Transport Strategy (refer section 2.1 Transport)RLTS

Formerly Regional Growth Forum, this is a partnership between the ARC and the
region’s councils, formed tomanage the effects of growth on the Auckland region.

Regional Sustainable Development

Forum (RSDF)

This sets a vision on how growth can be managed sustainably over the next 50
years.

Regional Growth Strategy (RGS):

This was established to manage the development of the Wynyard Wharf
waterfront area.

Sea+City Projects Ltd (SCPL) :

Indicators of the achievement of community outcomes.Strategic Performance Indicators

(SPIs):

Information reported as 2006 or 2007 or 2008 and so on refers to the 12 months
ended June 30 in the year stated.

Year:
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5.3 Index

Page:Topics listed alphabetically:

98ARC Group (structure diagram)

108Auckland Regional Holdings

8Auckland region

106Auckland Regional Transport Authority

116Audit report

24Built environment group of activities

212Capital expenditure

5Chairman and Chief Executive’s Report

104Corporate Governance

207Cost of services statements

90Councillors (Elected representatives)

97Councillor remuneration table

92Committee structure

94Committees achievements 2008/09

106Council-Controlled Organisations

56Economic development group of activities

12Financial overview

114Financial performance

15Groups of activities

99Management team (ARC)

29Natural environment and heritage group of activities

124Notes to the financial statements (Index)

110Organisational performance (ARC)

101Organisational structure (ARC)

11Performance highlights 2008/09

215Publications

62Regional Leadership and Community Development group of activities

74Regional parks group of activities

83Safety group of activities

122Statement of cash flows

119Statement of changes in equity

115Statement of compliance and responsibility

118Statement of financial performance

120Statement of financial position

102Support services (ARC)

17Transport group of activities

Chapter 5: . Supplementary information

217

A
uckland

R
egionalC

ouncil|A
nnualR

eport
09



5.4 Contact Details
General Office

21 Pitt Street,
Auckland 1142, New Zealand

Address:

Private Bag 92-012,
Auckland, New Zealand

Mail to:

09 366 2000Telephone:
0800 80 60 40
(For callers outside the Auckland
toll-free area)

Toll Free:

09 366 2155Fax:
info@arc.govt.nzEmail:
www.arc.govt.nzWebsite:

After Hours/Emergency

09 366 2000 or
09 377 3107

24 hour Pollution
hotline:

09 362 0397Moorings and harbour
safety patrol:

09 366 2000 extension 2Regional parks:

AucklandPlus

Main floor, 21 Pitt Street,
Auckland 1142, New Zealand

Address:

Private Bag 92-012,
Auckland, New Zealand

Mail to:

09 366 2074Telephone:
09 366 2076Fax:
information@aucklandplus.comEmail:
www.aucklandplus.comWebsite:

Auckland Botanic Gardens

102 Hill Road, Manurewa
Auckland, New Zealand

Address:

PO Box Auckland, New ZealandMail to:
09 267 1457 ext. 3Telephone:
09 266 3698Fax:
botanicgardens@arc.govt.nzEmail:
wwwaucklandbotanicgardens.co.nzWebsite:

Mt Smart Stadium

2 Beasley Avenue, Penrose
Auckland, New Zealand

Address:

PO Box 112 145, Penrose
Auckland, New Zealand

Mail to:

09 571 1603Telephone:
09 571 1699Events Line:
09 571 1681Fax:
stadium@arc.govt.nzEmail:
www.mtsmartstadium.co.nzWebsite:

Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH)

Level 3, 21 Pitt Street,
Auckland 1142, New Zealand

Address:

PO Box 105 048
Auckland, New Zealand

Mail to:

09 303 9460Telephone:
09 303 9461Fax:
inquiries@arh.co.nzEmail:
www.arh.co.nzWebsite:

Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA)

Level 3, 21 Pitt Street,
Auckland 1142, New Zealand

Address:

Private Bag 92 236
Auckland, New Zealand

Mail to:

09 379 4422Telephone:
ARTAenquiry@arta.co.nzEmail:
www.arta.co.nzWebsite:

MAXX

For bus, train and ferry timetable information in the Auckland
metropolitan calling area, telephone 7am–8pm Monday to
Saturday, 8am–6.30pm Sunday and public holidays. Closed
Christmas Day.

3666Text messaging:
09 366 6400Telephone:
0800 10 30 80Toll Free:
www.maxx.co.nzWebsite:
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